
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
TUESDAY, February 21, 2023 

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings 
will continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection 
details. Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is MEDIUM; 
masks are not required, but are recommended for those at risk of 
severe illness 

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the BOS Chairman opens the agenda items for 
public comment 
 

II. Minutes 
A. Approval of minutes from February 6, 2023 meeting 

 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

A. Consider the appointment of Michael Bailey to the Investment Committee 
B. Accept resignation of Brian Henkel from the Investment Committee 
 

IV. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
A. Memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, regarding amendments to the proposed 

FY24 municipal debt service budget 
B. Memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, regarding modifications to the FY24 CIP 

proposed funding resulting from additional analysis 
C. Thank you letter from The Neighborhood House, dated February 8, 2023 
D. Lobster Industry article from Maine Town & City magazine, submitted by Chris 

Moore, member of the Maine Lobstermen Association 
E. Hancock County Commissioners Special Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 
F. Islander Article regarding MRC and prospective buyers; February 16, 2023 

 
V. Selectboard’s Reports 

 
VI. Unfinished Business 

A. Request Approval of Zach Brandwein as attorney for MacQuinn appeal 
B. Consider amendment to award and remittance procedure of scholarships as 

presented in memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright dated February 16th, 2023 
 

VII. New Business 
A. Presentation of Service Groups/Non-profit Agency Funding Requests (A-L) Budget 

FY 2024  
B. Request for approval for the Bar Harbor Assessing Technician from the Town of Bar 

Harbor to assist with the assessing responsibilities of the Town of Mount Desert as 
necessary; the Town of Mount Desert will incur no cost for this service 

C. Authorize the Office of the Treasurer to do all things necessary to process Marina 
credit card activity through the Town’s General Operating Account ending 7618, per 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda February 21, 2023 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

recommendation from the Investment Committee as described in memo from Finance 
Director, Jake Wright, dated February 16, 2023 

D. Authorize the closure of the payment processing account ending 7881 per 
recommendation from the Investment Committee as described in memo from Finance 
Director, Jake Wright, dated February 16, 2023 

E. Authorize all funds in the payment processing account ending 7881 be transferred to 
the Town’s General Operating Account per recommendation from the Investment 
Committee as described in memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, dated 
February 16, 2023 

F. Review proposed changes to the Town’s Investment Policy recommended by the 
Investment Committee at their February 8th meeting 

 
VIII. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 

Business or out of order.) 
 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
 

 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 
Town Invoices AP#2354 2/22/23 $537,659.49 
Total   $537,659.49 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2352 

 
2/8/23 

 
$46,773.04 

 AP#2353 2/15/23 $5,698.00 
Town Payroll PR#2320 2/17/23 $141,934.48 
Total   $194,405.52 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Invoices - - $ 
School Payroll PR#17 2/17/23 $182,963.85 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
- 

 
- 

 
$ 

Total   $182,963.85 
 

Grand Total   $915,028.86 
 

X. Adjournment 
 

The next scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, February 27, 2023 in the Meeting Room, 
Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Second combined Selectboard and Warrant Committee Review of 
Non-profit agencies request for funding (Agencies M-Z)  



Selectboard Meeting Agenda February 21, 2023 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert 1 
Selectboard Minutes 2 

February 6, 2023 3 
 4 
Board Members Present:  Chair John Macauley, Rick Mooers, Martha Dudman, Geoff Wood 5 
 6 
Board Member Wendy Littlefield was not in attendance. 7 
 8 
Town Officials Present:  Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Finance Director Jake Wright, Town 9 
Manager Durlin Lunt, Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Fire Chief Mike Bender, Public Works Director 10 
Brian Henkel 11 

 12 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 13 

Chair Macauley called the meeting to order at 6:28PM. 14 
 15 

II. Minutes 16 
A. Approval of minutes from January 17, 2023 meeting 17 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of the January 17, 2023 18 
Minutes as presented. 19 
Motion approved 4-0. 20 
 21 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 22 

A. Consider the appointment of Jason Irwin to the Investment Committee 23 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, appointment of Jason Irwin to the 24 
Investment Committee as presented. 25 
Motion approved 4-0. 26 
 27 

B. Consider the appointment of Allen Kimmerly to the LUZO Committee 28 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, appointment of Allen Kimmerly 29 
to the LUZO Committee as presented. 30 
Motion approved 4-0. 31 
 32 

C. Consider the appointment of Joseph Renault to the LUZO Committee 33 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, appointment of Joseph Renault to 34 
the LUZO Committee as presented. 35 
Motion approved 4-0. 36 
 37 

D. Accept resignation of Christie Anastasia as alternate Planning Board member 38 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acceptance of the resignation of 39 
Christie Anastasia as alternate Planning Board member as presented and with regret. 40 
Motion approved 4-0. 41 

 42 
IV. Consent Agenda 43 

A. Treasurer’s Report: 4th Quarter 2022 (Oct-Dec) analysis of cash, cash equivalents, 44 
investments, reserves, and trust funds 45 

B. Memo from Finance Director, Jake Wright, regarding modifications to the FY24 CIP 46 
proposed funding resulting from no long pursuing the “virtual desktop” project 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 2 
 

C. Universal waste collection totals from the annual HHW and UW held 9-22 1 
D. Hancock County Commissioners Meeting Minutes from January 4, 2023 2 
E. Acadia National Park Advisory Commission Meeting Minutes from September 12, 3 

2022 4 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acceptance of the Consent Agenda 5 
as presented. 6 
Motion approved 4-0. 7 
 8 

V. Selectboard Reports 9 
Mr. Mooers reported that several coastal Maine communities have made donations to the Maine 10 
Lobstermen’s Association Legal Defense Fund.  He suggested the Town of Mount Desert 11 
consider doing the same.   12 
 13 
Others agreed.  The deadline for 3rd party requests has passed.  Funds could come from the 14 
Selectboard’s contingency fund if the association is unable to make a 3rd party request.  Manager 15 
Lunt confirmed there were contingency funds available. 16 
 17 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to authorize a donation of 18 
$1,000.00 to go to the Maine Lobstermen’s Association Legal Defense Fund from the 19 
Selectboard Contingency Fund. 20 
Motion approved 4-0. 21 
 22 
Ms. Dudman suggested sending a letter of support along with the donation.   23 
 24 
 25 
Ms. Dudman asked for an update on the streetlight situation.  The neighborhood residents report 26 
there’s been no change.  Manager Lunt promised to check in with the Police.  It was Manager 27 
Lunt’s understanding that the light would be moved.   28 
 29 
 30 
Chair Macauley hoped the traditional Warrant Committee dinner could be brought back.  31 
Warrant Committee Chair Phil Lichtenstein confirmed there is money in the budget for a dinner.   32 
 33 
 34 
Mr. Wood asked for an update about the weekly rental ordinance being drafted.  Ms. Dudman 35 
noted there is a February 21 LUZO meeting to discuss it.   36 
 37 
 38 
Chair Macauley recently learned there is no generator at the marina to keep engine blocks 39 
heated.  Harbormaster Lamoine was not in attendance.  Manager Lunt agreed to look into it. 40 

 41 
VI. Unfinished Business 42 

A. Seal Harbor Library Memorandum of Understanding presentation and review 43 
Seal Harbor Library Director Wendy Livingston was not in attendance. 44 
 45 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to table the item until Ms. 46 
Livingston’s arrival. 47 
Motion approved 4-0. 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 1 
Ms. Livingston later arrived.  The Seal Harbor Library is the smallest library in Town.  In the 2 
fall, winter, and spring the library is open on Saturdays with a paid librarian.  In the summer the 3 
library is manned by volunteers and open 5 to 6 days a week.  The library provides access to wi-4 
fi, archives, some summer programming, and they have a book club.  Their request is $4,000.00, 5 
as it is every year.  The library’s operating budget is $13,000.00, coming mostly from donations 6 
and the summer book sale.  The Town’s funding helps to pay for the librarian.   7 
 8 
B. Discussion of Landscape Architect’s Plan for Benches 9 
There was some discussion regarding whether granite benches or durable artificial wood benches 10 
were preferred.  Ms. Dudman recalled the consensus being an artificial wood bench similar to 11 
what was at the harbor already.  Memorial plaques could be affixed to the backs of the benches.  12 
Mr. Mooers recalled discussion about the benches being all the same design to create a uniform 13 
look.  It was agreed that green artificial wood benches similar to what is at the marina be used.  14 
Resident Katrina Carter believed there were various types of benches at the harbor.  She 15 
suggested a further look to ensure uniformity.  Public Works Director Henkel agreed to look into 16 
the marina bench designs. 17 
 18 
Ms. Dudman did not believe the marina plan has been approved.  Manager Lunt believed the 19 
Harbor Committee wanted to discuss some concerns.   20 
 21 
Harbor Committee member Storey Litchfield reported the Harbor Committee is waiting to see a 22 
revised landscaping plan from the architect.  There are a number of items in the plan they felt 23 
were not appropriate to the marina.  The initial landscape plan was funded by the Garden Club.  24 
Board members recalled the Garden Club stating they would not fund design revisions to the 25 
plan, though the Town could revise the plans as they saw fit.  The Town is still in receipt of the 26 
original plans.  Mr. Mooers recalled the landscape plan did not include bench design.   27 
 28 
Ms. Dudman voiced concern that the issue appeared to have stalled.  Perhaps the Harbor 29 
Committee could bring their concerns to the Board and further steps could be determined.  30 
Manager Lunt felt the landscape plan and the question of the benches were two separate issues.  31 
Ms. Dudman believed it logical to have a dedicated bench design for the marina, but there should 32 
be agreement on other locations in town where benches would be appropriate. Mr. Wood noted 33 
that the initial request that started the discussion was for a bench at Pond’s End.  That location 34 
has not been looked at.  The Board discussed creating a list of where benches or other memorial 35 
fixtures would be acceptable, and a menu of what types of memorial donations would be 36 
appropriate.   37 
 38 
Chair Macauley agreed the Pond’s End site needs to be considered.  As for the marina, 39 
landscaping has become confused with the bench issue.  He suggested:  40 

- Review the Pond’s End area.  41 
- Create a bench plan.  42 
- Review the landscape design options presented for the marina and work towards a plan 43 

that will satisfy everyone.   44 
- Mr. Wood recommended creating a list of Town areas appropriate for bench placement.   45 

 46 
Manager Lunt suggested further discussion at the next meeting.   47 
 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 4 
 
C. Revised Code of Conduct Policy 1 
Manager Lunt reported the changes to the Code of Conduct Policy were made as requested and 2 
the policy was ready for review. 3 
 4 
Mr. Wood pointed out that the policy makes no mention of Board and Committee members 5 
having to sign off on the policy annually.  Manager Lunt did not believe such a requirement was 6 
necessary.  He believed the Selectboard could determine when signatures were required, but 7 
scheduling didn’t need to be embedded in the document.   8 
 9 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, acceptance of the Revised Code of 10 
Conduct Policy. 11 
Motion approved 4-0. 12 
 13 
D. Conflict for Third Party Funding Requests second meeting on February 22nd; need to move 14 

to February 23rd 15 
The scheduled February 22 Third Party Funding Request meeting conflicts with a Planning 16 
Board Meeting.  Discussion ensued regarding another date. 17 
 18 
It was agreed to reschedule the meeting for Monday, February 27 at 6:30PM. 19 
 20 
E. Discussion of capital gains reserve account and certain projects as described in memo from 21 

Jake Wright, Finance Director, dated February 2nd, 2023 22 
Finance Director Wright explained it was wise to pull back when the market is uncertain.  There 23 
are other funding sources to look into for some projects, small bonds being the most likely.  24 
There needs to be more review.  Nothing has been finalized.   25 
 26 
F. Review of bids received to repair approximately two hundred lineal feet of erosion to the 27 

Seal Harbor beach shoreline 28 
It was recommended to hold off on this project at this time. 29 
 30 
MOTION: Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, to Table Item VI.F. 31 
Motion approved 4-0. 32 
  33 
G. Consider acceptance of bids received to repair approximately two hundred lineal feet of 34 

erosion to the Seal Harbor beach shoreline 35 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to reject the bids received. 36 
Motion approved 4-0. 37 
 38 
VII. New Business 39 
A. Consider waiving collection of EMS accounts receivable in the amount of $300 in response 40 

to request from patient 41 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, waiving collection of EMS 42 
accounts receivable in the amount of $300 in response to request from patient as presented. 43 
 44 
Chair Macauley noted the recommendation was not to waive collection. 45 
 46 
Bar Harbor Assistant Fire Chief John Lennon believed the person was confused regarding the 47 
ownership of the Ambulance Service. 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 1 
Motion Rejected, 0-4. 2 
 3 
B. Consider writing off uncollectable accounts receivable in the amount of $2,279.50 created 4 

by three EMS runs prior to the effective date of MDFD’s Medicare billing certification 5 
MOTION: Mr. Wood moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, writing off uncollectable accounts 6 
receivable in the amount of $2,279.50 created by three EMS runs prior to the effective date of 7 
MDFD’s Medicare billing certification as presented. 8 
Motion approved 4-0. 9 
 10 
C. Overview of Public Works-related proposed May 2023 town meeting warrant articles 11 
Public Works Director Henkel reported on the Warrant Articles for review.   12 
 13 

1. To accept ownership of Patterson Hill Road, a private road located in Somesville off 14 
State Route 102 that serves the Patterson Hill Subdivision, and make it public. 15 

And 16 
2. To accept ownership of the Patterson Hill Subdivision private sanitary sewer system 17 

and make it public. 18 
Director Henkel explained that accepting Patterson Hill Road as a public road requires several 19 
conditions be met prior to acceptance, the biggest one being clarity regarding ownership.  20 
Acceptance of the private sewer system also requires some conditions to be met. The acceptance 21 
process could take as much as two years. The Warrant Article can be voted on at Town Meeting 22 
contingent upon conditions being met. This subdivision includes its own wastewater pump 23 
station.  24 
 25 

3. Based on residents comments, maintenance history, safety concerns, and current 26 
conditions, to make sidewalk improvements 27 

Mr. Wood inquired about the sidewalks on the easterly side of Route 102 in Somesville.  He 28 
hoped the Town could be proactive and make the area uniform.  It was noted the sidewalks on 29 
the easterly side of Route 102 were removed from planned work because residents in the area 30 
objected to it.  Those residents have since changed their minds.  31 
 32 
Proper crosswalk placement needs sidewalk on both sides of the street for pedestrian safety. 33 
 34 

4. To vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in Public Works in Waste Management 35 
in the amount of approximately $48,000. 36 

And 37 
5. To vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in Public Works in Buildings & 38 

Grounds in the amount of approximately $18,000. 39 
Director Henkel noted Items 4 and 5 will be made one warrant, with the two items delineated 40 
within the warrant. 41 
 42 

6. Consideration of funding concept engineering work related to locating a sand/salt 43 
building on the same map and lot that the highway garage is located on at Sargeant 44 
Drive. 45 

This will consist of funding a feasibility study and concept plan of a sand/salt shed and determine 46 
whether one can be sited at the highway garage property. 47 
 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 6 
 

7. To approve the necessary funding for renovations to the two (2) existing Town 1 
owned tennis and pickleball courts. 2 

This will fund the tennis/pickleball courts, which are in need of restoration.   3 
 4 

8. To approve the necessary funding for renovations to the 1) parking lot in Seal 5 
Harbor located westerly of the driveway to the Seal Harbor wastewater treatment 6 
plant and accessed from Route 3 and, for the parking lots at the 2) lower level of the 7 
town office outside the police and fire departments and 3) the lot that the Town 8 
leases to Cranberry Isles. 9 

Proposed renovations will include the parking lots leased to Cranberry Isles residents and the 10 
parking area near the Seal Harbor treatment plant. 11 
 12 
Work at the Seal Harbor parking lot will include paving the dirt lot and installing EV chargers.  13 
Director Henkel will be meeting with Mr. Lichtenstein to assess the electricity needs in 14 
preparation for the EV charger installation.  Mr. Lichtenstein reported that the grant money 15 
received will pay for the charging units. 16 
 17 

9. 9. To consider the sale of the emergency standby generator that the Town is leasing 18 
to the Mount Desert Island Regional School System presently in use at the MDI 19 
High School. 20 

The standby generator is proposed to be sold to the high school.  21 
 22 

10. 10. In conformance with Maine DOT requirements, to approve funding for the 23 
relocation of the Town sanitary sewer presently attached to the Babson Creek 24 
bridge scheduled to be replaced with the possibility of construction commencing in 25 
the spring of FY-24. 26 

The DOT estimates construction at the Babson Creek bridge could last a year.  Repairs will 27 
hopefully occur in 2024. The wastewater pump station there will need to be moved onto the 28 
DOT’s temporary bridge structure as construction occurs, and then onto the new bridge once it’s 29 
in place. Director Henkel has not yet received details from the DOT about the move’s logistics.  30 
There is the risk for additional cost to keep the system there functioning appropriately. 31 
 32 
Ms. Dudman noted her attendance at a presentation about the bridge.  At that time the DOT 33 
noted it was in disrepair.  She inquired about the bridge’s condition. Director Henkel agreed it 34 
was in need of replacement.   35 
 36 
Mr. Mooers asked about the new speed limit poles recently erected in response to the needs of 37 
The Community School.  Director Henkel believed the one closest to the traffic light will have to 38 
be relocated.  He wasn’t sure about the other. 39 
 40 

11. Consider approving a funding source other than capital gains, which were approved 41 
for use at the 2022 town meeting, associated with costs for engineering and 42 
construction to make drainage improvements to the Beech Hill Cross Road in the 43 
general area where Denning’s Brook crosses under the Road. Funding requested is 44 
$360,000 to be supplemented by the remaining DEP StreamSmart grant balance of 45 
$115,000 for a total cost of $475,000. The original grant funding was $125,000, 46 
$10,000 of which was used towards project design costs. 47 

 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 7 
 

12. Consider approving a funding source other than capital gains, which were approved 1 
for use at the 2022 town meeting, associated with costs for engineering and 2 
construction to make repairs to the Seal Harbor beach erosion. The erosion was 3 
caused by a strong storm surge that occurred during the winter of 2020-21. The 4 
2022 town meeting approved funding if $220,000. Based on the high bid of two we 5 
received in the amount of approximately $246,000, the May 2023 article is 6 
anticipated to request $250,000. 7 

Director Henkel noted these items were discussed earlier in the meeting.   8 
 9 

D. Proposed FY24 Revenue Budget review  10 
Manager Lunt reported the revenue is $156,000.00 above last year’s estimate. The Town will be 11 
able to compensate for the lack of a capital gains contribution.  It was noted the column labeled 12 
“request” is a projected estimate.   13 
 14 
Finance Director Wright agreed the Town is moving to fixed, more conservative sources in the 15 
face of uncertain rates.  This has affected some of the estimates previously made. 16 
 17 

E. Special Meeting February 13 for Ordinance Articles and Review of MDES budget, 18 
and Draft Warrant Review 19 

There is both an AOS meeting and a Climate Task Force meeting on February 13. It was 20 
confirmed the AOS meeting would not conflict, and the Climate Task Force meeting could be 21 
moved.   22 

 23 
VIII. Other Business 24 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 25 
Mr. Wood noticed there was no report from the MRC on the Consent Agenda. He wondered 26 
why, given the amount of news in the press about the situation. It felt as if the situation were 27 
back to square one.  Other Board members concurred. 28 
 29 
MRC representative Tony Smith disagreed. He reported the exclusivity contract ended, but there 30 
were a number of other interested parties reaching out.  A number of state entities are involved. 31 
Additionally, Revere Capital lost their exclusivity but that did not mean they were no longer a 32 
part of the equation.  33 
 34 
Chair Macauley suggested the Town might want to start considering plans for upping recycling 35 
and reducing the waste residents are putting on the curb. Ms. Dudman suggested the 36 
Sustainability Committee might be a good group to work on the issue.  Mr. Lichtenstein reported 37 
the current system is zero-sort, with pickup once a week in the winter, twice in the summer.  38 
Other possibilities can be looked at. Perhaps the Town could consider reaching out to Agri-Cycle 39 
and start collecting compost.  To make changes the Town will have to make some choices 40 
regarding their potential relationship with the Hampden facility if it comes online.   41 
 42 
Chair Macauley felt it wise to start looking at options, and the Sustainability Committee might be 43 
a good place to start.  Mr. Lichtenstein agreed to add the issue to the next Sustainability 44 
Committee agenda.   45 
 46 
Mr. Smith cautioned that the Town is now paying more than twice for recycling than for 47 
garbage.  Organics, such as those Agri-Cycle would be interested in are required to go to the 48 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 8 
 
facility from member towns.  Organics are the basis for the production of biogas.  Mr. Smith 1 
stated the Acadia Disposal District would be discussing the subject of recycling. 2 
 3 
Chair Macauley suggested Mr. Smith come to a Sustainability Committee meeting to discuss the 4 
issue. 5 

 6 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 7 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 8 
Town Invoices AP#2351 2/7/2023 $670,089.22 
Total   $670,089.22 

MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, approval and signature of the 9 
Treasurer’s Warrant as shown above. 10 
Motion approved 4-0. 11 

 12 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 13 

below: 14 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2348 

 
1/19/2023 

 
$5,106.62 

 AP#2349 1/25/2023 $819.50 
 AP#2350 2/1/2023 $91,099.72 
Town Payroll PR#2317 1/20/2023 $137,787.68 
 PR#2318 2/3/2023 $154,881.93 
 PR#2319 2/3/2023 $403.52 
Total   $390,098.97 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, approval of signed Treasurer’s 15 
Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown above. 16 
Motion approved 4-0. 17 

 18 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 19 

Warrants as shown below: 20 
School Invoices AP#8 2/1/2023 $197,732.17 
School Payroll PR#15 1/20/2023 $205,607.92 
 PR#16 2/3/2023 $94,805.39 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
V#2308 

 
2/2/2023 

 
$(257.73) 

Total   $497,887.75 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, acknowledgement of Treasurer’s 21 
Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll Warrants as shown above. 22 
Motion approved 4-0. 23 

 24 
Grand Total   $1,558,075.94 

 25 
X. Adjournment 26 

MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, to adjourn. 27 
Motion approved 4-0. 28 
 29 
The Meeting adjourned at 7:35PM 30 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 6, 2023 
Page 9 
 
 1 
 2 
Respectfully Submitted, 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
Geoffrey Wood 7 





APPOINTMENTS 

RECOGNITIONS 

RESIGNATIONS 

  





 

I:\Boards & Committees\Resident Request for Appointment Board or Committee.docxx 8/10/2022 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

Telephone: 207-276-5531 Fax: 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 

Resident Request for Appointment to Volunteer Board or Committee 
 

Thank you for expressing an interest in serving on one of the Town’s volunteer Boards or 

Committees.  Before the Board of Selectmen makes appointments, they would like to know a little 

about you and why you feel you could contribute to the Board or Committee.  Please take a few 

minutes and complete the brief expression of interest information below and  

return to the Town Clerk, PO Box 248/21 Sea St, Northeast Harbor ME  04662. 

 

Name:    Date:      

Street 

Address:    Phone: Home     

Mail 

Address:   Work     

 

E-mail:         Cell     

 

Are you a registered voter in the Town of Mount Desert?  Yes  No 

 

Appointment(s) requested:           

 

If you have previously served on any Boards or Committees in the Town of Mount Desert, please 

describe your experience:           

 

   

 

Are there other background experiences or skills that you feel would contribute to this appointment? 

   

 

   

 

Why are you interested in this appointment? ___________________________________________ 

 

   

 

What are your goals for this Board or Committee?        

 

   

 

Do you have conflicts with meeting times or group assignments?      

 

             

 

Michael A. Bailey 2/13/23

46 Summit Road 207-801-8739

PO Box 955 Same

m.4.3ailey@gmail.com Same

X

Investment Committee Member

Investment Committee Member, Spring 2015

Largely Academic: PhD, Management (Pending 2025); MA, Economics; MBA

Experience: 13 years of finance experience between banks and non-profits

It is how I can help the town the most.

No.

To serve the Town of Mount Desert.

http://www.mtdesert.org/




CONSENT AGENDA 

  





 

February 16, 2023 

Selectboard, 

Earlier in the budget process, a draft of the FY24 Municipal debt service budget was presented that did 
not account for the impacts of the additional principal payments approved for certain issuances at the 
12/19/22 Selectboard meeting. Below represents the impact of that activity: 

- Total FY24 budget recommendation decreases from $2,215,507 to $2,203,989.  
- SR 2018 General Obligation Promissory Note will be paid off in FY24, instead of FY26. 
- Excluding additional debt issuance(s) from consideration, about 92% of the increase from FY23 

to FY24 is estimated to be erased in the FY25 budget by retirements of debt and decreasing 
effective interest payments.  

 

Thank you, 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 

 

 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


 

Selectboard, 

At the 12/5/22 Selectboard meeting, a draft of the capital improvement plan funding for FY24 was 
presented. The total proposed funding at that time was $1,285,502.78. At the 2/6/23 Selectboard 
meeting, I provided a memo disclosing the decrease in proposed FY24 CIP funding that resulted from 
discontinuing the funding of the “virtual desktop” project after Police Chief, Jim Willis, determined that 
the goals of the project can be accomplished without the need for virtual desktop infrastructure by 
capitalizing on the dark fiber project that was funded by the bond authorized at the May 2022 town 
meeting. Removing the “virtual desktop” project resulted in proposed FY24 CIP funding declining from 
$1,285,502.78 to $1,216,281.23.  

In a final review of the FY24 CIP, several public works reserves were revisited to ensure that FY24 
funding is sufficient to meet current and future goals while minimizing the impact on appropriations. In 
the first draft of the CIP, public works reserve accounts were up, in total, 34.49% from FY23. This was 
largely due to the substantial increases being seen within these sectors and various capital investment 
and replacement goals. After a final review, involving myself, Public Works Director, Brian Henkel, and 
Public Works Consultant, Tony Smith, FY24 proposed public works reserve funding is up, in total, 9.01%. 
See below for a comparison of Public Works reserve accounts from FY23, the original draft provided at 
the 12/5/22 Selectboard meeting, and the current revised version: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


Category FY23 FY24 – presented at 
12/5/22 Meeting 

FY24 - revised 

Public Works Equipment 
Reserve 

$220,000 $275,000 $275,000 

Wastewater Work Truck 
Reserve 

$65,000 $65,000 $50,000 

Refuse Truck Reserve $125,000 $125,000 $100,000 

Public Works Road 
Reserve 

$50,000 $91,612.14 $41,612.14 

Wastewater Capital 
Improvement Reserve 

$10,000 $73,031.95 $38,064.46 

Town Office Building 
Reserve 

$20,000 $25,000 $25,000 

Bait House Reserve $3,000 $4,500 $3,750 

Public Works Buildings 
and Grounds Reserve 

$15,000 $22,500 $18,750 

PW Parks and Cemetery 
Reserve 

$10,000 $15,000 $12,500 

Total $518,000 $696,644.09 $564,676.60 

 

In most reserves where newly revised FY24 funding is lower than FY23, the final analysis showed that 
assets were ahead of calculated needs and a reduction in funding could be incurred without jeopardizing 
asset replacement needs. Additionally, in most reserves where newly revised FY24 funding is higher 
than FY23 funding, but lower than originally presented, the final analysis determined that the increase in 
funding necessary to meet capital investment and replacement goals could be tempered without 
jeopardizing current and future needs. 

After making the above changes to proposed FY24 Municipal CIP funding, FY24 Municipal CIP funding is 
up from $1,069,436 in FY23 to $1,084,313.74, or 1.39%.  

 

Thank you, 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 



-LU
C

%
J

LU0LU
w

O
L

i

L
L

O
w0z

Z
O

I
00

0
0G)C

Ca)

C
)

C
j’)

0
0

U
)

Ca)
-c0zIA

20C)U
)

D000-c0D-cC
)

Cci)I)



Threats Facing Maine’s
Lobster Industry

What’s in store for this billion dollar
heritage industry?

11*1



i.eaiuie

Threats Facing Maine’s Lobster Industry
By MeLissa Waterman

Despite successful efforts to protect North Atlantic right whales, for some
environmental groups, it still isn’t enough.

Maine Lobstermen, and the SI biLlion industry that de
pends on them, are facing unprecedented uncertainty in
the new year. Families along the coast worry that a centu
ries-old fishery long regarded as an example of sustain-
ability couLd vanish within a few short years. The reason:
a suite offederal regulations designed to protect the en-
dangered North Atlantic right whale, whose population
has shrunk dramatically since 2010.

The ramifications of these regulations threaten to
dismantle a major economic sector which keeps coastal
towns Like Cutler, Stonington, and VinaLhaven alive and
harm Maine’s regional economic centers. Because every
Maine lobster boat is owned and
operated by an individual lobster-
man, the dollars earned by these
men and women flow into their
local grocery stores, restaurants,
school systems, and other entities.
But the industry’s demise would
have profound effects on our
state’s economy, on hospitality
and tourism, and on communities
throughout the state.

What has happened to cause
this? What are the Maine Lobster
men’s Association (MLA) and its
allies doing to prevent the demise
of the state’s lobster fishery? And
how can you help protect Maine’s
Lobstering heritage?

Background
Right whales have been pro

tected under the Endangered Spe
cies Act (ESA) and Marine Mam
mal Protection Act (MMPA) for
decades. In 1998, the federal National Marine Fisheries
Service (NMFS) organized a coalition of federal and state
agencies and private fishery and environmental organi
zations to help develop a plan to protect right whales

About the Author: Melissa Waterman of Owls Head,
Maine is communications coordinator for the Maine
Lobstermen’s Association and editor of its monthly
oublication Landings.

from unintentional harm from commercial fisheries. The
plan has required fishermen from Maine to Florida to
modify their fishing gear to help prevent whale entangle-
ment and minimize injury should an entanglement occur.

Since the plan was first implemented, Maine lobster-
men have made multiple changes to their fishing tech-
niques. Because right whales could get tangled in rope,
lobstermen have removed more than 30,000 miles of rope
from the water by replacing rope that floats between
traps on bottom with rope that sinks, removing buoy lines
by fishing more traps on each line, and fishing sinking line
below the buoy to protect whales feeding at the surface.

The remaining buoy lines have been weakened to ensure
that ifa whale swims into a line, it can breakfree. In addi

tion, Maine lobstermen annually remove all gear from a

large area of the ocean and uniqueLy mark all buoy lines.

And it works. Over the course of 20 years, the right

whale population doubled to approximately 483 whales

I.

MAINE TOWN & CITY JANUARY 2023 7



as of 2010. The Last known entangLement of a right whale
in Maine lobster gear took place in 2004 and that whale
survived. In fact, there has never been a documented right
whale death attributed to Maine lobster gear.

However, in recent years, ocean conditions have
changed dramatically, with temperatures in the Gulf of
Maine warming rapidly in the Last two decades. While
this, combined with the lobstermen’s conservation prac
tices, has resulted in historic catches from lobstermen,
right whaLes have not been so fortunate.

As the Gulf’s temperatures have risen, certain marine
species have exited the region. Key among them is right
whale’s favorite food, a tiny cold-water species of co
pepod, Calanus ñnmarchicus. Copepods are the bread
and-butter of the marine food web. Right whales feast on
these copepods because its high fat content powers its
lengthy migration from Canada in the summer to Florida
during the winter months. Until recently, the Gulf of Maine
was bursting with Calanus finmarchicus. But as the Gulf
warmed, the copepods retreated to cooler waters.

By 2010, hungry right whales began to fol
[ow the copepods into the unregulated waters
of the Gulf of St. Lawrence in Canada, leaving
their previous spring and summer grounds in
the Gulf of Maine. Researchers now find more
than 4O3 ofthe known right whale population
in the Gulf of St. Lawrence each year. Individual
whales now return every year and stay for up
to five months feeding and socializing.

As right whales transitioned into this new
Canadian habitat, they found themselves in
waters that lacked the safety protections that
were in place in U.S. waters. The results were
devastating. In 2017, twelve right whales died
in Canadian waters, followed by ten more in

2019. Necropsies of the whales showed that the majority
examined died from vessel collisions and entanglement
in Canadian snow crab gear.

As right whales struggled to find a new stable food
source, the number of right whale calves born each year
declined, reaching a historic low in 2018 when no calves
were born. Fortunately, as right whales have found stable
food sources, calving rates have rebounded with 20 born
in 2021.

Enter the environmental organizations and
the court

The tenuous state of the right whale population
prompted four national environmentaL organizations to
file suit against NMFS in 2018, arguing that the agency
was not complying with the ESA or the MMPA. The plain
tiffs sought to force NMFS to require the lobster fishery to
do more to protect right whales. The Maine Lobstermen’s
Association intervened in the case arguing that Maine’s
lobster fishery is not driving the right whale decline and

I

Trust CMA topartner withyou/n aiofyourHRneeds

ri cnic.rèeicom
• • 1_ Career Management Associates provides the most trusted

and effective HR services in Northern New England by combining technology and expertise with a high-touch approach.

In today’s highly regulated business climate, a strong HR department is more important than ever. CMA customizes HR solutions
for organization of all sizes. Our compliance expertise can keep you on the right side of the law and/or train your staff in this
evoMng and complex area. • .

t4 .
Executivea4YProfessfonalSearch 4 ‘. HumanPesoutce Services

+- -y . Federa4ContraçtorCompIjancerogrçms

* •- ompeAationAnaIysisdPIan Development

. . Training/LeaderypDevelopnWt

.
AssesijlØA’Testing

_____________________

w . butplacement
. HR oIUtK,flSCompliance
AffithwtiveAct,oqPlans I

____

lrruste HR Servacc,s
xecutIve

Coa7,,, • I

You Choose and We DeNver- CMA Speciallzes in:

207-780-1125 - info@cmacareercom

MAINE TOWN & CITY JANUARY 2023 9



the data do not support requiring the lobster industry to
make steep risk reductions.

The court required NMFS to reassess the impacts of
the lobster fishery, as required under the ESA, in 2021. The
agency determined that the Lobster fishery couLd contin
ue to operate onLy if it impLemented a phased in 98 risk
reduction over ten years. To reach that goaL, however, the
Maine Lobster fishery wouLd LargeLy be dismantLed.

The first phase of this pLan, impLemented in 2022,
incLuded an immediate 609 risk reduction that required
Maine Lobstermen to further remove rope from the
water and modify remaining gear. In addition, a large
annual offshore area was closed to Lobstering from
October through Januarc a severe economic blow to
the Lobstermen who fish there.

Still, extreme environmental organizations were not
satisfied and went back to court asking for more strin
gent risk reduction measures to be instituted. In Novem
ber 2022, the court gave NMFS until the end of 2024 to
implement deep cutting risk reductions.

The MLA has been a vigilant participant in the federal
reguLatory process, seeking a management program that
addresses the risk actuaLLy posed by the Maine Lobster
fishery, rather than hoLding the fishery accountabLe for
harm to right whales occurring in waters outside the Gulf
of Maine. Instead, NMFS pushed forward with inflated risk
reduction estimates for the Maine lobster fishery result
ing from an incomplete computer model.

The lobster industry fights back
After exhausting aLL other options, in September 2021,

the MLA filed a Legal case of its own against NMFS. The
MLA lawsuit challenges the arbitrary fashion in which
NMFS treated science in crafting its draconian risk re
duction plan for the lobster fishery. MLA also objects to
NMFS’s unsupported finding that the lobster fishery is
harming right whales and contends that NMFS has gross-
Ly overestimated the lobster fishery’s risk to right whales.
The MLA’s lawsuit describes how NMFS cherry-picked the
science, often using unsupported assumptions rather
than analyzing scenarios that are reasonably certain to
occur, tojustify its mandate for Maine’s lobster fishery to
reduce its already minimal risk to right whales by 98. in
addition, the MLA argues that NMFS also wholly neglect-
ed mandatory legal requirements to assess the economic
and social costs of its actions.

In September 2022, the U.S. District Court of Wash ing
ton, D.C. ruled against the MLA in an opinion that did not
rule on the substance of MLA’s claims about NMFS’s mis-
use of the science, and instead, simply deferred to NMFS
on all counts. Unfortunately, the validity of the MLA’s
concerns was not addressed. This meant that the lobster
fishery would be required to implement the next round of
deep cuts by the end of 2024. Recent congressional action,
however, has moved that deadline to 2028 even as MLA’s
lawsuit proceeds.

The MLA has hired Paul Clement, former U.S. Solicitor
General and renowned Supreme Court litigator, to repre

\ /

Specializing In The

UNIQUE NEEDS
OF MAINE MUNICIPALITIES

V 100% financing for Maine municipalities
V Fixed-rate leasing programs for new or used equipment
“F A streamlined application process — you’ll be up and running in no time
V Plus, a full suite of cash management products catered to municipalities

That’s the power oflocal banking. That’s banking you can believe in.

(207) 222-1498 1 rproctorgorhamsavIngs.bank

Gorham
Savings Bank

Memben EDIC tEquei Housing London

OLVER ASSOCIATES INC.
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERS

. Wastewater Process Engineering

. Stormwater Management

. Treatment Facility Upgrades

. Operations Assistance & Training

. Sewer Infrastructure Design

. Municipal & Civil Engineering

P.O. Box 679
290 Main Street

Winterport, Maine 04496

S Telephone: (207) 223-2232 Fax: (207) 223-5448

10 MAINE TOWN & CITY JANUARY 2023



sent the organization in an appeaL ofthe court ruting.
CLement promptly filed, and was granted, a request
for an expedited appeal of the court’s decision. In
granting the motion, the appeals court laid out a
timeLine that requires alt briefs to be submitted by
January 10, 2023, with oral arguments set for late Feb
ruary. Clement has pledged to petition the Supreme
Court to review the MLA’s case if the appeal is not
successful.

The legal battle is costly. That is why the Maine Lob-
stermen’s Association launched its “Save Maine Lobs-
termen” campaign in late 2021 with a goal of raising
$10 million over three years. In addition to supporting
MLA’s legal efforts to challenge federal regulations
through lawsuits and regulatory processes, this fund-
ing will also support scientific research, development
of innovative gear solutions, and education.

To date, several municipalities have contributed to
the fund including Kittery, York, Cranberry Isles, South
Thomaston, Long Island, Tremont, Georgetown, Vinal
haven, Stonington, Machiasport, Friendship, Ells
worth, Boothbay, and Jonesport. MLA is asking other
communities all around the state to stand with it as it
works to protect a future for our children that includes
a proud, vibrant lobster industry.

The Maine lobster fishery is in a battle for its life.
If the Lobster fishery is wiped out, Maine will lose its
Lobstering heritage, and along with it, a cultural icon
and economic driver that will be felt by all Mainers. Al

Over the last 30 years,
no other

waste management
solution has comecle to

RECYCLING
tow flnrnzwlaI*.ncftt to Matn&stns,

meeting the needs
of Mainers,

and diverting more than

A BILLION POUNDS
from Iandfi11s

Thank you for recycling,

Maine!

ecornaine

The Solution
The MLA is engaged in a four-prong strategy to
Save Maine Lobstermen AND right whales.

1. Legal and Policy
The MLA is suing the federal government to stop the
10-year whale plan that will decimate Maine’s lobster
industry. MLA has asked the court to fix the plan using
accurate science so that we can save right whales
without sacrificing the lobster fishery.

2. Science and Data
The MLA is engaging with scientific experts to ensure
that the most up to date, cutting-edge science is the basis
of any right whale conservation plan. This includes use of
state-of-the-art modelling and objective research that will
guide effective management decisions.

3. Conservation
The MLA is working with Maine lobstermen to continue
efforts to develop innovative gear solutions that protect
right whales and support the continuation of Maine’s
lobstering heritage.

4. Communications
MLA is building support to ensure the community
understands that Maine’s lobstering heritage is at risk
and may disappear forever, erasing generations of
locally-owned and operated fishing businesses and the
economic engine of Maine’s coastal communities.

MAINE TOWN & CITY JANUARY 2023 11



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
WARRANT COMMITTEE 

Minutes from 

Tuesday, January 31, 2023 

Northeast Harbor Meeting Hall and via Zoom 

Members Present:  Phil Lichtenstein, Jerry Miller, Kathy Miller, Katrina Carter, Tim 
Murphy, Mike Olsen, Lauren Kuffler, Jesse Hartson, Jamie Blaine, Stephanie Reece, 
Blakeslee Bell, Owen Craighead 

Zoom:  Rosemary Matchak, Donna Beals, Craig Roebuck 

Excused:  Bill Ferm, Carmen Sanford, Sam McGee, Megan Bailey, Tate Bushell, 
Rodney Eason 

Absent:  Marina McGarr 

Guests:  Jake Wright, Treasurer/Finance Director; John Lemoine, Harbormaster; Brian 
Henkel, Public Works Director; Ben Jacobs, Highway Superintendant 

1. 6:00pm  Call Meeting to order 

2. 6:05pm  Harbormaster John Lemoine briefed the WC on the the marina. Of note 
were issues pertaining to ongoing staffing challenges and the new pier project 
with a projected completion/installation in 6-7 years. 

3. 6:10pm  Public Works Director Brian Henkel and Highway Superintendant Ben 
Jabobs briefed the WC on the Public Works Budget which will see an increase of 
7.6% over the previous year. 

4. 6:25pm  The WC broached issues pertaining to the completion of the NEH Main 
St. project, the Babson Creek Bridge replacement, the status of recycling at the 
Town Garage and the status of the Town’s association with the former FiberRight 
facility in Hamden. 

5. 6:40pm Adjournment 

Upcoming Meeting: Tuesday, February 7 at 6:00pm at the meeting hall and by Zoom. 
Focus:  Public Safety Budget Review with Police Chief James Willis and Fire Chief Mike 
Bender  



Respectfully submitted,

Owen Craighead 
Recording Secretary



m:\2023 cc meetings\january 18\,2023\january 18, 2023 csm\january 18, 2023csm minutes docx 

 

COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Learn more about HANCOCK COUNTY by visiting 

www.co.hancock.me.us 

 Audio recordings of the meeting are available upon request 

 
 

The special meeting of the Hancock County Commissioners was brought to order by 

Commissioner Paradis at 8:30 a.m. on Tuesday January 18, 2023.  Commissioner Clark, 

Commissioner Wombacher, County Administrator Michael Crooker were also present, as well as 

several Department Heads.  The meeting was held using a hybrid format and Department Heads 

and members of the public were able to attend in person or via Zoom. 

 

Adjustments to agenda:  

MOTION: Move to approve the Agenda as presented with the following additions, add to 

8(a) the name of Mary-Anne Saxl of Surry at $72,000 annual salary, add an 8(b) to include 

approval of the Stray Animal Contract with the Small Animal Clinic in Ellsworth, to add 

to 5(a) the name of Amy Davenport of Blue Hill, and add 5(b) to name of Michelle 

Campbell of Lamoine. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Public Comment: None 

 

Meeting Minutes: 

MOTION: Move to approve the January 4, 2023 Regular Meeting as presented. (Clark 

Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

EMA: 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Christopher Kunch as Administrative 

Assistant to the EMA and Airport at Step 8H. (Clark/Wombacher 2-0 Clark voted no, 

motion passed) 

 

Airport: 

MOTION: Move to approve the $3,220.20 contract change order to AIP-057. 

(Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Jacobs Engineering contract for Airfield Remarking and 

Crack and Sealing in the amount of $61,414.57 and the Chair to sign. (Clark/Wombacher 

3-0, motion passed) 

 

Probate: 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Amy Davenport of Blue Hill as part-time, 

on call as needed Probate Clerk at Step 6A. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Michelle Campbell of Lamoine as full-time 

Probate Clerk at Step 6C. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

 

http://www.co.hancock.me.us/


m:\2023 cc meetings\january 18\,2023\january 18, 2023 csm\january 18, 2023csm minutes docx 

 

RCC: 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Brynn Jellison as full-time Dispatcher 

effective January 21, 2023 at Step 9C. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Jail: 

MOTION: Move to approve the transfer of Jillian Bye and to congratulate her on her 

promotion to Sergeant. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Kadedra Kidd as part-time, on call as 

needed Corrections Officer effective January 17, 2023 at Step 9A. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

County Administrator: 

MOTION: Move to approve the employment of Mary-Anne Saxl of Surry as Human 

Resource Manager at the 2023 annual rate of pay of $72,000. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, 

motion passed) 

 

MOTION: Move to approve the Stray Animal Contract with the Small Animal Clinic for 

2023. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed) 

 

Commissioners: 

MOTION: Move to go into Executive Session under MRSA Title 1§405 subsection D for 

the purpose of discussing union negotiating matters. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion 

passed)  

 

MOTION: Move to adjourn. (Clark/Wombacher 3-0, motion passed)  

Meeting was adjourned at  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Patrice Crossman 

Clerk 



 

 

Municipal Review Committee Board President Karen Fussell speaks to the board, members and the 
public from the Orono town office during an online town hall meeting Feb. 7. 
ISLANDER PHOTO BY ANNE BERLEANT 

• Facebook 
• Twitter 
• Email 
• Print 
• Copy article link 
• Save 

BAR HARBOR — If the Municipal Review Committee (MRC) does not come up with 
financing to reopen the Hampden waste facility in three to six months, the $80 
million plant will not open, MRC Board President Karen Fussell said in a Feb. 7 online 
town hall meeting. 

https://www.facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mdislander.com%2Fnews%2Fmrc-at-critical-juncture-with-hampden-trash-plant%2Farticle_595adea8-ac8d-11ed-a27f-6f0fafffc3d0.html%3Futm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_source%3Dfacebook%26utm_campaign%3Duser-share
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?&text=MRC%20at%20%27critical%20juncture%27%20with%20Hampden%20trash%20plant&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mdislander.com%2Fnews%2Fmrc-at-critical-juncture-with-hampden-trash-plant%2Farticle_595adea8-ac8d-11ed-a27f-6f0fafffc3d0.html%3Futm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_source%3Dtwitter%26utm_campaign%3Duser-share
mailto:?subject=%5BMount%20Desert%20Islander%5D%20MRC%20at%20%27critical%20juncture%27%20with%20Hampden%20trash%20plant&body=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.mdislander.com%2Fnews%2Fmrc-at-critical-juncture-with-hampden-trash-plant%2Farticle_595adea8-ac8d-11ed-a27f-6f0fafffc3d0.html%3Futm_medium%3Dsocial%26utm_source%3Demail%26utm_campaign%3Duser-share
javascript:window.print()
https://www.mdislander.com/content/tncms/live/


“We’re at a critical juncture,” Fussell said. “The reality of our situation is we have to 
resolve in the next three to six months or we will all have to accept the fact that the 
facility will not process waste.” 

The meeting came one week after the MRC ended its period of exclusivity with Revere 
Capital Advisors, the second prospective financial partner in reopening the facility. 
The MRC now owns the plant, which has been nonoperational since May 2020 after 
Coastal Resources of Maine (CRM) defaulted on creditors and loan payments. But it 
needs money to restart and operate the facility. 

Now, as the facility’s closure nears the three-year mark, Fussell and Carroll both said 
time is of the essence. 

Revere Capital is still interested, Fussell said, but given MRC’s “increasingly limited 
financial capacity,” it also had to look at other options. 

Solicitation letters went out to 10 parties that have shown interest starting “a flurry 
of activity,” MRC Executive Director Michael Carroll said, with four signing 
nondisclosure agreements. In the solicitation letter, the MRC stated its willingness to 
modify existing equipment or make significant technical changes. This is the first 
time the MRC has offered that option. 

Responses were due by Feb. 10, with the MRC making its decision by March 1 to the 
prospective partner for a mid-April closing – if there is a buyer. Otherwise, it will 
“consider support from MRC members and Augusta,” Fussell said. Members were 
invited to a Feb. 14 meeting to be held in executive session. 

Carroll also pointed to a recent Maine Department of Environmental Protection 
report stating landfills in Maine will be at capacity in five years. 

“Penobscot Energy Recovery Company (PERC) also has capacity issues and its own 
struggles,” he said. 



“Nobody wants our waste going to landfills,” Fussell said. 

The MRC is a group of 115 Maine cities and towns that have joined together as a 
nonprofit organization to manage their municipal solid waste issues. It formed in 
1991 while under contract to deliver members’ municipal solid waste to PERC but 
signed a 15-year contract with Coastal Resources of Maine that began in 2018. 

The MRC has invested a total of $9 million in the plant, including $1.5 million to 
purchase the facility last year and $6 million to build an access road that it signed 
over to the town of Hampden last year. 

Correction 
An earlier version of this article incorrectly stated the $225/ton tipping fees 
mentioned by MRC Executive Director Michael Carroll was how much Penobscot 
Energy Recovery Co. charged for municipal solid waste. The dollar amount referenced 
the average tipping fee that MRC members are paying on their own for recyclables 
sent to recycling processors. 

 



 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  





From: William Hanley
To: Durlin Lunt
Cc: Town Clerk
Subject: Fwd: Approval of attorney for MacQuinn appeal
Date: Friday, February 10, 2023 8:54:59 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Durlin,

I’m writing today in support of Attorney Collier’s request to bring Zach Brandwein onboard as
counsel support for the ongoing Quarry proceedings.

Given the monumental task of corralling the record, facilitating due process and appeasing
public feedback, having a co-counsel assisting Mr. Collier is anticipated to be beneficial to
expediting the review process.

Plus,  Mr. Brandwein’s involvement may help smooth out Mr. Collier’s relations with the
public, applicant and board.

Please convey this recommendation to the BOS, if there’s any input needed, I’m happy to
attend the next BOS meeting.

Best-Bill
_________________________
William M. Hanley, AIA
WMH ARCHITECTS
10 Neighborhood Road
P.O. Box 399
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662

tel: 207-276-2100
email: wmh@wmharchitects.com

www.wmharchitects.com

Begin forwarded message:

From: Kim Keene <ceo@mtdesert.org>
Subject: RE: Approval of attorney for MacQuinn appeal
Date: February 6, 2023 at 3:56:37 PM EST
To: William Hanley <wmh@wmharchitects.com>

Bill-
 

mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com
mailto:ceo@mtdesert.org
mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com


To add Zachary Brandwein, Esq. of Bernstein Shur as co-counsel for the
MacQuinn appeal it needs to go before the Board of Selectmen for review and
approval, as he is not one of the approved attorneys on the retainer list.  Also, to
have Mr. Brandwein as co-counsel for the MacQuinn appeal you as Planning
Board Chair need to submit to the Board of Selectmen a statement justifying the
need in hiring him. 
 
Thank you.
 

Kimberly Keene
Code Enforcement Officer
Town of Mount Desert
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662
ceo@mtdesert.org
Phone:  (207) 276-5731 or 276-5531
Fax:  (207) 276-3232
 

From: William Hanley <wmh@wmharchitects.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 2:03 PM
To: Kim Keene <ceo@mtdesert.org>
Subject: Fwd: Approval of attorney for MacQuinn appeal
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Hi Kim, 
 
I don’t have any issue with this, but I guess the PB needs to be polled.
 
Should I do that or should you?
 
Best-Bill
_________________________
William M. Hanley, AIA
WMH ARCHITECTS
10 Neighborhood Road
P.O. Box 399
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662

tel: 207-276-2100
email: wmh@wmharchitects.com

www.wmharchitects.com

mailto:ceo@mtdesert.org
mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com
mailto:ceo@mtdesert.org
mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.wmharchitects.com%2F&data=05%7C01%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7C2efdefb4584a41a50d9608db0b6e6097%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638116340985356000%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NwMboP9msb%2FHGaUO3fqz8wNGznPQUCRsfjaH5ChZIBs%3D&reserved=0


 
 

Begin forwarded message:
 
From: William Hanley <wmh@wmharchitects.com>
Subject: Re: Approval of attorney for MacQuinn appeal
Date: February 6, 2023 at 2:01:28 PM EST
To: James Collier <james@collierfahey.com>
 
Hi James, 
 
Thanks for forwarding the original email.
 
I do not have any objections to having Zachary Brandwein as co-counsel,
my understanding is primarily a paper pusher, process facilitator, and you
will be the primary counsel.
 
I will reach out to the PB today.
 
Best-Bill
_________________________
William M. Hanley, AIA
WMH ARCHITECTS
10 Neighborhood Road
P.O. Box 399
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662

tel: 207-276-2100
email: wmh@wmharchitects.com

www.wmharchitects.com
 
 

On Feb 6, 2023, at 1:29 PM, James Collier
<james@collierfahey.com> wrote:
 
Dear Bill,
 
Nice to talk with you today as always.
 
I would be OK with you approving the idea

mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com
mailto:james@collierfahey.com
mailto:wmh@wmharchitects.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.wmharchitects.com%2F&data=05%7C01%7Ctownclerk%40mtdesert.org%7C2efdefb4584a41a50d9608db0b6e6097%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638116340985356000%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NwMboP9msb%2FHGaUO3fqz8wNGznPQUCRsfjaH5ChZIBs%3D&reserved=0
mailto:james@collierfahey.com


as Chair as well.  That way I can tell Kimto
talk to you the next time she starts whining
about the cost.  Thank you.
 
James
James W.J. Collier, Esq.
Collier & Fahey, P.A., 109 Main Street, PO Box 171, Bar Harbor, ME 
04609   Tel: 207-376-9121
 
This message is from a law firm and may contain information that is
confidential or legally privileged.  If you are not the intended recipient,
please immediately advise the sender by reply email that this message has
been inadvertently transmitted to you and delete this email from your
system.   THANK YOU for your cooperation.  Under IRS standards of
professional practice, certain tax advice must meet requirements as to form
and substance.  To assure compliance with these standards, we disclose to
you that this communication is not intended or written to be used, and
cannot be used, for the purpose of avoiding penalties.
 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: James Collier <james@collierfahey.com>
Date: Mon, Jan 30, 2023 at 11:40 AM
Subject: Approval of attorney for MacQuinn appeal
To: William Hanley <whanley@mtdesert.org>
Cc: Durlin Lunt <manager@mtdesert.org>, Zachary B.
Brandwein <zbrandwein@bernsteinshur.com>
 

Dear Bill,
 
If you have not done so already, would you
please ask the Planning Board to approve of
my choice of Zachary Brandwein, Esq. of
Bernstein Shur as co-counsel for the
MacQuinn appeal?  Zach, who is an associate
of David Soley, worked with me on the
campground appeals in Tremont.  I will still
write the brief and be in charge of the
process of the appeal, but Zach is invaluable
in keeping all of the court filing stuff in order,
and in keeping up with the huge paper flow
that litigation has become.
 
Thank you.
 
James
James W.J. Collier, Esq.
Collier & Fahey, P.A., 109 Main Street, PO Box 171, Bar Harbor, ME 
04609   Tel: 207-376-9121
 

mailto:james@collierfahey.com
mailto:whanley@mtdesert.org
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:zbrandwein@bernsteinshur.com


This message is from a law firm and may contain information that is
confidential or legally privileged.  If you are not the intended recipient,
please immediately advise the sender by reply email that this message has
been inadvertently transmitted to you and delete this email from your
system.   THANK YOU for your cooperation.  Under IRS standards of
professional practice, certain tax advice must meet requirements as to form
and substance.  To assure compliance with these standards, we disclose to
you that this communication is not intended or written to be used, and
cannot be used, for the purpose of avoiding penalties.



 

February 16, 2023 

Selectboard, 

Background 
 
At a special town meeting on September 16, 1970, the Town accepted a gift of $1,000 from Horace R. 
and Mary P. Reynolds to be held in trust used to fund the perpetual care of lots 83 and 84 in the Forest 
Hill Cemetery at Northeast Harbor and for flowers annually on Memorial Day, and to provide any 
unexpended income annually to be awarded to a member or members of the graduating class of Mount 
Desert Island Regional High School.  This gift was increased by $5,000 in 1973 and by $3,509.69 in 1976 
through bequests from the Reynold’s estate.   

At a special town meeting held on May 31, 1966, the Town voted to accept a gift of $3,000 to be held in 
trust from Frank F. Stanley.  The proceeds of this trust are to be used annually, $50 going to the 
maintenance of the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field in Northeast Harbor (We assume this is the field at the 
elementary school.); $100 for a scholarship to a member of the graduating class of the Mount Desert 
Island Regional High School; and the balance of the income for further improvement, upkeep and 
maintenance of the infield at the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field. 

These funds have been placed in the Municipal Investment Trust Fund (Fund 500) and the investment 
has been placed with the Trust Services Department at Bar Harbor Bank and Trust. 

Analysis 

At the May 26, 2022 Selectboard meeting, The Mount Desert Regional High School was authorized to 
grant a $200 Reynolds stipend and $100 Stanley scholarship.  

Subsequent to this authorization, the scholarship committee at the High School selected appropriate 
graduates of the May 2022 High School class to receive these awards. The awards are conditional upon 
satisfactory transcripts from their first semester in college. After receipt of acceptable transcript(s), the 
scholarship committee requests that the Treasurer’s office remit the awarded funds. In conversation 
with MDI HS Business Manager, Wendy Littlefield, the following was identified as a more efficient 
procedure for administering the scholarships: 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


- The Office of the Treasurer brings forward a recommendation to the Selectboard for amounts to 
be authorized for scholarship/stipend awards prior to May graduation in accordance with the 
intent of the fund establishment documents. 

- The Office of the Treasurer remits checks to Mount Desert High School in the amounts of the 
Selectboard approved scholarship/stipend to be held by Mount Desert High School until 
subsequent requirements are met and funds may be remitted to award recipients. 

- Mount Desert High School, in conjunction with the scholarship committee, will follow past 
practice of selecting award recipients in accordance with the intent of the fund establishment 
documents and the Selectboard’s intent. 

- Mount Desert High School, in conjunction with the scholarship committee, will review the first 
semester transcripts of the award recipients and remit the funds held in their possession, if 
appropriate. 

- If remittance of the award funds is deemed inappropriate by Mount Desert High School, in 
conjunction with the scholarship committee, the funds will be remitted back to the Town of 
Mount Desert to be re-applied to the Trust fund from which they originated. 

Recommendation 

I recommend that the procedure identified above be adopted to streamline the remittance of 
scholarship funds.  

 

Thank you, 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 

 

 





 

NEW BUSINESS 

  





02/14/2023 09:15    |Town of Mount Desert                                                                                  |        
6905dlun            |NEXT YEAR / CURRENT YEAR BUDGET ANALYSIS                                                                
PROJECTION:        2024 2023-2024 Budget Projection                        FOR PERIO   

ACCOUNTS FOR: 2022 2023 2023 2023 2024 PCT
General Fund ACTUAL ORIG BUD REVISED BUD ACTUAL   DEPT REQ CHANGE

851 3rd Party Request Agencies
851 Libraries

59101 NEH LIBRARY
1885151 59101      NEH LIBRARY 20,500$          20,500$          20,500$          20,500$          -$                -100.00%

Moved to Department 211

59102 SH LIBRARY
1885151 59102      SH LIBRARY 4,000$            4,000$            4,000$            4,000$            -$                -100.00%

Moved to Department 211

59103 SV LIBRARY
1885151 59103      SV LIBRARY 11,000$          11,000$          11,000$          11,000$          -$                -100.00%

Moved to Department 211

TOTAL Libraries 35,500$          35,500$          35,500$          35,500$          -$                -100.00%

852 Village Improvement
59104 PRETTY MARSH COMM ASSOC

1885152 59104      PRETTY MARSH COMM ASSOC 9,500$            -$                -$                -$                2,500$            0.00%

59111 NEH VILLAGE IMPROVE SOC
1885152 59111      NEH VILLAGE IMPROVE SOC 5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            5,000$            0.00%

59112 SH VILLAGE IMPROVE SOC
1885152 59112      SH VILLAGE IMPROVE SOC 52,815$          55,000$          55,000$          55,000$          55,000$          0.00%

 
 

59113 SV VILLAGE IMPROVE SOC  
1885152 59113      SV VILLAGE IMPROVE SOC 3,000$            3,000$            3,000$            3,000$            3,000$            0.00%

 
 

59114 MDI HISTORICAL SOC  
1885152 59114      MDI HISTORICAL SOC 2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            -$                -100.00%

Moved to Historical/Museum  
 

59115 GREAT HARBOR MARITIME MUSEUM  
1885152 59115      GREAT HARBOR MARITIME MUSEUM 5,500$            5,500$            5,500$            5,500$            -$                -100.00%

Moved to Historical/Museum  
 

TOTAL Village Improvement 78,315$          71,000$          71,000$          71,000$          65,500$          -7.75%

853 Recreation
59121 NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE-GENERAL

1885153 59121      NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE-GENERAL 47,000$          50,000$          50,000$          50,000$          -$                -100.00%
Moved to Department 211

59122 NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE-YOUTH
1885153 59122      NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE-YOUTH 38,000$          15,000$          15,000$          15,000$          -$                -100.00%

Moved to Department 211

59123 NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE-COMM EVENTS
1885153 59123      NEIGHBORHHOD HOUSE-CM EVENTS 3,000$            23,000$          23,000$          23,000$          -$                -100.00%

Moved to Department 211

59124 ACADIA YOUTH SPORTS
1885153 59124      ACADIA LITTLE LEAGUE 2,000$            2,000$            2,000$            2,000$            5,000$            150.00%

Moved to Department 211

TOTAL Recreation 90,000$          90,000$          90,000$          90,000$          5,000$            -94.44%

854 Social Service Agencies
59130 WOMENS INFANT & CHILDREN PROG

1885154 59130      WOMENS INFANT & CHILDREN PROG 675$               495$               495$               495$               500$               1.01%
 
 

59131 ISLAND CONNECTIONS  
1885154 59131      ISLAND CONNECTIONS 2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            0.00%

 
 

59132 AMERICAN RED CROSS  
1885154 59132      AMERICAN RED CROSS 3,500$            3,500$            3,500$            3,500$            3,500$            0.00%

 
 

59133 EASTERN AREA AGENCY  



ACCOUNTS FOR: 2022 2023 2023 2023 2024 PCT
General Fund ACTUAL ORIG BUD REVISED BUD ACTUAL   DEPT REQ CHANGE

1885154 59133      EASTERN AREA AGENCY 500$               500$               500$               500$               750$               50.00%
 
 

59134 MD NURSING ASSOCIATION  
1885154 59134      MD NURSING ASSOCIATION 35,000$          35,000$          35,000$          35,000$          35,000$          0.00%

 
 

59136 DOWNEAST HORIZONS  
1885154 59136      DOWNEAST HORIZONS 5,600$            6,000$            6,000$            6,000$            6,000$            0.00%

 
59137 MD NURSERY SCHOOL  

1885154 59137      MD NURSERY SCHOOL 2,000$            9,250$            9,250$            9,250$            20,000$          116.22%
 
 

59138 ISLAND EXPLORER  
1885154 59138      ISLAND EXPLORER -$                14,000$          14,000$          14,000$          -$                -100.00%

 
 

59139 MD CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
1885154 59139      MD CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 27,500$          27,500$          27,500$          27,500$          28,500$          3.64%

 
 

59140 HOSPICE VOL  OF HANCOCK CNTY  
1885154 59140      HOSPICE VOL OF HANCOCK CNTY 1,500$            1,500$            1,500$            1,500$            1,500$            0.00%

 
 

59141 BAR HARBOR FOOD PANTRY  
1885154 59141      BAR HARBOR FOOD PANTRY 3,500$            3,500$            3,500$            3,500$            3,500$            0.00%

 
 

59142 DOWNEAST AIDS NETWORK  
1885154 59142      DOWNEAST AIDS NETWORK 500$               -$                -$                -$                -$                0.00%

 
 

59143 NORTHERN LIGHT HOMECARE  
1885154 59143      NO LIGHT HOMECARE & HOSPICE 1,200$            1,200$            1,200$            1,200$            -$                -100.00%

 
 

59144 DE COMMUNITY PARTNERS  
1885154 59144      DE COMMUNITY PARTNERS 1,504$            2,150$            2,150$            2,150$            -$                -100.00%

 
 

59145 MD LODGE  
1885154 59145      MD LODGE 1,500$            1,500$            1,500$            1,500$            -$                -100.00%

 
 

59149 LIFE FLIGHT FOUNDATION  
1885154 59149      LIFE FLIGHT FOUNDATION 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            0.00%

 
 

59152 EMMAUS HOMELESS SHELTER  
1885154 59152      EMMAUS HOMELESS SHELTER 2,053$            2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            2,500$            0.00%

 
 

59153 MDI CAMPFIRE COALITION/NHH  
1885154 59153      MDI CAMPFIRE COALITION/NHH 3,000$            3,000$            3,000$            3,000$            3,000$            0.00%

 
 

59154 ACADIA FAMILY CENTER  
1885154 59154      ACADIA FAMILY CENTER 5,000$            -$                -$                -$                -$                0.00%

 
 

59156 ISLAND HOUSING TRUST  
1885154 59156      ISLAND HOUSING TRUST 7,500$            7,500$            7,500$            7,500$            7,500$            0.00%

 
 

59157 NEH AMBULANCE SERVICE INC  
1885154 59157      NEH AMBULANCE SERVICE INC 20,000$          -$                -$                -$                -$                0.00%

 
 

59158 FAMILIES FIRST COMM CENTER  
1885154 59158      FAMILIES FIRST COMMUNITY CTR 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            -$                -100.00%

 
 

59159 HEALTH EQUITY ALLIANCE  
1885154 59159      HEALTH EQUITY ALLIANCE 500$               1,500$            1,500$            1,580$            500$               -66.67%

 
 

59160 SPCA-HANCOCK COUNTY  
1885154 59160      SPCA-HANCOCK COUNTY 1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            2,000$            100.00%

 



ACCOUNTS FOR: 2022 2023 2023 2023 2024 PCT
General Fund ACTUAL ORIG BUD REVISED BUD ACTUAL   DEPT REQ CHANGE

 
59161 Eagles' Nest Clubhouse  

1885154 59161      Eagles' Nest Clubhouse -$                500$               500$               500$               1,000$            100.00%
 
 

59162 Ellsworth Free Medical Clinic  
1885154 59162      Ellsworth Free Medical Clinic -$                1,000$            1,000$            1,000$            -$                -100.00%

 
 

TOTAL Social Service Agencie 128,032$        127,595$        127,595$        127,675$        119,250$        -6.54%

855 Historical/Museums
59114 MDI HISTORICAL SOC

1885155 59114      MDI HISTORICAL SOC -$                -$                -$                -$                15,500$          0.00%
Was under VIS FY 23  

 
59115 GREAT HARBOR MARITIME MUSEUM  

1885155 59115      GREAT HARBOR MARITIME MUSEUM -$                -$                -$                -$                5,500$            0.00%
Was under vIS FY 23  

 
TOTAL Historical/Museums -$                -$                -$                -$                21,000$          0.00%

 
 

TOTAL 3rd Party Request Agen 331,847$        324,095$        324,095$        324,175$        210,750$        -34.97%

Add $143,000 for Neighborhood House, Island Explorer , NEH Library, somesville Library, and Seal Harbor  that moved to Department 211
and the total third party requests are $353,750 compared to $324,095 for FY 23. 9.15% increase



SB
 R

ev
ie

w
 

D
at

e
G

ro
up

 N
am

e
E

m
ai

l
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

 S
B

 
R

ec
co

m
m

en
ds

20
23

 R
eq

ue
st

%
 C

ha
ng

e
20

22
 F

un
de

d 
A

m
ou

nt
20

22
 R

eq
ue

st

2/
21

/2
02

3
A

ca
di

an
 Y

ou
th

 S
po

rts
to

ny
.m

ck
im

@
th

ef
irs

t.c
om

$5
,0

00
.0

0
15

0.
00

%
$2

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,0

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

A
m

er
ic

an
 R

ed
 C

ro
ss

/P
in

e 
Tr

ee
 C

ha
pt

er
Jo

rd
an

, L
au

re
n 

<l
au

re
n.

jo
rd

an
@

re
dc

ro
ss

.o
rg

>
$3

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

B
ar

 H
ar

bo
r F

oo
d 

Pa
nt

ry
to

m
@

bh
fp

.o
rg

 
$3

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$3

,5
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

D
ow

ne
as

t H
or

iz
on

s I
nc

.
aj

oh
ns

on
@

de
hi

.o
rg

$6
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$6

,0
00

.0
0

2/
21

/2
02

3
Ea

gl
es

' N
es

t C
lu

bh
ou

se
ag

rin
dl

e@
oh

im
ai

ne
.o

rg
$1

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
%

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

2/
21

/2
02

3
Ea

st
er

n 
A

re
a 

A
ge

nc
y 

O
n 

A
gi

ng
df

ry
e@

ea
aa

.o
rg

$7
50

.0
0

50
.0

0%
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

Em
m

au
s H

om
el

es
s S

he
lte

r
di

re
ct

or
@

em
m

au
ss

he
lte

r.o
rg

$2
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

2/
21

/2
02

3
G

re
at

 H
ar

bo
r M

ar
iti

m
e 

M
us

eu
m

gr
ea

th
ar

bo
rm

m
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

$5
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$5
,5

00
.0

0
$5

,5
00

.0
0

2/
21

/2
02

3
H

ea
lth

 E
qu

ity
 A

lli
an

ce
 

jil
l@

m
ai

ne
he

al
th

eq
ui

ty
.o

rg
$5

00
.0

0
-6

6.
67

%
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

H
os

pi
ce

 V
ol

un
te

er
s o

f H
an

co
ck

 C
ou

nt
y

jw
tu

ck
er

@
ho

sp
ic

eo
fh

an
co

ck
.o

rg
$1

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$1

,5
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

Is
la

nd
 C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
di

re
ct

or
@

is
lc

on
ne

ct
io

ns
.o

rg
$2

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$2
,5

00
.0

0
2/

21
/2

02
3

Is
la

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 T

ru
st

m
ob

yr
ne

@
is

la
nd

ho
us

in
gt

ru
st

.o
rg

$7
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$7
,5

00
.0

0
$7

,5
00

.0
0

2/
21

/2
02

3
Li

fe
fli

gh
t F

ou
nd

at
io

n
am

ac
m

ill
an

@
lif

ef
lig

ht
m

ai
ne

.o
rg

$1
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

2/
27

/2
02

3
M

t. 
D

es
er

t C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

di
re

ct
or

@
m

ou
nt

de
se

rtc
ha

m
be

r.o
rg

$2
8,

50
0.

00
3.

64
%

$2
7,

50
0.

00
$6

5,
00

0.
00

2/
27

/2
02

3
M

t. 
D

es
er

t I
sl

an
d 

C
am

pf
ire

 C
oa

lit
io

n
an

ne
m

ar
ie

@
th

en
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

dh
ou

se
.c

om
$3

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
2/

27
/2

02
3

M
t. 

D
es

er
t I

sl
an

d 
H

is
to

ric
al

 S
oc

ie
ty

ra
ne

y@
m

di
hi

st
or

y.
or

g
Li

sa
 M

ur
ra

y 
to

 p
re

s
$1

5,
50

0.
00

52
0.

00
%

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

2/
27

/2
02

3
M

t. 
D

es
er

t N
ur

se
ry

 S
ch

oo
l

m
dn

s.s
ar

ah
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

$2
0,

00
0.

00
11

6.
22

%
$9

,2
50

.0
0

$9
,2

50
.0

0
2/

27
/2

02
3

M
t. 

D
es

er
t N

ur
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
am

y@
m

ou
nt

de
se

rtn
ur

si
ng

.o
rg

A
ng

el
a 

B
al

ac
co

 to
 p

$3
5,

00
0.

00
0.

00
%

$3
5,

00
0.

00
$3

5,
00

0.
00

2/
27

/2
02

3
N

or
th

ea
st

 H
ar

bo
r V

IS
jh

s@
kn

ow
ap

pr
.c

om
$5

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

%
$5

,0
00

.0
0

$5
,0

00
.0

0
2/

27
/2

02
3

Pr
et

ty
 M

ar
sh

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n
pa

nc
oe

m
di

@
gm

ai
l.c

om
$2

,5
00

.0
0

#D
IV

/0
!

$0
.0

0
-

2/
27

/2
02

3
Se

al
 H

ar
bo

r V
IS

dr
br

ow
n4

31
@

ro
ad

ru
nn

er
.c

om
$5

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

%
$5

5,
00

0.
00

$5
5,

00
0.

00
2/

27
/2

02
3

So
m

es
vi

lle
 V

IS
th

om
as

jfe
rn

al
d@

gm
ai

l.c
om

$3
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
%

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

2/
27

/2
02

3
SP

C
A

 o
f H

an
co

ck
 C

ou
nt

y
rh

ia
nn

on
.l@

sp
ca

ha
nc

oc
kc

ou
nt

y.
or

g
$2

,0
00

.0
0

10
0.

00
%

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

2/
27

/2
02

3
W

IC
 N

ut
rit

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

je
w

in
g@

m
ai

ne
fa

m
ily

pl
an

ni
ng

.o
rg

$5
00

.0
0

1.
01

%
$4

95
.0

0
$4

95
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$2
10

,7
50

.0
0

17
.2

5%
$1

79
,7

45
.0

0
$2

17
,2

45
.0

0

mailto:tony.mckim@thefirst.com
mailto:tom@bhfp.org
mailto:ajohnson@dehi.org
mailto:agrindle@ohimaine.org
mailto:dfrye@eaaa.org
mailto:director@emmausshelter.org
mailto:greatharbormm@gmail.com
mailto:jill@mainehealthequity.org
mailto:jwtucker@hospiceofhancock.org
mailto:director@islconnections.org
mailto:mobyrne@islandhousingtrust.org
mailto:amacmillan@lifeflightmaine.org
mailto:director@mountdesertchamber.org
mailto:annemarie@theneighborhoodhouse.com
mailto:raney@mdihistory.org
mailto:mdns.sarah@gmail.com
mailto:amy@mountdesertnursing.org
mailto:jhs@knowappr.com
mailto:pancoemdi@gmail.com
mailto:drbrown431@roadrunner.com
mailto:thomasjfernald@gmail.com
mailto:rhiannon.l@spcahancockcounty.org
mailto:jewing@mainefamilyplanning.org










 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT MANDATORY 
QUESTIONNAIRE  FOR PROPOSED FY 2023-

2024 BUDGET REQUESTS 
 

Questionnaire Due Date: 
 

Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee 
Meeting Date to Review: 

February 3, 2023 
February 21, 2023 (A-L) 
February 22, 2023 (M-Z) 

 
Organization Name American Red Cross of Northern New England 
Status (ex: 50l(c)(3))  53-0196605  

 Mailing Address:                        2401 Congress Street, Portland, Maine 04102 
 

 
Physical Address (if different)  
Phone Number:                           207-233-4217 

Contact Person:                           Lauren Jordan 
 

Contact Email:                            supportnne@redcross.org 
 

Attach most recent Financial Report _Attached_ 
Gross operating budget:  $7,978,591 Gross payroll  $4,026,443 
Salary and other compensation of highest paid employee:    Not Disclosed 
Salary and other compensation of lowest paid employee:   Not Disclosed 
 

Number of Paid Employees:   40  Full Time  0 Part Time  
Number of volunteers: 1,611 

 
Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents of the Town 
of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents of other island towns in this narrative): 

We respond to disasters, locally these are most commonly home fires, to provide those effected by 
them with emergency shelter, financial assistance, and an array of other supportive services. We 
were not called to any fires in Mount Desert last year; however throughout our three state region  
we were on the scene at 533 incidents and provided services to 2,058 individuals. 

 
Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be 
counted once toward the total regardless of how many different programs/services are provided 
to him/her):    
We did not respond to any home fires in TOMD last fiscal year. The rest of our services are 
reported by county.  
 
How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? N/A 
 
Estimated value of services provided to residents of the TOMD: We did not respond to any home 
fires in TOMD last fiscal year. 
 
What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? Our services are provided free of 
charge. 
 
Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of 
the TOMD: 
We provide disaster response support, most commonly in the wake of a home fire. We work to 
mitigate the risk of home fires by installing free smoke detectors in homes that need them and 
educating families and individuals on home fire safety. We also collect and distribute essential 
blood and blood products to hospitals throughout our region. We offer services to active and 



 

veteran members of the armed forces including emergency communications and resiliency 
training, and we offer affordable First Aid and CPR classes in the communities we serve. Please 
see the attached service delivery which outlines our services and individuals served in the 
Hancock County. 

 
What are your plans for fundraisers? 
We rely entirely on support from individuals, corporations, foundations, and towns. We have a 
local team of fundraisers who work with major donors in our area, and we partner with our 
national office who oversees a direct mail program.

 

Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire 
 
Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMD. 
i.e.: If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans 
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand. 

 
The five lines of service of the American Red Cross are:  

 Disaster Preparedness and Response  
 Blood Acquisition and Distribution 
 Training services (first aid, CPR)  
 Services to the Armed Forces (emergency communications, resiliency training, 

financial assistance)  
 International Services (emergency communications)  

Each line of service would not be impacted by a potential decrease in funding by TOMD. Should a 
disaster strike in TOMD, the Red Cross will be there to provide a place to stay, food to eat and 
emotional support. We believe that all of this work enhances the quality of life for your friends and 
neighbors in TOMD. 
 
Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $3,500 
 
Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years: 
 
2022: $3,500    $2021: $3,500    2020: $3,700 
 
Note:  Prior  awards  and/or  current  requests are   not   indicators  or   guarantees   of 
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves 
the right  to recommend an amount of their  choosing for appropriation. 
 
Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMD would be spent during the 
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%, 
Benefits 25%, etc.) 
 

We are requesting funds for our general operating budget, which is attached. 
 

   February 3, 2023 
Signature of Requester                                    Date of Request 

 
Lauren Jordan, Development Coordinator 



 

Printed Name and Title of Requester 
 

Reminder: A representative  from  your organization  shall  attend  the combined  Board  of 
Selectmen/Warrant Committee  meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY  February 21, 2023 (A-L 
organizations) or THURSDAY February 23, 2023 (M-Z  organizations), in the Meeting 
Room, Town Hall, 21Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be available  via 
Zoom) in order for the reguest to be considered. Attendance is also recommended at the May 
2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00p.m. in the Kelley Auditorium, Mount Desert 
Elementary School, 8 Joy Road, Northeast Harbor. 

 
Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the 
Town Office 276-5531 or by email at manager<Zcmtdesert.org or townclerk@.mtdesert.org 

 
Special Note:   Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment if 
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting,ꞏ rather, the Treasurer will make 
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by 
September 30, 2024). 

 
 
 

I:\Budgets\3rd  Party Requests\2023 TPR\3RD  PARTY Questionnaire  2023.docx 
Page 2 of2 



AGENCY

REVENUE
Federated 65,000                    

Monetary Contributions

  Corporate Contributions 835,807                 

  Foundation Contributions 325,136                 

  Individual Contributions 1,695,002              

Net Special Events ‐                                

Legacies & Bequests 492,881                 

In‐Kind Contributions 308,063                 

Income From Endowments 109,519                 

Contracts 241,621                 

Products & Services 1,524,976              

Other Revenues 80,948                    

TOTAL LOCAL REVENUE 5,678,953           
   Support from other ARC units 2,299,638              

TOTAL  REVENUE 7,978,591           

EXPENSES
Compensation 4,026,443              

Employee Benefits 974,159                 

Payroll Taxes 308,023                 

Travel 138,989                 

Conference & Meetings 8,798                      

Financial Assistance 1,039,540              

Supplies and Materials 91,328                    

Printing and Promotionals 68,448                    

Equipment Maintenance & Rentals 105,101                 

Rent 83,512                    

Utilities 42,624                    

Building Maintenance 63,917                    

Professional Fees 421,253                 

Contractual Services

Insurance 63,103                    

Communications 52,441                    

Postage & Shipping 36,785                    

Other Contractual Services 291,320                 

Depreciation 162,807                 

TOTAL LOCAL EXPENSES 7,978,591           
   Support to other ARC units ‐                                

TOTAL EXPENSES 7,978,591           

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) ‐                                 

Expenses

American Red Cross

29R04 ‐ Northern New England Region

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Budget

Revenue



Town/City Disaster Events Individuals

Bucksport 1 2

Franklin 1 1

Hancock 1 5

 Hancock County Service Delivery
July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Last year, Red Cross staff
and volunteers worked
throughout Hancock County
to educate residents on fire,
safety and preparedness.
We made 5 homes safer by
helping families develop
emergency evacuation plans.

Home Fire Campaign

We collected 1,341 pints of
lifesaving blood at 39 drives in
Hancock County.

Blood Drives

 Hancock County is home to 28
American Red Cross Volunteers. We
have volunteers from all walks of life,
who are trained and empowered to
respond to disasters in the middle of
the night, to teach safety courses, to
help at our many blood drives, and so
much more. The American Red Cross is
proud that 90% of its staff is made up
of volunteers; they are truly the heart
and soul of our organization.

Training Services

Last year, 172 Hancock County
residents were taught a variety of
important lifesaving skills such as
First Aid, CPR, Babysitting Skills
and Water Safety. 

Volunteer Services

We proudly assisted 35 of 
Hancock County’s Service
Members, veterans, and their
families by providing
emergency communications
and other services, including
counseling and financial
assistance. 

Service to the Armed Forces

Disaster Response

In the past year, the American Red Cross has responded to 3 disaster cases in Hancock County, providing
assistance to 8 individuals. Most commonly, these incidents were home fires. Red Cross workers were on
the scene to provide food, clothing, lodging, emotional support, and more to families during their hours of
greatest need. Our teams also provide Mass Care to first responders. Things like food, water, and warm
drinks strengthen the brave people of your local Fire and Police Departments as they answer the call to keep
your residents safe.  



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2021
(With comparative information as of June 30, 2020)

(In thousands)

Assets 2021 2020

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 205,148  235,415  
Investments (note 4) 562,450  348,443  
Trade receivables, including grants, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,155

in 2021 and $1,700 in 2020 (note 11) 226,657  286,464  
Contributions receivable (note 2) 26,089  34,368  
Inventories, net of allowance for obsolescence of $87 in 2021 and $180 in 2020 47,394  46,998  
Other current assets 50,231  50,989  

Total current assets 1,117,969  1,002,677  

Noncurrent assets:
Investments (note 4) 1,329,448  1,087,477  
Contributions receivable (note 2) 13,939  14,191  
Right-of-use assets-operating leases (note 6) 121,765  114,474  
Land, buildings, and other property, net (note 3) 728,858  755,519  
Assets held for sale, net (note 3) 33,602  30,960  
Other assets (note 9) 322,919  261,601  

Total noncurrent assets 2,550,531  2,264,222  

Total assets $ 3,668,500  3,266,899  

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 299,798  253,123  
Current portion of debt (note 5) 19,169  41,265  
Current portion of lease obligation-operating (note 6) 25,214  22,689  
Postretirement benefits (note 10) 3,731  3,779  
Other current liabilities (notes 9 and 11) 146,439  145,970  

Total current liabilities 494,351  466,826  

Noncurrent liabilities:
Debt (note 5) 383,420  596,132  
Long-term lease obligation-operating (note 6) 109,971  104,096  
Pension and postretirement benefits (note 10) 167,317  155,924  
Other liabilities (notes 5 and 9) 145,054  131,706  

Total noncurrent liabilities 805,762  987,858  

Total liabilities 1,300,113  1,454,684  

Net assets (notes 7 and 8):
Without donor restrictions net assets 710,028  390,796  
With donor restrictions net assets 1,658,359  1,421,419  

Total net assets 2,368,387  1,812,215  

Commitments and contingencies (notes 4, 5, 6, 10, 11)

Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,668,500  3,266,899  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

jwright
Typewritten Text
Note: Remainder of audit report available from Town Clerk



THE AMERICAN NATIONAL RED CROSS

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2021
(With summarized information for the year ended June 30, 2020)

(In thousands)

Without With
donor donor Totals

restrictions restrictions 2021 2020

Operating revenues and gains:
Contributions:

Corporate, foundation and individual giving $ 218,178  311,227  529,405  564,888  
United Way and other federated 518  23,201  23,719  33,521  
Contracts, including federal government 17,237  163,580  180,817  128,137  
Legacies and bequests 70,504  30,408  100,912  125,702  
Services and materials 15,522  39,574  55,096  84,058  

Products and services:
Biomedical Services 1,883,815  �  1,883,815  1,731,504  
Program materials 115,800  �  115,800  108,514  

Investment return, net (note 4) 3,372  60,552  63,924  44,551  
Other revenues 177,119  37  177,156  86,511  
Net assets released from restrictions 658,746  (658,746) �  �  

Total operating revenues and gains 3,160,811  (30,167) 3,130,644  2,907,386  

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Services to the Armed Forces 55,201  �  55,201  65,317  
Biomedical Services 1,834,750  �  1,834,750  1,766,661  
Community Services 22,995  �  22,995  24,888  
Domestic Disaster Services 503,552  �  503,552  427,587  
Training Services 102,394  �  102,394  122,854  
International Relief and Development Services 69,105  �  69,105  82,053  

Total program services 2,587,997  �  2,587,997  2,489,360  

Supporting services:
Fundraising 165,392  �  165,392  172,690  
Management and general 83,097  �  83,097  89,535  

Total supporting services 248,489  �  248,489  262,225  

Total operating expenses 2,836,486  �  2,836,486  2,751,585  

Change in net assets from operations 324,325  (30,167) 294,158  155,801  

Nonoperating investment return, net (note 4) 10,603  267,107  277,710  2,416  
Pension-related changes other than net periodic

benefit cost (note 10) (15,696) �  (15,696) 211,834  

Change in net assets 319,232  236,940  556,172  370,051  

Net assets, beginning of year 390,796  1,421,419  1,812,215  1,442,164  

Net assets, end of year $ 710,028  1,658,359  2,368,387  1,812,215  

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

4



T
H

E
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 R

E
D

 C
R

O
S

S

C
o

ns
o

lid
a

te
d

 S
ta

te
m

e
nt

 o
f 

F
u

nc
tio

na
l E

xp
e

ns
e

s

Y
ea

r 
e

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
3

0,
 2

02
1

(W
ith

 s
u

m
m

a
riz

e
d

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 f
or

 t
h

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
e

d 
Ju

ne
 3

0
, 2

02
0

)

(I
n

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)

P
ro

g
ra

m
 s

er
v

ic
e

s
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

D
o

m
e

st
ic

R
e

lie
f 

a
n

d
T

o
ta

l
S

er
v

ic
e

s 
to

 t
h

e 
B

io
m

e
d

ic
a

l
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
D

is
a

st
er

T
ra

in
in

g
D

ev
el

o
p

m
e

n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
A

rm
e

d
 F

o
rc

e
s

S
er

v
ic

e
s

S
e

rv
ic

es
S

er
v

ic
e

s
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
S

e
rv

ic
es

se
rv

ic
es

S
al

a
ri

es
 a

nd
 w

ag
es

$
2

9
,3

9
0

 
7

3
9,

81
8

 
1

0,
4

73
 

1
19

,9
9

6
 

3
9,

7
45

 
12

,2
2

1
 

95
1,

6
43

 
E

m
p

lo
ye

e
 b

e
ne

fit
s

7
,5

68
 

1
8

8,
6

83
 

2,
7

18
 

31
,0

3
3

 
1

0
,1

35
 

3
,1

1
8

 
24

3
,2

5
5

 

S
ub

to
ta

l
3

6
,9

5
8

 
9

2
8,

5
01

 
1

3
,1

9
1

 
1

5
1,

0
29

 
4

9
,8

80
 

15
,3

3
9

 
1

,1
9

4,
8

98
 

T
ra

ve
l a

n
d 

m
a

in
te

n
an

ce
1

5
5

 
16

,2
0

4
 

17
 

17
,2

9
7

 
8

83
 

36
8

 
3

4,
9

24
 

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt

 m
a

in
te

na
n

ce
 a

n
d

 r
en

ta
l

2
9

9
 

46
,7

5
2

 
5

08
 

8
,9

5
3

 
7

44
 

39
6

 
5

7,
6

52
 

S
up

pl
ie

s 
a

nd
 m

a
te

ri
al

s
1,

2
93

 
2

5
8,

11
0

 
8

4
1

 
4

,1
9

1
 

1
2,

3
87

 
42

7
 

27
7

,2
49

 
C

o
nt

ra
ct

ua
l s

e
rv

ic
e

s
7

,8
76

 
5

2
5,

9
69

 
3,

9
83

 
65

,3
4

1
 

3
4

,6
82

 
3

,2
2

3
 

64
1

,0
7

4
 

F
in

an
ci

a
l a

n
d

 m
at

e
ria

l a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

6,
9

76
 

2
,1

6
0

 
3,

2
87

 
2

44
,2

1
1

 
7

25
 

49
,2

7
0

 
30

6,
6

29
 

D
e

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
a

nd
 a

m
o

rt
iz

a
tio

n
1,

6
44

 
57

,0
5

4
 

1,
1

68
 

12
,5

3
0

 
3,

0
93

 
8

2
 

7
5,

5
71

 

T
o

ta
l e

xp
e

ns
e

s
$

5
5

,2
0

1
 

1,
8

34
,7

5
0

 
2

2
,9

9
5

 
5

0
3,

55
2

 
10

2
,3

9
4

 
69

,1
0

5
 

2
,5

8
7,

9
97

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
er

v
ic

e
s

M
a

n
a

g
em

e
n

t
T

o
ta

l
a

n
d

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

T
o

ta
l 

ex
p

e
n

se
s

F
u

n
d

ra
is

in
g

g
e

n
er

a
l

se
rv

ic
es

2
0

21
2

02
0

S
al

a
ri

es
 a

nd
 w

ag
es

$
8

3
,7

9
7

 
41

,8
6

6
 

12
5

,6
6

3
 

1,
0

77
,3

0
6

 
1

,1
0

5,
5

00
 

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 b
e

ne
fit

s
2

0
,7

7
8

 
10

,7
0

9
 

3
1

,4
8

7
 

2
7

4,
74

2
 

25
4

,0
1

8
 

S
ub

to
ta

l
1

04
,5

7
5

 
5

2,
57

5
 

15
7

,1
5

0
 

1,
3

52
,0

4
8

 
1

,3
5

9,
5

18
 

T
ra

ve
l a

n
d 

m
a

in
te

n
an

ce
1

3
6

 
5

4
 

1
9

0
 

35
,1

1
4

 
5

2,
6

80
 

E
qu

ip
m

e
nt

 m
a

in
te

na
n

ce
 a

n
d

 r
en

ta
l

8
8

4
 

2
,4

8
7

 
3,

3
71

 
61

,0
2

3
 

6
1,

9
42

 
S

up
pl

ie
s 

a
nd

 m
a

te
ri

al
s

1,
5

53
 

38
2

 
1,

9
35

 
2

79
,1

8
4

 
24

6
,2

3
9

 
C

o
nt

ra
ct

ua
l s

e
rv

ic
e

s
5

2
,5

3
6

 
26

,0
9

9
 

7
8

,6
3

5
 

7
1

9,
70

9
 

67
2

,3
9

5
 

F
in

an
ci

a
l a

n
d

 m
at

e
ria

l a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

2
9

3
 

41
4

 
7

07
 

3
07

,3
3

6
 

27
3

,5
71

 
D

e
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

a
nd

 a
m

o
rt

iz
a

tio
n

5,
4

15
 

1
,0

8
6

 
6,

5
01

 
82

,0
7

2
 

8
5,

2
40

 

T
o

ta
l e

xp
e

ns
e

s
$

1
65

,3
9

2
 

83
,0

9
7

 
24

8
,4

8
9

 
2,

8
36

,4
8

6
 

2
,7

5
1,

5
85

 

S
ee

 a
cc

o
m

p
an

yi
n

g 
n

ot
e

s 
to

 th
e

 c
o

ns
o

lid
a

te
d

 fi
n

a
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
e

nt
s.

5



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR 

PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS 

Questionnaire Due Date: 
Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee 
Meeting Date to Review: 

February 3, 2023 

February 21, 2023 (A-L) 
February 22, 2023 (M-Z) 

Organization Name 
Status (ex: 501(c)(3)) 
Mailing Address: 

Physical Address (if different) 
Phone Number: 
Contact Person: 

Contact Email: 

Attach most recent Financial Report 
Gross operating budget: $ Gross payroll $ 
Salary and other compensation of highest paid employee: $ 
Salary and other compensation of lowest paid employee: $ 
Number of Paid Employees: Full Time Part Time 
Number of volunteers: 

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents of the Town 
of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents of other island towns in this narrative): 

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be 
counted once toward the total regardless of how many different programs/services are provided 
to him/her): 

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? 

Estimated value for services provided to residents of the TOMD: $ 

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ 

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of 
the TOMD: 

What are your plans for fundraisers? 



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire 

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMD. 
i.e.: If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ 

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years: 

2022: $      2021: $     2020: $ 

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of 
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves 
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation. 

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMD would be spent during the 
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%, 
Benefits 25%, etc.) 

Signature of Requester Date of Request 

Printed Name and Title of Requester 

Reminder:  A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of 
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L 
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the 
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be 
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is 
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the 
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, 1Kimball Road, Northeast Harbor. 

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the 
Town Office 276-5531 or by email at manager@mtdesert.org or townclerk@mtdesert.org 

Special Note:  Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment if 
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make 
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by 
September 30, 2024). 

Page 2 of 2 
C:\Users\zharris\Documents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023_Zach's Edits.docx 

mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


Bar Harbor Food Pantry
Statement of Activity

January - December 2022

Cash Basis  Thursday, January 26, 2023 11:32 AM GMT-05:00   1/2

TOTAL

Revenue

Cough Trust 12,211.36

Grants 31,500.00

Individ, Bus Contribs 301,625.17

Interest Earned/Dividends 238.49

Serendipity-Revenue 53,056.15

Town Funding 21,386.00

Total Revenue $420,017.17

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of Goods Sold - Serendipity 2,044.00

Total Cost of Goods Sold $2,044.00

GROSS PROFIT $417,973.17

Expenditures

Accounting/Bookkeeping 4,170.00

Advertising Expense 270.14

Contract Services 13,500.00

Facilities and Equipment

Office Equipment Expense 1,774.50

Rent / Parking 25,800.00

Repairs &  Maintenance - Pantry 3,154.82

Repairs & Maintenance - Serendipity 1,902.35

Total Facilities and Equipment 32,631.67

Fundraising Expenses 1,092.49

Insurances

Business Owner's Policy 1,493.00

Worker's Compensation 1,374.25

Total Insurances 2,867.25

Operations

Books, Subscriptions, Reference 945.55

Licenses 55.00

Membership Dues 412.00

Office Supplies 989.54

Postage, Mailing Service 1,388.00

Printing and Copying 308.00

Supplies 69.95

Telephone/Internet 1,916.04

Website 817.05

Total Operations 6,901.13



Bar Harbor Food Pantry
Statement of Activity

January - December 2022

Cash Basis  Thursday, January 26, 2023 11:32 AM GMT-05:00   2/2

TOTAL

Other Program Expenses

BHFP Other Costs 193.41

Serendipity - Sales Tax 2,993.68

Total Other Program Expenses 3,187.09

Other Types of Expenses

Bank/Credit Fees 15.00

Total Other Types of Expenses 15.00

Pantry Divisions

Food Purchases 124,593.44

Small Equipment 573.08

Total Pantry Divisions 125,166.52

Payroll Expenses

Payroll Expenses Wages/Taxes

Employee Benefits 5,787.46

Exec Director 56,692.24

Payroll Expenses Taxes 8,085.18

Staff Wages 48,995.86

Total Payroll Expenses Wages/Taxes 119,560.74

Payroll Processing Fee 1,429.50

Total Payroll Expenses 120,990.24

Travel and Meetings 2,481.48

Unapplied Cash Bill Payment Expenditure 0.00

Uncategorized Expenditure 418.35

Total Expenditures $313,691.36

NET OPERATING REVENUE $104,281.81

Other Revenue

Dividend Income 4,801.49

Investment Gains/Losses -53,954.56

Temporarily-Restricted Funds

Pet Food Expense -4,393.81

Pet Food Fund (Temp-Rest) 2,520.00

Total Temporarily-Restricted Funds -1,873.81

Total Other Revenue $ -51,026.88

Other Expenditures

Investment Fees 2,442.55

Total Other Expenditures $2,442.55

NET OTHER REVENUE $ -53,469.43

NET REVENUE $50,812.38



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
MANDATORY QUESTIONAIRE FOR

PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS

Questionnaire Due Date: February 3, 2023

Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee
Meeting Date to Review: February 21 , 2022 (A-L)

February 22, 2023 (M-Z)

Organizational Name: Downeast Horizons. Inc.
Status (ex: 501(c)(3)) 1200 State Highway 3
Mailing Address:

Bar Harbor, Maine 04609
Physical Address (if different)
Phone Number: 207-288-4234
Contact Person: Ashley Johnson

Contact Email: ajohnson(dehi.org

Attach most recent Financial Report Yes
Gross operating budget: $8,330,55 8.45 Gross payroll: $5625,968.88

Salary and other compensation ofhighest paid employee: $142,000
Salary and other compensation oflowest paid employee: $32,240
Number ofPaid Employees: Q Full Time: 63 Employees Part Time: 64 Employees
Number ofvolunteers: 30

Narrative ofwhat services your organization provides to the residents ofthe Town ofMount Desert:
Downeast Horizons (DEH) provides a variety of services to adults and children with developmental
disabilities who live in the Town ofMount Desert and Hancock County through its two program centers, eight
group homes, and community supports. Housing (both group-style and apartments), life skills & socialization
training, day & evening enrichment programs, and employment assistance programs are designed to increase
our clients’ independence and contribution to the community.

Total number of Mount Desert residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be counted
once toward the total regardless ofhow many different programs/services are provided to him/her):
Individuals

How many times per month was this service used? Day & Evening Program Centers provide services Monday
— Friday for participants. Group Home Residents receive services 24 hours a day. 365 days per year. Adult &
Children Services provide up to 24 hours per week per participant in community supports.

What amount is each Mount Desert resident being served charged? No clients, at present are paying any fees
for services at Downeast Horizons. The Maine Department of Health and Human Services provides client-
specific funding for each client (a combination of federal and state funds). All of our clients currently qualify
for these funds under low-income guidelines. However, due to recent discussions at the state level regarding
budget cuts, there is uncertainty if there will be reductions to current funding. The average cost to serve each
DEH client is $47,712.28. For clients who live in our group homes, that cost is more than double. Downeast

Town of Mount Desert Page 1 of 2



Horizons needs to currently raise approximately 5 percent of its operating budget each year in private and
municipal funds to meet its current budget of$8.3 million.

What are your plans for fundraisers?
Our plans are to do a direct mail appeal. grant writing. person-to-person appeal, planned giving campaign, and
various fundraising activities that include cookbook sales, raffles, and craft sales.

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the Town ofMount Desert:
Funds are deposited into a Board restricted account along with funds from other towns and individuals. As
our fiscal year proceeds, funds are transferred out as we need them to cover direct program expenses.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $6,000.00

Please indicate what you have received from the Town of Mount Desert in previous years:

2022: $6,000.00 2021: $5,600.00 2020: $5,600.00

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of Selectboard
recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves the right to recommend an
amount of their choosing for appropriation.

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the Town ofMount Desert would be spent during the
fiscal year: Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e. Salaries 40%, Benefits 25%, etc.)
These funds assist in paying for the general operating costs of the programs we provide, which the state and
federal government allocations fail to cover. We target funds raised from the towns and individual donors for:
Building Repair & Building Expenses (60%), Staff Training (20%), and Consumer Motivation/Diversion
Activities (20%).

1/26/2023
Signature of Requestor Date of Request

Ashley Johnson — Resource Coordinator

Printed Name and Title of Requestor

Reminder: A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of Selectmen/Warrant
Committee meetingat 6:30pm, TUESDAY, February 21, 2023 (A-L organizations) or WEDNESDAY
February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations) in the Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast
Harbor (the meeting will also be available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance
is also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00p.m. at the
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, 1 Kimball Road, Northeast Harbor

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the Town Office
276-5531 or by email manager(dmtdesert.org or townclerk(ä)intdesert.org

Special Note: Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment fyour request is
approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make payment as soon as cashflow permits
within thefirst three months of thefiscal year (or by September 30, 2024)

Town of Mount Desert Page 2 of 2



Revenues
MaineCare & Private Pay
Room & Board
USDA Food Stamps
Grant in Aid
Donations-Donors
Donations-Municipalities
Interest Income
Other Income

Downeast Horizons Inc.
FY2022 Budget

Total Revenues 8,330,558.45 100%

Expenses
Payroll Expenses

Total Expenses

Net Income

G&A

(8,330,558.45)

$ 0.00

(671,231. 13)

96%

9%

7,962,250.83
222,668.00

0.00
23,000.00
31,192.24
16,697.00
23,599.47
51,150.91

96%
3%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
1%

Labor (4,416,071.89) 53%
Taxes&Benefits (1,209,896.99) 15%
Rent/Property (298,214.53) 4%
Food (148,801.02) 2%
Building Repair and Maintenance (92,255.35) 1%
Utilities (81,613.38) 1%
Heat (Oil & Propane) (49,426.94) 1%
Household (44,568.82) 1%
Snow & Trash Removal (24,116.48) 0%
Insurance Policies (98,032.00) 1%
Program Expenses (1,253,849.56) 11%
Business Operating Expenses (613,711.49) 7%

C:\Users\ajohnson\Desktop\ajohnson\Town Warrants\2023\FY23 Budget for Municipals Copy



People Helping People

ANNUAL REPORT TO TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
February 2023

Downeast Horizons (DEH), founded in 1974, is an organization that assists adults and children with disabilities to find support
for their individual needs and to exercise choices whenever possible that result in growth toward increasing and maintaining
independence. All individuals supported by DEH have developmental disabilities including cognitive disabilities; Autism and
Asperger Syndrome; Down Syndrome; and some have multiple disabilities including physical handicaps. We currently provide
services to 55 individuals from the town ofMount Desert.

REFERRALS
Downeast Horizons continues to expand throughout Hancock and Penobscot counties. Over the last year, Downeast Horizons

has received over 50 referrals throughout our Day and Evening programs.

SHARED LIVING
Downeast Horizons currently oversees 22 Shared Living homes/providers. Like Community Support programs, Shared

Living providers are being scrutinized heavily under the new Home and Community Based Services guidelines. Like the Community
Support programs, the Shared Living homes will come into compliance; however, coming into compliance requires a lot of
documentation to prove that these guidelines are being met.

AGENCY-FUNDED ACTIVITIES
Many ofthe individuals DEHI supports have very limited budgets, so we strive to offer a number ofno-cost opportunities to

enjoy our little corner ofMaine the way that everyone should. Some ofthe truly inspiring events that are made available to our
program participants include Timber Tina’s Great Maine Lumberjack Show, Downeast Scenic Railway, the Schooner Margaret Todd,
Bar Harbor nature cruises, drive-in movies, the Maine Special Olympics, the Blue Hill and Bangor state fairs, tours of Acadia National
Park, and summer weeks at Camp CaPella. We know of no other provider that offers all agency-sponsored activities at no extra cost to
program participants. We are so grateful to our gracious donors for making these life-enriching activities possible.

PUBLIC AWARENESS
Downcast Horizons continues to increase awareness ofour services—and ofthe overall need for supportive programs for

adults and children with developmental disabilities and autism—through news pieces, public events, public service announcements,
and awareness activities. We consider it part of our mission to spread the word that individuals with developmental disabilities are
valuable, important members oftheir communities. We hope to produce a new public service message within the next year.

EMPLOYEE RETENTION
The hardworking employees ofDowneast Horizons continue to be recognized for their dedication during the pandemic.

The Employee Retention Incentive, recently announced by Executive Director Tony Zambrano and the DEHI Board of Directors,
provides financial bonuses to each ofDEHI’s 133 staffmembers. The incentive reflects the agency’s gratitude for the efforts and
sacrifices that staff have made over the last two years in order to provide a safe and rewarding environment for both participants and
coworkers. The incentive utilizes money awarded to DEHI under the American Rescue Plan. A total of$268,000 was divided among
DEHI employees based on date ofhire and average number ofhours worked this past winter. Full-time employees with one-year
seniority received a $3,250 check.

Over a year ago, Downcast Horizons applied for COVID-19 relief funding and just recently, the agency was awarded
$300,000. Executive Director Tony Zambrano and the Board ofDirectors decided to use the funding to reward those employees who
have stayed with us during the pandemic, and to encourage them to stay with DEHI into the future. The “Stay With Us” incentive
rewards employees hired prior to March 1, 2022 will be eligible to receive up to $2,000 in four, $500 incentive checks over the next
two years.

Downcast Horizons’ full-time employees receive the following benefits: annual performance-based raises; 10 paid holidays
per year; a retirement plan with matching contributions of up to 5%; dental, health, and life insurance; short- and long-term disability;
and paid time off.

The $6,000.00 generously given by the citizens ofMount Desert in 2022 assisted in paying for safety/health building
maintenance and repairs; staff training; and client motivation activities. In 2023, DEH will continue to target funds from the
towns and individuals for these items. DEHI is grateful to the town of Mount Desert for its long-time support and respectfully
requests a continuation of that support in FY2022.



DATA SHEET FOR MOUNT DESERT

Mission Statement: Downeast Horizons assists and supports people with disabilities to live a complete and fulfilling life.

Background Information: Downeast Horizons (DEH) was founded in I 974 to serve adults with developmental disabilities,
including adults with Down Syndrome, Cerebral Palsy, Autism, Asperger Syndrome and Epilepsy. In 2007 we began serving
children diagnosed with Mental Retardation, Autism, and Autism Spectrum Disorders including Asperger Syndrome,
Pervasive Development Disorder (PDD), and Rhetts Syndrome.

Adult Services Provided
DEH operates three day program centers in Bar Harbor, Ellsworth and Brewer and administers nine supported living homes
in Ellsworth, Bar Harbor and Hancock. All of our programs are designed to maintain and increase the independence and
community involvement ofthe developmentally disabled. Services include:

Day & Evening Programs
This program is provided to individuals with the goal of increasing and maintaining social and community
participation as well as maintaining and developing skills that support their health and well being.
Community Supports
Direct support is provided to individuals in the community with the goal of increasing and maintaining social and
community participation. In most instances, this is one-on-one support and ranges from attending appointments with
the consumer, job supports, community activities, etc.
Residential Services
We provide direct support to individuals in nine residential settings. Home supports include personal assistance with
activities that contribute to a person’s health and well-being including eating, bathing, dressing, mobility, personal
hygiene, and other activities of daily living.
Employment Supports
We provide supports to promote integrated, competitive employment for an individual. Periodic interventions with a
job coach assist in promoting natural workforce relationships; maintaining workplace relationships and safety; and
successful employment and workplace inclusion.

Children Services Provided
DEH, in partnership with the Maine Department of Health and Human Services, serves children diagnosed with Mental
Retardation, Autism, and Autism Spectrum Disorders including Asperger Syndrome, Pervasive Development Disorder
(PDD), and Rhetts Syndrome. The focus is to teach necessary skills to improve the consumer’s independence with activities
of daily living, community integration, and behavior management. Services include:

Community Supports
We supply a staffperson to provide one-on-one support services in the home and community to work on specific
goals and objectives outlined in the plan.
Social Group Services
This group provides an opportunity for school age children with autism and developmental delays to gain valuable
experience with cooperative group work for which social interactions are challenging. The focus ofthe social skills
group that Downeast Horizons currently runs each month is to give the children realistic practice interacting with
their peers in a semi-structured situation.

Number of people served from the town of Mount Desert: 55 individuals

Average annual cost to agency per consumer: $47,364 (Group home residents are double)

2023 Operating Budget: $8.3 million; 5 percent ofthat budget must be raised from private and municipal funds. DEH
currently receives support from 9 additional towns in Hancock County.

Total number of consumers: 270

Total number of family members receiving indirect services: 570

Total number of employees: 130

Administrative costs as a percentage of total operating budget: 10 percent

Other forms of funding: Semi-annual direct mail solicitations to donor base; memorial gifts; grants; municipal
contributions from 12 towns throughout Hancock County.



czivb
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR
PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS FEB 0 2 2022

Questionnaire Due Date: February 3, 2023 THE TOWN OF
MOUNT DESERT

Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee
Meeting Date to Review: February 21, 2023 (A-L)

February 22. 2023 (M-Z)

Organization Name I

Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
Mailing Address:

________________________________________

Physical Address (if different)
Phone Number:
Contact Person:

Contact Email:

Attach most recent Financial Report

_______________

Gross operating budget: $1214755 .

!

Salary and other compensation ofhighest paid employee:

______________

Narrative ofwhat services your organization specifically provides to the residents ofthe Town
of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents ofother island towns in this narrative):
ENC is a peer based mental health recovery program designed to empowr its members toward individual and shared goals
horugh developing relationships and participation in the operation of the Clubhouse. There are no membership fees or dues
0 join. 1 in 4 adults will expierience mental illness in their lifetime. I in 1 5 will experience a serious mental illness.
Clubhouses are a community based solution to a global problem. We provide opportunities for work, weilness, education and

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be
counted once toward the total regardless ofhow many different programs/services are provided
to himlher): [ I

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? I We are open 8-4 dl

Estimated value for services provided to residents ofthe TOMD: $ $500 I

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ l$6.42 per unit (15 minutes) I

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of
the TOMD:
jWork readiness , wellness, education and socialization with peers for building long term relationship to reduce stigma of mental
illness.

What are your plans for fundraisers?
uction, solitation of donations from local town warrants, bake sales

Eagles’ Nest Clubhouse
190 Main Street
Ellsworth, Maine 04605

I Gross payroll $1103587

Salary and other compensation of lowest paid employee: $ [46073

Number of Paid Employees: 13 IFull Time 2 I Part Time
Number of volunteers: 2 Members run the Clubhouse and are responsible for daily operations and work

$157,514 I



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMB.
i.e. : If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.
1we are going use any and funds acquired towards the purchase of a van to transport members to and from Clubhouse and
10ther Clubhouse activites. Transportation is very limited and many of our members don’t or can’t drive so are unable to attend
Clubhouse on a regular basis so having a van would increase membership and allow for more group activities.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ I$i000 I

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years:

2022: $I$500 12021: $10 12020: $10 I

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation.

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMD would be spent during the
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%,
Benefits 25%, etc.)
ll money not used towards purchase of a van will be used to help members with gas cards , fuel assistance or other non-
reimbursable expenses not covered by other programs.

I I 11/30/20 I
Signature of Requester Date of Request

IAlice Grindle - Director

Printed Name and Title of Requester

Reminder: A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, iKimball Road, Northeast Harbor.

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the
Town Office 276-553 1 or by email at rnanager(mtdeseitorg or townclerk(rntdesert.org

Special Note: Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment if
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by
September 30, 2024).

Page 2 of 2
C:\Users\zharris\Documents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Zach’s Edits.docx



P&
L

A
n

n
u

al
R

ep
o
rt

C
om

pa
ny

:
O

H
I

V
er

si
on

:
F

Y
20

23
-R

ev
is

ed
U

ni
t:

00
2-

25
-8

00
-0

00
:

C
lu

bh
ou

se
B

ud
ge

t
ho

ld
er

:
R

oy
e,

L
is

a
(l

ro
ye

)

40
07

M
is

c
C

on
tr

ac
t

R
ev

en
ue

$0

40
08

G
ra

nt
R

ev
en

ue
-

G
en

er
al

$0

40
15

M
ai

ne
C

ar
el

nc
om

e
$2

12
,0

55
(D

)

40
54

M
ai

ne
C

ar
e

FM
A

P
B

on
us

an
d

$0

40
39

D
re

am
M

ile
s

R
ev

en
ue

$0

40
70

D
on

at
io

ns
$0

40
75

In
co

m
e

-
R

en
ta

l
$0

42
00

In
co

m
e

-
S

al
e

O
f

P
ro

du
ct

s
$2

,7
00

R
ev

en
ue

$2
14

,7
55

T
O

T
A

L
IN

C
O

M
E

$2
14

,7
55

50
00

S
al

ar
y

-
A

dm
in

S
up

po
rt

$0

50
01

S
al

ar
y-

M
an

ag
em

en
t

$5
7,

51
4

50
30

S
al

ar
y

-
D

ir
ec

t
S

er
vi

ce
S

ta
ff

$4
6,

07
3

50
75

S
al

ar
y

-
E

m
pl

oy
ee

R
ec

og
ni

ti
on

$0

L
ab

or
C

o
st

s
$1

03
,5

87

51
37

C
on

su
lt

an
t

-
G

en
er

al
$2

,0
00

C
o

n
su

lt
an

ts
$2

,0
00

52
16

R
et

ir
em

en
tP

la
n

$1
,0

10

52
00

F.
I.C

.A
.

E
xp

en
se

$7
,5

51

52
10

M
ed

ic
al

In
su

ra
nc

e
$1

0,
34

4

52
11

D
en

ta
l

In
su

ra
nc

e
$1

60

52
12

L
if

el
ns

ur
an

ce
$1

20

52
15

W
or

ke
rs

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n
$1

,7
26

P
ay

ro
ll

T
ax

es
&

B
en

ef
it

s
j

$2
0,

91
1

53
10

E
du

ca
ti

on
al

S
up

pl
ie

s
I

$1
00

(L
)

54
01

R
en

t
-

N
on

R
es

id
en

ta
l

$3
2,

68
9

(L
)

54
42

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

-
H

ar
dw

ar
e

$3
,6

0O
(L

)

P
ag

e
1

of
4

Pr
in

te
d

12
/2

2/
20

22
12

:0
8:

31
PM



54
43

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

-
S

of
tw

ar
e/

S
up

p

54
50

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

R
en

ta
l

54
60

M
ed

ic
al

S
up

pl
ie

s

54
72

E
m

pl
oy

/C
on

su
m

er
R

ec
og

ni
ti

on

54
73

C
or

po
ra

te
F

un
ct

io
ns

54
80

T
ra

in
in

g
-

E
xt

er
na

l

54
81

S
ub

sc
ri

pt
/P

ub
li

ca
ti

on

55
00

T
ra

ve
l

-
M

ai
ne

ca
re

55
20

P
ho

to
co

py
in

g

55
25

A
dv

er
tis

in
g

55
26

F
ee

s

55
27

P
ro

m
ot

io
na

l
It

em
s

54
41

B
ld

g
E

qu
ip

m
en

t

54
45

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

R
ep

ai
r

&
M

ai
nt

54
55

T
el

ep
ho

ne

54
85

L
in

en
&

B
ed

di
ng

55
61

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
-

B
ui

ld
in

g

$3
75

(L
)

$0

$5
00

$1
50 $0

$2
,0

65
(L

)

$0

$2
50

(D
)

$1
75

$2
02

(L
)

$1
,8

31
(L

)

$0

P
ag

e
2

of
4

Pr
in

te
d

12
/2

2/
20

22
12

:0
8:

31
PM

55
45

O
ff

ic
e

S
up

pl
ie

s
$4

00

55
55

P
os

ta
ge

-
Fa

x
$1

00

55
57

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n-
C

ap
it

al
L

ea
se

s
$0

55
58

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n-
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
$5

3

55
59

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
-

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

$0
’

55
72

In
su

ra
nc

e
-

G
en

er
al

L
ia

b
$8

76

P
ro

gr
am

$4
3,

36
6

54
00

R
en

t
-

R
es

id
en

ti
al

$0

54
10

Fo
od

$2
,5

00

54
1

1
H

ou
se

ho
ld

S
up

pl
ie

s
$5

00

54
15

E
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

$5
,5

51

54
20

H
ea

tin
g

$0

54
29

P
ro

pe
rt

y
M

an
ag

em
en

t
$6

,8
36

54
30

B
ui

ld
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
S

up
pl

ie
s

$1
50

(L
)

54
31

G
ro

un
ds

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$1
,0

25
(L

)

54
35

W
at

er
&

S
ew

er
$6

60

54
40

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

P
ur

ch
as

e
$0 $0 $0

$4
80 $0

$3
50



55
63

D
ep

r
-

F
u

rn
it

u
re

/A
p

p
li

an
ce

s
$0

55
73

In
su

ra
nc

e-
P

ro
pe

rt
y

$1
,2

21

O
cc

up
an

cy
$1

9,
27

3
55

40
G

en
er

al
&

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

$2
4,

64
5

G
&

A
$
2
4
,6

4
5

T
O

T
A

L
E

X
PE

N
SE

$2
13

,7
82

P
ag

e
3

of
4

P
ri

nt
ed

12
/2

2/
20

22
12

:0
8:

31
PM

A
nn

ua
l

re
n

t

A
dd

tl
.

m
on

th
ly

m
g
m

t
fe

e

Jo
b

co
ac

h

A
C

R
E

-
em

p
lo

y
m

en
t

sp
ec

ia
li

st



R
ac

k
ca

rd
s

55
26

ee
T

ot
al

In
te

rn
et

$1
,4

16

C
el

l
ph

on
e

$4
15

N
ot

e:
If

th
e

lin
e

it
em

de
ta

il
to

ta
l

di
ff

er
s

fr
om

th
e

li
ne

it
em

to
ta

l,
it

is
b
ec

au
se

(a
)

th
er

e
ar

e
m

ul
ti

pl
e

lin
e

it
em

s
fo

r
th

is
ac

co
un

t,
an

d
(b

)
so

m
e

of
th

e
li

ne
it

em
s

do
no

t
u

se
li

ne
it

em
de

ta
il

.

(D
)

A
nn

ua
l

d
n

v
er

s
in

u
se

fo
r

C
lu

b
h
o
u
se

D
ri

ve
r

co
de

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

A
nn

ua
l

dr
iv

er
v

al
u

e
In

N
ot

es
on

dr
iv

er
v
al

u
es

M
il

ea
ge

R
at

e
M

il
ea

ge
R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
$1

Y
es

D
ef

au
ft

$1

C
lu

bh
ou

se
M

ai
ne

C
ar

e
C

lu
bh

ou
se

$6
Y

es

D
ef

au
t.

$6

P
ag

e
4

of
4

Pr
in

te
d

12
/2

2/
20

22
12

:0
8:

31
PM

T
ot

al

B
en

ef
it

s
sp

ec
ia

li
st

I
$











TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR

PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS

Questionnaire Due Date: February 3, 2023

Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee

Meeting Date to Review: February 2 1 , 2023 (A-L)
February 22, 2023 (M-Z)

Organization Name

Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
Mailing Address:

Physical Address (if different)

Phone Number:
Contact Person:

Contact Email:

Attach most recent Financial Report j

_______________

Gross operating budget: $127,862

_________________

Salary and other compensation ofhighest paid employee:

______________

Salary and other compensation oflowest paid employee:
Number ofPaid Employees: ° Full Time
Number ofvolunteers: 18

Narrative ofwhat services your organization specifically provides to the residents ofthe Town

of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents ofother island towns in this narrative):

Irhe museum celebrates the maritime history of the Mount Desert Island region, mounting exhibits relating to local maritime

I’ istory, offering programing, and responding to inquiries from researchers and members of the public. Beyond its function as a
useum, the Great Harbor Maritime Museum provides the only public restrooms in Northeast Harbor’s commercial district.

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be
counted once toward the total regardless ofhow many different programs/services are provided
to him/her): 1400 (estimated)

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? I Daily

Estimated value for services provided to residents of the TOMD : $
[500÷ value to Main

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ I 0.

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of
the TOMD:
Ieyond the services mentioned earlier, we provide the only public restrooms on Main Street. These are vitally important for

isitors, those shopping on Main Street, and those who come to the village for events like the Marathon and gallery openings.

What are your plans for fundraisers?

3 reat Harbor Maritime Museum
01 (c)(3) organization
O Box 145
‘Jortheast Harbor, Maine 04662

24 Main Street
lortheast Harbor, Maine 04662
07-276-5262
t!illie Granston, Kelsea Squires

greatharbormm @gmail.com

1 Gross payroll $ 113,897

$3,897

$1
Ii Part Time

jrhe museum supports itself through grants, appeal letters, and money collected at the door. The money allocated by the town is
[i sed for the Main Street public bathrooms.



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMD.
i.e. : If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.

he funds provided by the Town are used to maintain and care for the public restrooms. During the summer the bathrooms are
n constant use, often with a line of people waiting to get into them and funding from the town offsets the costs of daily cleaning,
athroom supplies, utilities, and maintenance as needed. These bathrooms were installed by the Town in 1 932 to serve the Main
treet commercial district and were cared for by the town until roughly 2010. Without the support ofthe town, the bathrooms
ould have to be closed and there would be no public restrooms in Northeast Harbor aside from those at the marina.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ I 5,500 I

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years:

2022: $ I°° I 202 1 : $15,500 2O2O: $ I ° museum wss closed I

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation.

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMB would be spent during the
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%,
Benefits 25%, etc.)

athroom Total Budget: $5,500
leaning - 60%
biletries/Supplies - 20%
laintenance/Utilities - 20%

I ((e-tc-e-i:, Stdre-- I January 20, 2023

Signature of Rquester Date of Request

relsea Squires, Treasurer

Printed Name and Title of Requester

Reminder: A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, iKimball Road, Northeast Harbor.

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the
Town Office 276-553 1 or by email at manager(mtdesert.org or townclerkmtdesert.org

Special Note. Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment if
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by
September 30, 2024).

Page 2 of 2
C:\Users\zharris\Documents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Zach’s Edits.docx



Great Harbor Maritime Museum
Town of Mount Desert Third Party Request
Supplemental Financial Information

2022
Operating Budget: $27,862.00

Payroll: $13,897.00
Utilities/Insurance $4,600.00
Exhibit/Event costs: $2,500.00
Maintenance/

Prof. Fees $1,365.00
Bathrooms: $5,500.00









TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR

PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS

Questionnaire Due Date: February 3, 2023

Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee

Meeting Date to Review: February 2 1 , 2023 (A-L)
February 22, 2023 (M-Z)

Organization Name

Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
Mailing Address:

Physical Address (if different)

Phone Number:
Contact Person:

Contact Email:

Attach most recent Financial Report j

_______________

Gross operating budget: $127,862

_________________

Salary and other compensation ofhighest paid employee:

______________

Salary and other compensation oflowest paid employee:
Number ofPaid Employees: ° Full Time
Number ofvolunteers: 18

Narrative ofwhat services your organization specifically provides to the residents ofthe Town

of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents ofother island towns in this narrative):

Irhe museum celebrates the maritime history of the Mount Desert Island region, mounting exhibits relating to local maritime

I’ istory, offering programing, and responding to inquiries from researchers and members of the public. Beyond its function as a
useum, the Great Harbor Maritime Museum provides the only public restrooms in Northeast Harbor’s commercial district.

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be
counted once toward the total regardless ofhow many different programs/services are provided
to him/her): 1400 (estimated)

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? I Daily

Estimated value for services provided to residents of the TOMD : $
[500÷ value to Main

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ I 0.

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of
the TOMD:
Ieyond the services mentioned earlier, we provide the only public restrooms on Main Street. These are vitally important for

isitors, those shopping on Main Street, and those who come to the village for events like the Marathon and gallery openings.

What are your plans for fundraisers?

3 reat Harbor Maritime Museum
01 (c)(3) organization
O Box 145
‘Jortheast Harbor, Maine 04662

24 Main Street
lortheast Harbor, Maine 04662
07-276-5262
t!illie Granston, Kelsea Squires

greatharbormm @gmail.com

1 Gross payroll $ 113,897

$3,897

$1
Ii Part Time

jrhe museum supports itself through grants, appeal letters, and money collected at the door. The money allocated by the town is
[i sed for the Main Street public bathrooms.



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMD.
i.e. : If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.

he funds provided by the Town are used to maintain and care for the public restrooms. During the summer the bathrooms are
n constant use, often with a line of people waiting to get into them and funding from the town offsets the costs of daily cleaning,
athroom supplies, utilities, and maintenance as needed. These bathrooms were installed by the Town in 1 932 to serve the Main
treet commercial district and were cared for by the town until roughly 2010. Without the support ofthe town, the bathrooms
ould have to be closed and there would be no public restrooms in Northeast Harbor aside from those at the marina.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ I 5,500 I

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years:

2022: $ I°° I 202 1 : $15,500 2O2O: $ I ° museum wss closed I

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation.

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMB would be spent during the
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%,
Benefits 25%, etc.)

athroom Total Budget: $5,500
leaning - 60%
biletries/Supplies - 20%
laintenance/Utilities - 20%

I ((e-tc-e-i:, Stdre-- I January 20, 2023

Signature of Rquester Date of Request

relsea Squires, Treasurer

Printed Name and Title of Requester

Reminder: A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, iKimball Road, Northeast Harbor.

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the
Town Office 276-553 1 or by email at manager(mtdesert.org or townclerkmtdesert.org

Special Note. Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment if
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by
September 30, 2024).

Page 2 of 2
C:\Users\zharris\Documents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Zach’s Edits.docx



Great Harbor Maritime Museum
Town of Mount Desert Third Party Request
Supplemental Financial Information

2022
Operating Budget: $27,862.00

Payroll: $13,897.00
Utilities/Insurance $4,600.00
Exhibit/Event costs: $2,500.00
Maintenance/

Prof. Fees $1,365.00
Bathrooms: $5,500.00



RECEIVED

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR JAN 3 0 2022

PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS

THE TOWN OF
Questionnaire Due Date: FbLBSy .3, Zi 3 MOUNT DESERT

Board of Selectmen and Warrant
Meeting Date to Review: Febru.ry 2 1 , 2023 (A-b)

!‘:I) 1 22, 23 :vi2:

Organization Name Health Equity Alliance (Formerly Down East AIDS Network)

Status (ex: 501(c)(3)) 501(c)(3)
. .

304 Hancock Street, Suite 3B
Mailing Address: Bangor Maine 04401

Physical Address (if different) 207-990-3626

Phone Number: Jill Henderson, Manager of Communications & Development

Contact Person:

Contact Email: jillmainehealthequity.org

Attach most recent Financial Report

_______________

Gross operating budget: $12133827 I Gross payroll $ Li840 I
Salary and other compensation ofhighest paid employee: $1118800

Salary and other compensation of lowest paid employee: $ 38680 I
Number of Paid Employees: Li 5 1 Full Time Ii I Part Time
Number of volunteers:

Narrative ofwhat services your organization specifically provides to the residents ofthe Town
of Mount Desert (TOMB) (please do not include residents ofother island towns in this narrative):
Our services include Medical Case Management for people living with HIV, free HIV and Hepatitis C testing and linkage to
care, and harm reduction services including overdose prevention through naloxone distribution.

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be
counted once toward the total regardless ofhow many different programs/services are provided
to him/her): Iunknown I

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? IUnknown I

Estimated value for services provided to residents ofthe TOMD: $ lunkown I

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ jo I

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of
the TOMD:
Our services include Medical Case Management for people living with HIV, free HIV and Hepatitis C testing and linkage to
care, and harm reduction services including overdose prevention through naloxone distribution. We serve areas surrounding

What are your plans for fundraisers?
HEAL has several fundraisers planned throughout the year, including peer to peer events in the summer, fall fundraising
events, and an end of year donor campaign.



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMB.
i.e. : If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.
Funds received would be used in HEALs general operating budget, which allows us to keep our services free to all clients.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ Lpp I

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMB in previous years:

2022: $180 12021: $1500 12020: $Isoo I

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation.

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMB would be spent during the
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%,
Benefits 25%, etc.)
Salary - 50%
Benefits - 25%
dministration - 25%

I i.ii Li ...I DigtaIIy signed by Jill Henderson

I’) enuerson Dote. 2023.01 27 10:49.32 -0500’ I 1 /27/23 I
Signature of Requester Date of Request

I Jill Henderson, Manager of Communications & Development

Printed Name and Title of Requester

Reminder: A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, iKimball Road, Northeast Harbor.

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the
Town Office 276-553 1 or by email at or townclerkmtdeseaorg

Special Note: Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment f’
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by
September 30, 2024).

Page 2 of 2
C:\Users\zharris\Documents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Zach’s Editsdocx



Dec‐22
Assets

10151	Bank	Account	#8970 45,683
12200		Accounts	Receivable 161,217
12750	Prepaid	Employee	Benefits 3,349
12800	Prepaid	Insurance 16,998
12850	Prepaid	Software 1,232
12855	ERTC	Receivable 154,790
13100	Equipment 44,891
13200	Accum	Depr	Equipment -7,631

Total	Assets 420,528
Liabilities

20000	Accounts	Payable -70,550 Back rent, Amerisource, etc
21000	Credit	Cards -2,357
21700	Line	of	Credit 59,456
22400	Employee	Benefit	Deductions 4,879
22600	DHHS	Audit	PP	100349 68,704
31100	Unrestricted	Net	Assets 121,009
31200	Restricted	Net	Assets 540,002
Net	Assets 661,011
Net	Income -300,614
Total	Equity 360,397

Total	Liabilities	and	Equity 420,528

For expanded detail or clarification, please email jenny.wormington@mainehealthequity.org

Balance	Sheet
Dec‐22



Nov‐22 Dec‐22
Income

40000	Fundraising	Income 43,463 -1,033 Loan repayment
41000	Grant/Contract	Revenues 10,062 2,052
42000	340B 22,172 23,096
43000	Billable	Services

46000	Federal	Grants

47000	State	Grants 42,151 30,758
48000	Foundation	Grants

48042	UWEM	2022

49000	Other	Income

49010	Interest	Revenue 116 246
Total	Income 117,964 55,119
Expenses

50000	PLWHA 642
50800	Harm	Reduction	Client	Expenses -218
51000	Occupancy 4,114 1,664
51150	Telecom	Services 575 585
52000	Payroll 78,292 111,446 3 payrolls in Dec
53000	Adv.	&	Publicity

53050	Meetings

53100	Fees 29 285 Overdraft

53150	Insurance	Expense 13,329
53200	Maintenance 1,365
53250	Postage

53300	Promotional	Materials	&	Professional	Printing

53350	Professional/Technical	Services 7,749 4,590
53500	Consultants 500
54000	Materials	&	Supplies 7,246 12,723 MISTR
55000	Misc.	Expenses

55250	Memberships 380 189
55800	Staff	Training/Professional	Development

56000	Travel

71000	Development	/	Fundraising	Expenses

Total	Expenses 113,503 131,982
Net	Income 4,461 -76,863

Profit	and	Loss
Dec‐22























TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT RECEIVED

MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR
PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS JAN 2 2022

Questionnaire Due Date: February 3, 2023 THE TOWN OF
. MOUNT DESERT

Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee
Meeting Date to Review: February 21, 2023 (A-L)

February 22, 2023 (M-Z)

Organization Name
Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
Mailing Address:

_________________________________________

Physical Address (if different)
Phone Number:
Contact Person:

Contact Email: mobymeisIandhousingtrust.org

Attach most recent Financial Report

_______________

Gross operating budget: $1467,660 I Gross payroll 4 1210A70

Salary and other compensation ofhighest paid employee:
Salary and other compensation of lowest paid employee:
Number ofPaid Employees: 13 IFull Time
Number ofvolunteers: 15

Narrative ofwhat services your organization specifically provides to the residents ofthe Town
of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents of other island towns in this narrative):
IHT promotes viable, year-round communities by advancing year-round housing on MDL IHT holds covenants on I 7 properties,
with more than 50 residents in the Town of Mount Desert, including the IHT Ripples Hill neighborhood. Plans are in progress to
expand the neighborhood, adding up to 10 new housing units in the next few years.

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be
counted once toward the total regardless ofhow many different programs/services are provided
to him/her): 154 1

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? ongoing

Estimated value for services provided to residents ofthe TOMD: $ Ipnceless I

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ INA I

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of
the TOMD:
IHT provides the same services for residents outside of Mount Desert: assisting eligible home buyers with down payments in
exchange for covenants on the properties to keep housing affordable for MDI’s workforce.

What are your plans for fundraisers?

Island Housing Trust
501(c)(3)
P0 Box 851, Mount Desert, ME 04660

1366 ME 102, Bar Harbor ME 04609
207-244-8011
Maria O’Byme

$r3,4oo

$[6,ooo

10 IPart Time

IHT sends two appeals each year, and produces two newsletters and an annual report that include fundraising appeals. Online
donations are accepted all year. IHT holds small summer events for cultivation and stewardship of donors and prospects.



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMD.
i.e. : If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.
Home Ownership Assistance Program applicants who are approved for funding will receive HOAP funds to help with down]
payment of their home purchase. These funds will help place a working family in a home on MDI and covenants ensure the
house remains affordable for year-round residents working on MDI. If funds were to be denied, the amount of funds available to
homeowners would be reduced.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ 17,500 1

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years:

2022: $ [7,500 I 202 1 : $17,500 12020: $17,500 1

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation.

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMD would be spent during the
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%,
Benefits 25%, etc.)
IHT will use 100% ofthe funding from the Town of Mount Desert to help qualified applicants bridge financing gaps as part of
IHT’s Home Ownership Assistance Program. HOAP applicants identify a property on MDI to purchase, negotiate a fair price,
and apply to IHT for assistance to meet their down payment requirements, agreeing to covenants on their home. Typical HOAP
funding is $25,000 - $30,000. Covenants ensure affordability for future owners.

I /Ja_1L1t.A_.
&( I 11/24/23 I

Sigr(a’ttire of Reques Date of Request

I Maria O’Byrne, Executive Director

Printed Name and Title of Requester

Reminder: A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, iKimball Road, Northeast Harbor.

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the
Towii Office 276-553 1 or by email at manager(mtdesert.org or townclerk(mtdesert.org

Special Note: Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment f
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by
September 30, 2024).

Page 2 of 2
C:\Users\zharris\Docurnents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023_Zach’s Edits.docx



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
PC Box 85 I Mount Desert Mai ne 04660

January 24, 2023

Durlin Lunt
Mount Desert Town Manager
P0 Box 248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662

Dear Durlin:

With greatappreciation for the Town of Mount Desert’s past support to Island Housing Trust’s Home Ownership
Assistance Prógr1FiOAP), I am requesting $7,500 be added to the Town’s 2024 budget to continue its support
of HOAP. Please find enclosed Island Housing Trust’s request for funding.

IHT’s HOAP program provides bridge funding to home buyers who can afford the mortgage payments of a home
purchase, but do not have sufficient cash in hand for the required down payment and closing costs. IHT
established the HOAP program in 2010, recognizing that ready cash was often the only obstacle to year-round
households seeking to purchase a home on MDI where they work. Since then, IHT has enabled the purchase of 18
homes with HOAP funding in all four towns, two within the Town of Mount Desert.

The average HOAP funding award is $25,000 - $30,000. IHT is asking each town on MDI to contribute to HOAP, as
needed support that enables us to continue this program and of equal importance, to demonstrate each town’s
commitment to promoting year-round housing in their community. A contribution from the Town of Mount
Desert would be leveraged with funds from grants and donations to help a median income household live on MDI.

HOAP funding remains with the house, so that when resold, the purchase price is reduced by the awarded HOAP
funding, keeping it affordable into the future. IHT holds affordability covenants that transfer with the property,
and keep the resale value within an affordable range for year-round employees on MDI.

Every HOAP property builds the portfolio of protected year-round homes, keeping our year-round neighborhoods
more intact, allowing employees to live where they work and have their kids in school near their employment,
and fostering a stronger community of volunteers and customers for year-round businesses, all in a fairly low-
investment approach to support our year-round communities.

Funding for the HOAP program is truly an investment in the Town’s future as a year-round community.

Sincerely,

Maria O’Byrne
Executive Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Deedie Bouscaren, President. Joanne Harris, Vice President . Gregory Dalton, Secretary . Sandra Johnson, Treasurer

Jason Briggs . Erica Brooks. Susan Covino Buell . Sherri Dyer. Lydia Goetze . John C. Henry. John T. Kelly
Ted Koffman • Kendra Rand . Sydney Roberts Rockefeller • Peter Rogers . Gregory Scott . Christopher White • Averel Wilson

Marla OByrne, Executive Director

www.islandhousingtrust.org . (207) 244-8011



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31 2021



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT I & 2

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - December 31, 2021 3

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 4

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 5

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 6

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7- 13



Andrea S. White, CPA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS LeslieJ. Poake, CPA, CGMA

Shawn L. Charest, CPA

1 2 Stillwater Avenue, Suite 5 P0 Box 939 Bangor, Maine 04402-0939 telephone: 207 990-4585 800 784-0793 fax: 207 990-4584 email: Ighcpa@lghcpa.com
website: www.lghcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Island Housing Trust

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Island Housing Trust (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Island Housing Trust as of December 31 , 2021 , and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Island Housing Trust and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Island Housing Trust ‘s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.



. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Island Housing Trust’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Island Housing Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

LG&H

Bangor, Maine
July 18, 2022



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (including $420,191 in donor-restricted funds)
Investments
Promises to Give, net
Prepaid Expenses
Program Real Estate
Land Held in Perpetuity

TOTAL ASSETS

$ 2,146,938
72,380

1,760,000
2,070

50,675
653,395

$ 4,685,458

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Payroll Liabilities Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:
With donor restrictions:

Perpetual in nature
Purpose restrictions
Time restricted for future periods

Total Net Assets with donor restrictions

$ 267,300
689,428

1,520,786

4,847

Without donor restriction:
Board Designated for Stewardship
Board Designated from Capital Campaign
Board Designated Land Held in Perpetuity
Undesignated

Total Net Assets without donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

36,641
512,178
386,095

1,260,765
2,195,679

4,673,193

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4,685,458

$ 7,418

$ 12,265

2,477,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 3



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Satisfaction of Program Restrictions 776,859 (776,859)

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES

1,414,727 1,317,716 2,732,443

Program Services:
Workforce Housing Development 149,490 149,490

TOTAL EXPENSES 476,403 476,403

NET ASSETS - January 1, 2021 1,257,355 1,159,798 2,417,153

NET ASSETS -December 31, 2021 $ 2,195,679 $2,477,514 $4,673,193

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT WITH
DONOR DONOR

RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL

Contributions $ 416,381 $1,688,995 $2,105,376
Grants 215,000 405,017 620,017
Interest and Dividends 1,697 848 2,545
Appreciation (Depreciation) of Investments 5,171 (285) 4,886
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property (1,672) - (1,672)
Donated Services 811 - 811
Land Lease 480 - 480

Total 637,868 2,094,575 2,732,443

Supporting Services:
General Administrative
Fund Raising

Total Supporting Services

113,596
213,317

326,913

113,596
213,317

326,913

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 938,324 1,317,716 2,256,040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 4



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

TOTAL
Program SUPPORTING SERVICES EXPENSES

WORKFORCE GENERAL
HOUSING AND FUND

DEVELOPMENT ADMI NISTRATIVE RAISING

Wages $ 93,840 $ 51,027 $ 31,445 $ 176,312
PayroilTaxes 4,952 2,693 1,659 9,304
Employee Benefits 16,982 9,234 5,691 31,907
Rent 1,221 9,764 1,221 12,206
Telephone 231 1,850 231 2,312
Professional Fees 4,188 11,930 141,404 157,522
Postage, Shipping and Printing 2,893 1,516 25,917 30,326
Fundraising Event Expense - 722 722
Accounting 7,500 - 7,500
Legal 2,234 - 2,234
Insurance 1,530 1,697 3,227
Office Equipment & Supplies - 7,504 607 8,111
Books & Subscriptions 58 679 245 982
BankCharges 30 - 3,720 3,750
HOAP Funding 520 - - 520
Advertising 6,365 50 347 6,762
Professional Development 420 281 100 801
Jones Marsh Expense 61,722 - - 61,722
Lookout Way 10,744 - - 10,744
Wildwood Expense 2,070 - - 2070
New Projects 2,036 - - 2,036
Stewardship Expenses 769 4,948 - 5,717
Miscellaneous 82 689 8 779

210,653 113,596 213,317 537,566
Less: Costs capitalized as part

the project costs to get Jones

Marsh ready for development

and subsequent sale (61,16) (61,163)

Total Expenses Reported in

the Statement of Activities $ 149,490 $ 113,596 $ 213,317 $ 476,403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 5



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided (Used) by

Operating Activities:
Noncash Contributions
Loss (Gain) from Sale of Property
Closing Costs Paid with Sales Proceeds
Depreciation (Appreciation) of Investments
Reinvested Dividends
Decrease (Increase) in Promises to Give
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities Payable

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$ 2,256,040

(811)
(1,672)

(783)
(4,886)
(2,046)

(1,022,462)
107

(17,025)
(933)

1,205,529

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of Property
Transfer into Investment Account
Capitalized Development Costs

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

175,548
(30,076)
(61,163)

84,309

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,289,838

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 857,100

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - End of Year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

$ 2,146,938

CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR:
Interest Expense $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. Page 6



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Island Housing Trust have been prepared on the accrual basis. The
significant accounting policies followed in preparing the financial statements are described below.

A. Nature of Operations

The mission of the Island Housing Trust is to promote viable, year-round island communities by
advancing permanent workforce housing on Mount Desert Island, Maine. The Organization’s
support comes primarily from individual and foundation donor contributions.

B. Cash

The Organization maintains its cash in five accounts at three different banks in Maine.
Accounts at the institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to $250,000 for each bank and an insured cash sweep account with a balance of
$1 450,216. As of December 31, 2021 , $277,011 of cash is at risk. The Organization believes
it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash balances.

C. Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers investments having a
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

D. Promisesto Give

The Organization records unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected
within one year at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be collected
in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value techniques incorporating
risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use
in pricing the asset. In subsequent years, amortization of the discounts is included in
contributions revenue in the statement of activities. The Organization determines the
allowance for uncollectible promises to give based on historical experience, as assessment of
economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Promises to give are written off
when deemed uncollectible. No allowance is provided for in these financial statements, as
Management deems promises to give substantially collectible. There is an allowance for
discounting future pledges to present value, see Note 3.

E. Investments

The Organization records investment purchases at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date
of donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the statements of
financial position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and
consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized capital gains and losses, less
external and direct internal investment expenses, if any.

F. Fixed Assets

Contributed land, buildings, and equipment are recorded as unrestricted support and revenue
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose or use, in which case

Page 7



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

the donation wifl be recorded as with donor restrictions. Such gifts will be released from
restricted net assets upon being placed in service or used as instructed by the donor. Gifts of
cash restricted to the purchase of fixed assets are reported as restricted contributions and
released from restrictions when the fixed assets have been placed in service.

It is the Organization’s intention to hold program land indefinitely and classify this as land on
the statement of financial position. The land is held at fair market value at the time of donation
or at the original purchase price if the Organization bought it.

When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost is removed from the accounts, and any
resulting gain or loss is included in the statement of activities.

G. Program Real Estate

Program Real Estate consists of properties intended to be sold to qualified participants. It is
recorded at fair market value at the time of donation or if purchased at the original cost plus
closing fees.

H. Net Assets

Island Housing Trust follows accounting standards that require net assets and revenues,
expenses, gains, and losses to be classified based on the existence or absence of donor or
grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of Island Housing Trust and the
changes therein have been classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations
and not subject to donor restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor)
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Contributions are recognized when cash,
securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial
interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions
on which they depend have been substantially met. Land lease income is recognized
when billed on an annual basis.

J. Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Contributions and gifts in a form other than cash are recorded at fair market value on the date
such assets are received. In accordance with ASC Section 958, donated services are only
recognized if they (a) enhance nonfinancial assets; or (b) require specialized skills, are
provided by those individuals or companies that possess those skills, and would need to be

Page 8



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

purchased if they were not donated. Most of the services received by the Organization do not
meet these criteria. During the year ended December 31 2021 $81 I of donated services were
recognized.

K. Income Taxes

The Organization is tax exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in Section 501(c)(3), and is classified by the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) as other than a private foundation. However, the Internal Revenue Code may subject an
organization to tax on unrelated business taxable income. It is Management’s opinion that the
Organization had no unrelated business taxable income during the year ended December 31,
2021.

L. Advertising Costs

The Organization uses advertising to promote its programs among the audiences it serves.
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the year ended December
31, 2021, was $6,762.

M. Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of programs and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents
the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

N. Compensated Absences

The Organization allows 80 hours of earned leave for eligible employees in the first two years
of employment. In year three of employment, eligible employees are allowed 120 hours of
earned annual leave. The Organization allows a maximum of 40 hours of earned annual leave
to be carried forward to a subsequent year. Eligible employees who end their employment with
the Organization are reimbursed for each day of earned accumulated annual leave.

0. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $1,214,569
Promises to Give 66,000

$1,280,569

Page 9



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

The Organization’s stewardship fund consists of cash and investments designated by the board for
stewardship. Although the Organization does not intend to spend from the board-designated
stewardship fund, $42,357 could be made available if necessary.
As part of the Organization’s (generally informal) liquidity management plan, the Organization
invests cash in excess of normal operational needs in higher yielding savings accounts.

3. PROMISES TO GIVE

Unconditional promises to give are included in the financial statements as promises to give and
revenue in the appropriate net asset category. Promises to give are recorded after discounting to
the present value of the future cash flows, using a discount rate of 3%

Proceeds from the unconditional promises to give are expected to be received in the following
periods:

In one year or less $ 952,453
Between one year and five years 901,447

Total 1,853,900
LESS: Discount (93900)

Net Promises to Give $1,760,000

Approximately 40% of pledges receivable are from 5 donors.

4. INVESTMENTS

All investments are held in one mutual fund that invests 60% in corporate stocks and 40% in
corporate bonds.

Additionally, components of investment return are as follows:

Interest and Dividends $ 848
Appreciation (Depreciation) of

Investments $1,198
Investment Fees -

5. PROGRAM LAND

The following is a summary of the cost of program land as of December 31, 2021:

Ripples Hill $152,700
Beech Hill Road 115,874
Jones Marsh 254,112
Sylvan Road 130,709

Total $653,395

The organization holds title to these parcels of Program Land with the expectation of holding the
land indefinitely for the purpose of keeping the current and future prices of the homes affordable.

Page 10



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

With the exception of the Ripples Hill land, a 99-year lease on the land is given to the home owner.
IHT has a right of first refusal when the homeowner wishes to sell the home, and a new 99-year
lease is granted to the new buyers.

6. LINE-OF-CREDIT

The Organization has a line-of-credit with Bar Harbor Savings and Loan that has a credit limit of
$125,000. No amount was drawn on the line-of-credit at December 31, 2021.

7. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions as of December 31, 2021, are restricted for the following
purposes or periods:

Perpetual in nature:
Land

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Opportunity Fund
Jones Marsh
Stewardship
HOAP
Chris’s Pond Project
Southwest Harbor Project

Subject to the passage of time:
Promises to give that are not restricted by donors, but

which are unavailable for expenditure until due
Total Net Assets with donor restrictions

$ 267,300

163,000
408,835

30,023
70,499

5,576
11,495

689,428

1,520,786
$2,477,514

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purpose or by the occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by the donors as
follows:

Expiration of time restrictions $695,848

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Jones Marsh
HOAP
PPP Loan Refund

Total released from restrictions

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Organization offers a Simple IRA benefit plan to its employees. Under the Simple IRA,
employees can contribute immediately upon hiring and employees are eligible for a matching
employer contribution, currently at 3% of wages, after six months of employment. Expense under
the Simple IRA plan for the year ended December 31, 2021, was $5,026.

$ 78,474
520

2,017
81,011

$776,859

Page 11



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

9. FUNCTIONALIZED EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated are done so based on estimates of the
program and supporting services the costs support.

10. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Organization has adopted ASC 820-1 0, Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurements. Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to
transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
(i.e., the exit price). ASC 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes and ranks the
level of market price observability used in measuring assets and liabilities at fair value.

Market price observability is impacted by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability,
the characteristics specific to the asset or liability, and the state of the marketplace (including the
existence and transparency of transactions between market participants). Assets and liabilities
with readily-available actively quoted prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively-
quoted prices in an orderly market will generally have a higher degree of market price observability
and a lesser degree ofjudgment used in measuring fair value.

Assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the
following categories based on inputs:

Level I - Pricing inputs are quoted prices available in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly, as of the reporting date, but are not the same as those used in Level I . Fair
value is derived principally from observable market data or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable for the assets or liabilities and include situations
where there is little, if any, market activity. The inputs into the determination of fair value
require significant judgment or estimation.

The following table summarizes the levels in the ASC 820-1 0 fair value hierarchy into which the
Organization’s financial instruments fall as of December 31, 2021:

Fair Value Level I Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Investments $ 72,380 $72,380
Multi-year Promises to Give 1,630,483 - - $1,630,483

Totals $1702863 $72,380 $1,630,483

The fair value of promises to give is measured on a non-recurring basis based on discounting
estimated future cash flows at a risk-adjusted rate (3%) that includes the effect of inflation (Level 3
inputs).

Page 12



ISLAND HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

11. UNCERTAINTIES

As a result ofthe COVID-19 outbreak in the United States, economic uncertainties continue to
arise that could potentially negatively impact gross revenues and income. Though the extent of
disruption is expected to be temporary, the ultimate extent of the financial impact and other
possible impacting matters are unknown at this time.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 18, 2022, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year end, the Organization purchased a property for $372,500 and sold the
improvements to eligible buyers for $302,800 with a 99-year lease on the land.

Also subsequent to year-end, the Organization entered into five contracts with Showcase Homes of
Maine to build four houses for $288,037 each and one duplex for $428,507 for the new Jones
Marsh neighborhood.

Page 13



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
MANDATORY QUESTIONNAIRE FOR 

PROPOSED FY 2023-2024 BUDGET REQUESTS 

Questionnaire Due Date: 
Board of Selectmen and Warrant Committee 
Meeting Date to Review: 

February 3, 2023 

February 21, 2023 (A-L) 
February 22, 2023 (M-Z) 

Organization Name 
Status (ex: 501(c)(3)) 
Mailing Address: 

Physical Address (if different) 
Phone Number: 
Contact Person: 

Contact Email: 

Attach most recent Financial Report 
Gross operating budget: $ Gross payroll $ 
Salary and other compensation of highest paid employee: $ 
Salary and other compensation of lowest paid employee: $ 
Number of Paid Employees: Full Time Part Time 
Number of volunteers: 

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents of the Town 
of Mount Desert (TOMD) (please do not include residents of other island towns in this narrative): 

Total number of TOMD residents your organization served last year (a resident may only be 
counted once toward the total regardless of how many different programs/services are provided 
to him/her): 

How many times per month was this service used by TOMD residents? 

Estimated value for services provided to residents of the TOMD: $ 

What amount is each TOMD resident being served charged? $ 

Narrative of what services your organization specifically provides to the residents outside of 
the TOMD: 

What are your plans for fundraisers? 



Town of Mount Desert Budget Questionnaire 

Please explain what services will be provided by any funds you may receive from the TOMD. 
i.e.: If the request were to be denied, in whole or in part, would specific program costs /plans
have to be curtailed or cut? If so, please expand.

Amount you are requesting for FY 2023-2024: $ 

Please indicate what you have received from the TOMD in previous years: 

2022: $      2021: $     2020: $ 

Note: Prior awards and/or current requests are not indicators or guarantees of 
Selectboard recommendation or Town Meeting appropriation. The Selectboard reserves 
the right to recommend an amount of their choosing for appropriation. 

Please explain how the funds you may receive from the TOMD would be spent during the 
fiscal year: (Please express expenditures as percentages of total budget, i.e., Salaries 40%, 
Benefits 25%, etc.) 

Signature of Requester Date of Request 

Printed Name and Title of Requester 

Reminder:  A representative from your organization shall attend the combined Board of 
Selectmen/Warrant Committee meeting at 6:30 p.m., TUESDAY February 21, 2023 (A-L 
organizations) or WEDNESDAY February 22, 2023 (M-Z organizations), in the 
Meeting Room, Town Hall, 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor (the meeting will also be 
available via Zoom) in order for the request to be considered. Attendance is 
also recommended at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m. at the 
NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE, 1Kimball Road, Northeast Harbor. 

Questions? Contact Durlin E. Lunt, Jr., Town Manager or Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk at the 
Town Office 276-5531 or by email at manager@mtdesert.org or townclerk@mtdesert.org 

Special Note:  Your organization is no longer required to submit an invoice for payment if 
your request is approved at the Annual Town Meeting; rather, the Treasurer will make 
payment as soon as cash flow permits within the first three months of the fiscal year (or by 
September 30, 2024). 

Page 2 of 2 
C:\Users\zharris\Documents\3RD PARTY Questionnaire 2023_Zach's Edits.docx 

mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org












 

 

 

Selectboard, 

I am writing to request your approval to have a Bar Harbor Assessing Technician assist the Town of 
Mount Desert with assessing tasks as needed. 

As you are aware, the process of assessing is critical to the operations of the town and is central to the 
determination of property taxes for our residents.  

Bar Harbor has recently hired an Assessing Technician and is eager to provide training opportunities by 
offering their assistance to the Town of Mount Desert in fulfilling assessing duties as required.  I am 
pleased to report that there will be no cost associated with this proposal, as Bar Harbor will continue to 
pay the Assessing Technician. 

I believe that this assistance will help us to meet our assessing obligations in a timely and efficient 
manner, while also helping to ensure the accuracy of our property tax assessments. 

I would appreciate your consideration of this proposal and look forward to your favorable response. If 
you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Zach Harris 

Human Resources 

Town of Mount Desert 
Zach Harris, Human Resources 

21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 
Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 

 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
humanresources@barharbormaine.gov 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


 

February 16, 2023 

Selectboard, 

In the Fall of 2022, through an RFP process and conversations with our current financial partners, we 
secured substantial increases in interest rates for operating money market funds and the Insured Cash 
Sweep associated with the Town’s general operating bank account.  

At the 2/8/23 investment committee meeting, potential reallocation of funds was discussed in light of 
these changes in rates. As disclosed in my quarterly reports, the Town has various bank accounts that 
serve different purposes. For example, a Capital Funds Bond Proceeds account exists for housing 
unspent bond proceeds for easier arbitrage compliance analysis and a non-interest-bearing account 
exists for housing unspent ARPA award funds to ensure compliance with earning restrictions on federal 
funds. One special bank account that was previously established was identified by the Investment 
Committee as an advantageous candidate for reallocation is the Payment Processing Business Checking 
account and associated Insured Cash Sweep account. This account houses all credit card activity at the 
Marina. As credit card payments received vastly outweigh the processing fees that are also applied to 
the account, the balance of the account has steadily increased over the years ($914,381.11 as of 
1/31/23). The separate account was likely established to segregate this activity type for reconciliation 
purposes. Prior to the Fall of 2022, all of the Town’s Insured Cash Sweep accounts were earning the 
same interest rate. So, there was no incentive to adjust the existing practice. In their 2/8/23 meeting, 
the Investment Committee felt that the difference in interest rates between the General operating ICS 
and Payment Processing ICS accounts (3.25% and 0.50%, respectively) was sufficient to warrant 
amending practice to maximize interest income. As such, the Investment Committee recommended 
that: 

- All Marina credit card activity be processed through the Town’s General Operating Account 
(#7618), 

- The payment processing account (#7881) be closed, and 
- All funds in the payment processing account (#7881) be transferred to the Town’s General 

Operating Account 

As both the payment processing account and the general operating account are assets recognized within 
the general operating fund, this does not represent a transfer from the Marina enterprise fund to the 
general operating fund, despite the funds in question being generated from Marina activity. The Marina 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


has never had a bank account recognized within the Enterprise Fund. Instead, all activity (Receipts as 
well and disbursements) impacts the inter-fund receivable and corresponding liability between the 
General Fund and the Marina Enterprise Fund. Currently, all cash and checks received at the Marina are 
deposited to the General Operating Account (#7618). As such, the recommendation to close the 
payment processing account (#7881) is just a recommendation to process credit cards from Marina 
transactions through the same bank account as the cash and checks received through Marina 
transactions.  

Additionally, I do not believe that this recommendation poses any material difficulties for our 
reconciliation procedures.  

Finally, I did discuss the proposal with a representative from Bar Harbor Bank & Trust. They had no 
concerns about processing Marina credit card activity through the General Operating Account. For 
context, credit card activity processed at the Town Office for municipal transactions is applied to the 
general operating account (#7618).  

Recommendation: 

- Authorize the Office of the Treasurer to do all things necessary to process Marina credit card 
activity through the Town’s General Operating Account (#7618), 

- Authorize the closure of the payment processing account (#7881), and 
- Authorize all funds in the payment processing account (#7881) be transferred to the Town’s 

General Operating Account (#7618) 

 

Thank you, 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 

 

 



Town of Mount Desert 
Investment Policy 

Adopted March 1986 
Amended May 4, 2010 
Amended May 3, 2016 

 
PURPOSE  
Maine state statutes authorize Treasurers to deposit or invest municipal funds by direction of the 
municipal officers.  
 
Pursuant to 30-A MSR 5706-5717; the municipality of Town of Mount Desert, Maine shall adopt 
the following investment objectives in the management and investment of municipal funds:  
 
The primary objective of the municipality’s investment activities is the preservation of capital and 
the protection of investment principal.  
 
In investing public funds, the municipality will strive to maximize the return on the portfolio.  
 
The municipality’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the municipality to 
meet operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated.  
 
The municipality will diversify its investments to avoid incurring unreasonable and avoidable 
risks regarding specific security types or individual financial institutions.  
 
The municipal Treasurer shall invest funds for which there is no immediate need, consistent with 
30-A MSR5706-5717, sell and exchange securities so purchased, and deposit such securities 
for safekeeping. All investment decisions shall be made considering the investment objectives 
contained herein and exercising judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing.  
 
The Treasurer may utilize Trust Department services of approved banks.  
 
BACKGROUND  
In addition to short term investment of operational funds, the Town has put aside for investment 
certain funds accumulated over time for which there is not an immediate need. It is these funds 
which will generally be invested through the Trust companies.  
 
Although these monies are not to be considered as permanent endowment, it is not 
contemplated that they will be expended in the immediate future. They should be regarded as 
reserve funds, and it is the desire of the Selectmen to develop investment guidelines to be 
followed by the fund managers in selecting securities for investment.  
 
Broadly speaking, the funds are to be divided into two parts.  One part, at least ($500,000) of 
the total, is to be considered a relatively short term reserve to be available on short notice for 
use by the Town.   The second part, consisting of the balance, shall be held as a long-term 
reserve. 
 
 
SPECIFIC GUIDELINES FOR THE TRUST COMPANIES:  
The managers of the funds are directed to invest both the long term and the short term reserves 
with the goal that the total return of the funds shall at least equal the rate of inflation over a five 
year time span as measured by the GNP price deflator.  



 
SHORT TERM RESERVE  
The short term reserve shall be invested in certificates of deposit, money market funds, U.S. 
Treasury obligations, U.S. Government agency obligations, insured cash sweep, and corporate 
debt instruments with at least an A rating.  
 
No security shall carry a maturity of more than five years, and the average maturity of all assets 
in the short term reserve shall be no longer than three years.  
 
The securities of any one issuer shall not constitute more than 5% of the short term reserve.  
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, or Government agencies, guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government, shall not be subject to this restriction.  
 
The current yield on the short term reserve fund as a whole shall at least equal the U. S. 
Treasury one year bill rate.  
 
LONGER TERM RESERVE  
The fund manager shall invest the assets of this portion of the fund similarly to those securities 
listed in the SHORT TERM RESERVE guidelines above, but without limitation as to maturity on 
fixed income instruments.  
 
In addition, equities, and convertible debt securities may be bought, subject to the limitation that 
the percentage of common stocks and convertible securities should not exceed 65%, as 
measured by market value.  
 
Investments will also be subject to the limitation that the securities of any one issuer shall not 
exceed 5% of the total fund, except for obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Government 
agency bonds as defined above.  
 
PERFORMANCE:  
The total return of the long term reserve should be compared to appropriate investment indices.  
 
The performance figures should be prepared semi-annually, on the first and third quarters of the 
fiscal year, and will be compared over a three to five year time span. Reports from the trusts 
should be utilizing an investment basis format rather than a trust format.  
 
REPORTING  
The Treasurer shall report quarterly to the Board of Selectmen for the purpose of monitoring the 
performance and structure of the municipal investments.  
 
In addition, the Treasurer shall issue an annual investment report due no later than 30 days 
after the end of the fiscal year.  The report shall include an evaluation of the performance of the 
investment program for the previous year.  
 
REVIEW  
It shall be the duty of the Investment Committee, as appointed by the Board of Selectmen, to 
review the reports of the Treasurer and the Trusts. 
 
The committee shall be composed of: - a member of the Board of Selectmen; a member of the 
Warrant Committee; and three citizens of the Town. Three (3) voting members must be present 



to constitute a quorum. The Town Treasurer and Town Manager participate as non-voting ex 
officio members. 
 
Said committee will meet quarterly for this purpose.  The Committee may make 
recommendations to the Board of Selectmen for redistribution of the funds, withdrawal or 
adjustment of Trust balances and reinvestment, and/or withdrawal or application to reduce taxes 
of any interest earnings on the investments.  
 
It is the express intention of the Board of Selectmen to protect future value of the funds, and 
therefore, it shall be the policy of the Board of Selectmen to disregard any realized or unrealized 
capital gain in the fund when considering earnings available for withdrawal.  
 
All municipal personnel involved in the investment program shall adhere to the Town’s Charter 
to prevent any real or perceived violation of their fiduciary responsibilities  

 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT RESERVE FUND INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
A. Investment Objectives 
 

 Preservation of capital/protection of investment principal  
 Total rate of return at least equal to the inflation rate (GDP price deflator) over five-year periods  
 Total fund return to compare favorably with established market indices over 3-5 year periods  

 
B. Investment Guidelines and Constraints 
 

 Liquidity requirement – $500,000 
 Social/Moral Constraints – None 7% to 12% of equity allocation invested in existing 

Environmental, social and governance (ESG) fund(s) 
 Equity Securities (common stocks and convertible securities): 

Portfolio maximum = 65% of total fund  
Portfolio minimum = 35% of total fund  
Position/issuer maximum = 5% of total fund  

 Fixed-income Securities:  
Credit quality = “A” minimum  
Maturity Limitations = None  
Portfolio maximum = 65% of total fund  
Portfolio minimum = 35% of total fund  
Position/issuer maximum = 5% (exception: U.S. Treasury and government agency securities)  
 
C. Spending Policy 
 

 100% of income (interest and dividend income) distributed within the trust 
 Principal, realized, and unrealized capital gains may be distributed in conformance with the 

Town Charter. 
 



TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 2/21/2023

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2354 02/22/23 537,659.49              

537,659.49$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2352 02/08/23 46,773.04$              
AP#2353 02/15/23 5,698.00$                

Town Payroll
PR#2320 02/17/23 141,934.48$           

194,405.52$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#17 02/17/23 182,963.85$           

Town Voids

182,963.85$           

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 915,028.86$        

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2023 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2023.02.21 Selectboard 
Meeting\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





23
54

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

2,
 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
84

63
th

ro
ug

h
31

85
28

41
9,

88
7.

29
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
72

9
an

d
59

73
1

48
4.

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

26
15

th
ro

ug
h

26
42

11
7,

28
7.

46
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

n/
a

an
d

n/
a

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
53

7,
65

9.
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
8
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
7
8
2
1

A
n
t
e
n
n
a
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
t
 
s
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
8
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
7
8
0
6

S
c
o
u
t
 
C
a
r
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
/
B
C
I
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5
4
0
4
0
8
0
0
 
2
4
4
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
M
 
D
i
s
p
a
t
c
h
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
2
6
0
.
2
5

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
2
0
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
9
.
1
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
2
3
2
0
0
3

P
r
o
p
a
n
e
 
f
o
r
 
s
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
9
.
1
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
4
8
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
1
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
2
3
4
8
0
9

6
7
.
6
 
G
a
l
s
 
L
P
 
G
a
s
 
#
7
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
1
.
2
8
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
0
.
4
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
4
 
C
O
L
L
I
E
R
 
&
 
F
A
H
E
Y
,
 
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
0
3

M
a
c
Q
u
i
n
n
 
P
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
C
o
u
r
t
 
C
a
s
e
 
-
 
Q
u
a
r
r
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
4
4
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
B
 
L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
4
7
5
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
1
2
.
8
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
4
7
5
:
0
1

S
E
A
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
1
2
.
8
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
5
6
9
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
.
9
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
5
6
9
:
0
1

C
L
A
M
P
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
.
9
1
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
5
7
7
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
5
7
7
:
0
1

B
E
A
R
I
N
G
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
9
8
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
6
1
7
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
.
2
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
6
1
7
:
0
1

M
O
D
U
L
E
 
L
U
B
E
 
A
I
R
 
F
I
L
T
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
.
2
2
1
9
9
0
1
0
0
 
5
9
2
0
0
 
9
1
0
5
 

M
D
E
S
 
-
 
B
U
S
 
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
R
1
0
0
0
0
6
2
8
5
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
0
.
0
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
R
1
0
0
0
0
6
2
8
5
:
0
1

A
F
T
E
R
 
T
R
E
A
T
M
E
N
T
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
0
.
0
1
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
6
4
1
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
6
4
1
:
0
1

M
U
D
 
F
L
A
P
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
.
3
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
6
3
3
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
4
4
.
6
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
6
3
3
:
0
1

E
X
H
U
A
S
T
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
3
3
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
4
4
.
6
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
1
2
.
9
5

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
8
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
6
3
1
3
0
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
5
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
6
4
6
3
1
3
0
4
8

B
a
t
t
e
r
y
 
f
o
r
 
L
Y
 
L
a
p
t
o
p

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
5
9
1
2
2
0
5
5
1
 
5
3
6
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
O
F
T
W
A
R
E
 
P
K
G
 
P
U
R
C
H
A
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
5
0
3
3
8
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
8
.
7
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
6
5
0
3
3
8
0
6
4

A
P
C
 
B
a
t
t
e
r
y
 
B
a
c
k
u
p
 
(
3
)
 
f
o
r
 
A
d
m
i
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
8
.
7
3
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
2
5
3
9
1
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
0
.
4
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
6
4
2
5
3
9
1
5
8

N
e
w
 
C
o
m
p
u
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
0
.
4
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
4
2
.
7
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
4
5
1
.
3
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
8
0
1

T
I
P
 
F
E
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
4
5
1
.
3
1
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
5
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
I
P
P
I
N
G
 
F
E
E
 
E
M
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
4
5
1
.
3
1

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
7
 
G
A
F
T
E
K
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
0
0
0
2
9
5
1
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
2
.
2
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
0
0
0
2
9
5
1
1
1

I
N
S
P
E
C
T
I
O
N
/
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
2
.
2
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
6
2
.
2
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
6
4
.
6
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
5

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
F
i
r
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
6
4
.
6
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
8
.
7
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
3

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
O
f
f
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
8
.
7
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
9
.
1
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
6

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
9
.
1
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
.
2
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
1
5
5
2

I
T
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
 
G
a
r
a
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
1
.
2
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
4
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
T
/
T
E
C
H
 
F
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
5
4
3
.
7
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
 
H
E
D
E
F
I
N
E
 
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
2
0
0
0
2
A
-
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
6
9
1
.
8
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
0
0
2
A
-
1
8

C
A
 
f
o
r
 
N
E
H
 
e
x
p
a
n
s
i
o
n
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
6
9
1
.
8
0
3
0
0
0
0
5
3
 
5
7
7
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
,
6
9
1
.
8
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
6
 
D
U
R
L
I
N
 
L
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
5
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
5
4
4

T
o
w
n
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
T
r
a
v
e
l
 
E
x
p
e
n
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
7
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
2
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
O
W
N
 
M
G
R
 
E
X
P
E
N
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
7

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
3
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
3
 
H
W
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
4
.
6
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
3
 
H
W
Y

2
0
7
.
0
 
G
A
L
S
 
H
W
Y
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
F
u
e
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
4
.
6
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
3
 
W
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
0
.
1
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
3
 
W
W

2
5
7
.
9
 
G
A
L
S
 
W
W
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
F
u
e
l
/
P
F
A
S
 
I
c
e
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
0
.
1
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
3
 
B
&
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
4
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
3
 
B
&
G

7
7
.
2
 
G
A
L
S
 
B
&
G
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
F
u
e
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
4
.
3
8
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
2
9
.
2
3

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
6
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
P
M
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
2
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
3
.
6
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
2
4
4

1
3
3
.
1
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
N
E
H
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
h
o
p
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
3
.
6
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
3
.
6
3

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
1
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
9
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
9
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
4
9
7
1

S
t
a
t
.
 
2
 
h
e
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
u
e
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
9
.
2
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
4
3
2
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
-
S
2
 
S
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
9
.
2
8

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
2
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
9
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
7
.
1
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
4
9
8
7

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3
 
h
e
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
u
e
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
7
.
1
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
7
.
1
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
5
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
S
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
6
5
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
7
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
6
5
3
9

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
7
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
7
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
8
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
8
.
7
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
4
3
3
4

1
7
3
.
3
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
8
.
7
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
9
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
8
.
7
6

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
2
2
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
5
3
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
2
2
7
6

O
N
 
R
O
A
D
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
5
3
.
7
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
8
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
5
8
5
.
4
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
8
9
3

O
n
-
r
o
a
d
 
d
i
e
s
e
l
 
f
u
e
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
5
8
5
.
4
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
1
3
9
.
2
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
3
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
3
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
1
.
3
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
3
3
2

1
0
4
.
0
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
1
.
3
4
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
3
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
4
.
0
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
4
3
6
6

1
6
6
.
9
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
4
.
0
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
3
9
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
1
.
5
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
3
9
2
1

1
7
9
.
2
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
1
.
5
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
3
6
.
9
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
9
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
2
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
4
.
7
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
2
6
1

1
5
9
.
3
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
V
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
4
.
7
4
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
4
.
7
4

    



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
4
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
9
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
5
.
4
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
4
9
8
3

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
5
.
4
4
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
5
.
4
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
0
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
9
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
6
.
1
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
4
9
9
1

2
1
1
.
5
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
6
.
1
8
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
6
.
1
8

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
1
 
P
I
T
N
E
Y
 
B
O
W
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
1
4
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
1
4
2
3

P
o
s
t
a
g
e
 
r
e
f
i
l
l
 
2
/
7
/
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
.
5
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
O
S
T
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
7
.
5
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
1
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3

C
a
b
l
e
 
F
i
r
e
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
#
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
6
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
1
.
0
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
f
i
r
e
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
#
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
1
.
0
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
6
1
6
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
F
I
R
E
 
S
T
#
3
 
S
V
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
1
.
0
9

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
9
 
T
Y
L
E
R
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
5
-
4
0
2
8
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
2
7
.
5
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
4
5
-
4
0
2
8
2
7

M
U
N
I
S
 
S
o
f
t
w
a
r
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
2
7
.
5
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
3
3
0
 
8
0
0
 
 

S
O
F
T
W
A
R
E
 
M
U
N
I
S
 
L
I
C
E
N
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
3
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
6
2
7
.
5
5

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
6
-
1
 
0
1
2
5
2
0
2
3
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
5
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
6
-
1
 
0
1
2
5
2
0
2
3

B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
L
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
P
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
5
3
6
0
1
0
3
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
2
0
-
2
 
0
1
0
5
2
3
 
A
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
5
.
4
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
2
0
-
2
 
0
1
0
5
2
3
 
A

S
u
p
p
l
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
A
d
j
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
P
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
5
.
4
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
6
-
5
 
0
1
0
5
2
3
 
A
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
7
.
6
1



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
6
-
5
 
0
1
0
5
2
3
 
A

S
u
p
p
l
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
A
d
j
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
P
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
7
.
6
1
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
0
-
9
 
0
1
2
9
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
5
.
8
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
0
-
9
 
0
1
2
9
2
3

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
2
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y
 
b
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
5
.
8
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
4
3
2
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
-
S
2
 
S
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
2
-
3
 
0
1
0
4
2
3
 
A
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
6
.
6
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
2
-
3
 
0
1
0
4
2
3
 
A

S
u
p
p
l
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
A
d
j
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
6
.
6
8
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-
7
 
0
1
0
4
2
3
 
A
 
0
1
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
4
.
1
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-
7
 
0
1
0
4
2
3
 
A

S
u
p
p
l
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
A
d
j
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
4
.
1
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
9
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
9
-
0
 
0
1
0
7
2
3
 
A
 
0
1
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
6
1
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
9
-
0
 
0
1
0
7
2
3
 
A

S
u
p
p
l
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
A
d
j
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
6
1
.
9
8
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
4
-
6
 
0
1
0
5
2
3
 
A
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
2
.
4
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
4
-
6
 
0
1
0
5
2
3
 
A

S
u
p
p
l
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
A
d
j
 
S
e
a
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
2
.
4
1
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
0
-
9
 
1
1
2
6
2
0
2
3
A
1
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
1
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
0
-
9
 
1
1
2
6
2
0
2
3
A

P
a
i
d
 
1
4
9
.
2
0
 
S
/
H
 
P
a
i
d
 
1
4
9
.
3
7
 
S
t
a
t
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
1
7
6
0
1
0
2
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
5
-
9
 
0
2
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
0
.
5
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
5
-
9
 
0
2
0
2
2
3

1
2
2
5
 
K
W
H
 
S
H
 
L
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
0
.
5
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-
7
 
0
2
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
2
.
9
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-
7
 
0
2
0
2
2
3

4
6
4
0
 
K
W
H
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
2
.
9
1
1
5
5
0
6
6
9
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
2
-
3
 
0
2
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
1
7
.
3
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
2
-
3
 
0
2
0
1
2
3

2
3
0
0
0
 
K
W
H
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
0
1
7
.
3
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
,
9
9
7
.
6
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
5
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
4
2
4
2
2
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
4
2
4
2
2
7
8

H
C
 
F
S
A
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
8
0
0
 
5
4
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
D
M
I
N
-
S
E
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
4
3
5
5
4
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
4
3
5
5
4
5
2

H
C
 
F
S
A
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
8
0
0
 
5
4
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
D
M
I
N
-
S
E
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
4
4
5
6
7
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
4
4
5
6
7
7
6

H
C
 
F
S
A
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
8
0
0
 
5
4
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
D
M
I
N
-
S
E
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
4
5
6
1
1
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
4
5
6
1
1
5
2

H
C
 
F
S
A
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
8
0
0
 
5
4
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
D
M
I
N
-
S
E
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
2
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
W
 
W
A
L
L
A
C
E
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
 
9
4
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
8
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
4
5
0

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3
 
w
a
t
e
r
 
&
 
s
e
w
e
r
 
l
i
n
e
 
w
o
r
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
8
.
9
5
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
8
.
9
5

  
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
2
9
 
0
2
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
W
I
R
E
 
 
 
1
4
6
5
 
U
 
S
 
 
B
A
N
K
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
4
9
2
8
2
6
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
7
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
2
8
2
6
2
5
0

S
c
a
n
n
e
r
 
L
e
a
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
7
4
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
A
S
E
-
 
S
C
A
N
N
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
2
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
7
4

  
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
3
1
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
W
I
R
E
 
 
 
1
4
6
5
 
U
 
S
 
 
B
A
N
K
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
4
9
3
5
9
7
6
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
3
5
9
7
6
6
0

C
o
p
i
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
P
r
i
n
t
e
r
 
l
e
a
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
3
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
P
I
E
R
 
L
E
A
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
3
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
1
8
 
A
 
&
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
-
1
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
4
.
7
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
-
1
2
1

S
t
a
t
.
 
2
 
r
e
s
t
r
o
o
m
 
l
i
g
h
t
 
r
e
p
a
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
4
.
7
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
2
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
2
 
S
H
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
4
.
7
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
7
7
 
A
B
M
 
M
E
C
H
A
N
I
C
A
L
 
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
9
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
4
9
1
8

S
e
r
v
i
c
e
/
C
l
e
a
n
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
B
o
i
l
e
r
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
2
8
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
2
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
6
3
 
A
C
A
D
I
A
 
F
U
E
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
3
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
4
3
.
5
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
8
9
3
4
4

P
R
O
P
A
N
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
4
3
.
5
1
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
4
3
.
5
1

   



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
6
1
 
A
C
A
D
I
A
 
F
U
E
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
2
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
.
1
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
8
9
2
4
1

Y
a
c
h
t
s
m
a
n
'
s
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
 
F
u
e
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
.
1
5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
8
.
1
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
5
0
 
B
E
N
 
C
 
W
O
R
C
E
S
T
E
R
,
 
I
I
I
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
3
9
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
3
9
4
7

R
E
C
Y
C
L
I
N
G
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
R
O
C
E
S
S
I
N
G
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
2
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
 
A
L
L
E
N
S
 
E
N
V
I
R
O
N
M
E
N
T
A
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
1
4
3
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
9
4

C
l
e
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
I
n
s
p
e
c
t
 
S
V
 
W
W
T
P
 
O
u
t
f
a
l
l
/
R
o
o
t
 
I
s
s
u
e
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
2
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
5
2
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
1
1
 
A
L
L
I
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
4
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
7
9
6

S
W
E
E
P
E
R
 
B
R
O
O
M
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
4
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
4
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
6
2
 
A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N
 
M
E
S
S
A
G
I
N
G
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
N
4
3
7
0
0
4
6
X
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
4
3
7
0
0
4
6
X
B

W
W
 
A
l
a
r
m
s
 
P
a
g
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
4
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
N
I
C
A
L
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
6
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
6
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
1
 
A
U
T
O
Z
O
N
E
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
8
8
5
1
8
1
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
1
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
4
8
8
5
1
8
1
3
2

M
o
t
o
r
 
o
i
l
 
s
t
o
c
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
0
9
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
-
1
7
 
F
O
R
D
 
E
X
P
 
A
D
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
1
3
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
1
4
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
-
 
2
0
2
2
 
F
-
1
5
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
9
8
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
1
5
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
1
.
9
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
2
2
 
B
A
C
K
S
I
D
E
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
U
N
D
 
O
V
E
R
 
P
M
T
 
B
O
A
T
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
R
E
F
U
N
D
 
O
V
E
R
 
P
M
T
 
B
O
A
T

R
E
F
U
N
D
 
O
V
E
R
 
P
M
T
 
B
O
A
T
 
R
E
G
 
2
5
8
Y
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
0
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
-
R
e
f
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
5
7
 
B
E
R
G
E
R
O
N
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
V
E
 
C
L
O
T
H
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
4
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
9
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
5
4
4
1

H
e
l
m
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
9
.
2
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
9
.
2
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
3
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
8
3
3
2
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
2
.
3
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
4
8
3
3
2
1
6

A
s
s
o
r
t
e
d
 
E
M
S
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
2
.
3
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
2
.
3
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
7
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
6
.
9
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
7
6
0

B
o
a
t
 
c
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
6
.
9
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
6
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
8
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
6
6
4

C
l
e
a
n
i
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
8
1
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
5
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
5
5
3

I
n
v
e
r
t
e
d
 
M
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
P
a
i
n
t
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
4
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
6
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
4
7
9

N
u
t
s
,
 
B
o
l
t
s
,
 
S
c
r
e
w
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
6
5
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
8
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
8
7
3

T
o
o
l
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
.
2
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
8
5
0

A
l
u
m
i
n
u
m
 
S
h
o
v
e
l
s
 
x
 
2
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
9
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
8
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
6
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
8
4
3

S
i
m
p
l
e
 
G
r
e
e
n
,
 
P
u
r
p
l
e
 
D
e
g
r
e
a
s
e
r
,
 
S
h
o
v
e
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
6
6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
2
.
2
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
2
4
 
C
 
&
 
C
 
M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
1
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
6
5

S
T
E
E
L
/
R
U
B
B
E
R
 
B
E
L
T
I
N
G
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
1
.
7
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
 
&
 
C
 
M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
7
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
7
0

S
T
E
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
7
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
 
&
 
C
 
M
A
C
H
I
N
E
 
S
H
O
P
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
.
7
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
7
3

S
T
E
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
.
7
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
0
.
2
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
2
8
 
C
I
N
T
A
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
N
O
.
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
4
3
5
1
0
3
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
3
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
1
4
3
5
1
0
3
2
4

F
i
r
s
t
 
A
i
d
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
3
7
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
3
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
 
C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
 
T
I
R
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
0
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
1
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
2
0
3
6

S
n
o
w
 
t
i
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
R
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
1
0
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
3
1
1
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
7
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
3
1
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
2
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
S
o
m
e
s
v
i
l
l
e
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
4
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
7
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
0
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
7
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
E
-
9
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
0
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
7
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
0
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
6
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
0
1
2
7
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
7
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
1
3
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
1
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
7
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
7
2
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
7
2
0
2
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
T
o
w
n
 
O
f
f
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
.
4
6
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
.
4
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
0
1
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
u
m
p
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
 
C
U
R
T
I
S
 
F
A
M
I
L
Y
 
S
H
O
E
 
S
T
O
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
5
5
3
2

M
I
K
E
 
V
 
B
O
O
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
.
9
6
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
.
9
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
2
6
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
2
6
7
3

F
L
O
O
R
 
M
A
T
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
2
.
5
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
0
6
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
3
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
1
0
6
0
7

B
r
a
k
e
 
l
i
n
i
n
g
,
 
r
o
t
o
r
 
a
s
s
e
m
b
l
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
3
9
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
1
3
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
1
1
2
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
9
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
1
1
2
7
2

P
a
r
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
R
7
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
9
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
3
1
1
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
7
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
5
.
8
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
2
0
 
D
C
 
T
O
W
I
N
G
 
A
N
D
 
R
E
C
O
V
E
R
Y
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
-
5
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
2
-
5
2
2
3

T
O
W
I
N
G
 
T
-
3
3
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
C
 
T
O
W
I
N
G
 
A
N
D
 
R
E
C
O
V
E
R
Y
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
-
5
6
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
-
5
6
6
5

S
I
D
E
W
A
L
K
 
P
L
O
W
 
T
O
W
I
N
G
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
5
8
 
T
E
A
M
 
E
J
P
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
,
 
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
2
3
9
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
6
8
8
.
8
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
2
3
9
2
1

S
E
W
E
R
 
M
A
N
H
O
L
E
 
F
R
A
M
E
S
 
A
N
D
 
C
O
V
E
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
6
8
8
.
8
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
T
O
R
M
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
6
8
8
.
8
5

    



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
0
4
 
E
A
 
A
C
Q
U
I
S
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
1
1
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
7
5
.
1
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
1
1
3
5

P
u
b
l
i
c
 
N
o
t
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
8
.
7
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
0
.
2
0
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
7
.
4
0
1
2
2
0
2
2
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
8
.
8
0
1
2
2
0
4
4
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
7
5
.
1
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
6
1
 
E
V
O
Q
U
A
 
W
A
T
E
R
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
5
7
1
4
9
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
8
1
.
6
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
0
5
7
1
4
9
2
2

9
7
0
 
G
A
L
S
 
B
i
o
x
i
d
e
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S
 
O
d
o
r
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
8
1
.
6
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
9
 
5
3
2
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
D
O
R
/
G
R
E
A
S
E
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
8
1
.
6
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
4
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
5
.
2
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
3

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
 
B
I
L
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
2
1
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
8
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
5
.
2
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
3
8
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
F
I
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
6
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
3

D
a
t
a
 
a
n
d
 
c
e
l
l
 
p
h
o
n
e
s
 
c
h
a
r
g
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
6
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
6
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
9
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
 
H
O
T
S
P
O
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
2
2
0
2
3

I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
H
O
T
 
S
P
O
T
S
 
T
H
R
O
U
G
H
 
0
2
.
2
2
.
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
5
 
F
I
R
S
T
 
N
E
T
 
-
 
N
O
N
 
P
U
B
L
I
C
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
9
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
2
2
0
2
3

C
E
L
L
 
&
 
D
A
T
A
 
T
H
R
O
U
G
H
 
0
2
.
2
2
.
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
7
4
1
2
2
0
6
6
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
7
3
1
2
2
0
5
5
1
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
7
4
1
2
2
0
5
5
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
6
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
9
0

   



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
4
3
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
P
D
 
C
E
L
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
0
.
7
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
8
2
0
2
3

0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
C
e
l
l
 
P
h
o
n
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
.
6
1
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
.
2
5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
1
9
1
1

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
A
D
M
I
N
 
A
S
S
I
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
7
4
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
6
4
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
L
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
0
5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
6
7
4
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
S
G
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
2
2
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
0
8
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
C
H
I
E
F
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4
2
1
4
0
1
1
5
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
0
8
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
B
A
R
 
H
B
R
 
P
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
0
.
7
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
 
R
 
H
 
F
O
S
T
E
R
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
1
8
.
3
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
3

8
5
3
.
6
2
 
g
a
l
 
3
.
3
0
 
a
v
g
 
p
e
r
 
g
a
l
 
J
a
n
 
F
u
e
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
1
4
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
2
7
0
2
 

F
U
E
L
-
C
E
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
C
h
e
v
 
C
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
1
4
1
2
2
0
6
6
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
2
7
0
2
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
1
8
 
C
H
E
V
 
C
O
L
O
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
2
.
5
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
4
.
9
6
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
2
1
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
.
3
9
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
0
9
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
1
7
 
F
O
R
D
 
E
X
P
 
A
D
M
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
3
.
3
3
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
1
3
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
5
.
6
4
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
1
4
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
-
 
2
0
2
2
 
F
-
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
2
.
4
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
1
5
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
.
3
3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
0
9
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
T
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
8
6
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
0
7
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
 
1
1
 
F
O
R
D
 
T
7
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
5
.
5
5
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
1
1
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
4
3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
1
2
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
4
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
l
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
1
8
.
3
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
6
8
 
G
 
&
 
G
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
5
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
7
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
8
5
3
3

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
A
I
L
 
W
O
R
K
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
.
7
2
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
&
 
G
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
5
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
5
7
.
8
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
8
5
1
8

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
A
L
 
W
O
R
K
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
5
7
.
8
7
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
&
 
G
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
4
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
8
4
5
8

L
A
B
O
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
&
 
G
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
5
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
6
.
9
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
8
5
1
6

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
A
L
 
W
O
R
K
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
6
.
9
4
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
&
 
G
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
3
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
8
3
8
8

W
o
r
k
 
o
n
 
s
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3
 
d
o
o
r
 
l
o
c
k
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
0
3
.
5
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
1
1
4
2
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
1
1
4
2
5
1

O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 
F
e
a
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
0
.
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
3
1
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
&
 
E
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
8
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
0
 
G
I
L
M
A
N
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
4
-
1
0
6
8
8
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
9
7
4
-
1
0
6
8
8
4
2

G
F
C
I
 
c
o
r
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
a
r
a
t
u
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
0
 
G
O
N
E
T
S
P
E
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
8
.
2
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
c
h
a
r
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
8
.
2
1
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
8
.
2
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
1
4
5
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
.
8
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
1
4
5
2
0

T
O
O
L
S
 
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
.
8
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
6
9
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
9
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
9
6
9
2
8

C
H
A
R
G
E
R
S
 
A
N
D
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
9
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
4
6
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
6
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
9
4
6
8
9

T
O
O
L
S
 
T
O
O
L
 
B
O
X
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
6
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
1
5
2
1
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
0
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
1
5
2
1
6

P
L
Y
W
O
O
D
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
0
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
1
6
2
0
8
 
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
8
1
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
2
1
6
2
0
8
 
A

C
R
E
D
I
T
 
F
R
O
M
 
D
U
P
L
I
C
A
T
E
 
P
A
Y
M
E
N
T
 
4
1
2
6
2
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
8
1
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
-
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
2
5
6
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
0
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
2
5
6
5
4

P
L
Y
W
O
O
D
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
0
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
2
6
8
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
4
3
.
4
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
2
6
8
0
5

C
O
L
D
 
P
A
T
C
H
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
4
3
.
4
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
-
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
2
4
7
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
.
1
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
2
4
7
1
8

C
O
L
D
 
P
A
T
C
H
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
.
1
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
-
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
9
9
5
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
5
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
2
9
9
5
8
4

B
r
e
a
d
e
d
 
C
o
t
t
e
n
 
R
o
p
e
 
&
 
T
r
a
s
h
 
C
a
n
 
I
n
v
 
4
/
1
9
/
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
5
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
1
8
9
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
.
8
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
1
8
9
2
7

M
i
s
c
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
o
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
.
8
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
8
0
8
3
4
 
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
4
.
0
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
8
0
8
3
4
 
A

D
u
p
l
i
c
a
t
e
 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
C
K
 
3
1
6
7
7
2
 
&
 
C
K
 
3
1
6
8
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
4
.
0
8
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
7
7
2
7
0
 
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
0
5
2
.
3
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
9
7
7
2
7
0
 
A

D
u
p
l
i
c
a
t
e
 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
C
K
 
3
1
6
8
9
7
 
&
 
C
K
 
3
1
6
9
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
0
5
2
.
3
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
-
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
7
4
0
8
0
 
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
7
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
0
3
6
.
3
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
1
6
7
4
0
8
0
 
A

D
u
p
l
i
c
a
t
e
 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
C
K
 
3
1
7
0
3
9
 
&
 
C
K
 
3
1
7
0
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
0
3
6
.
3
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
I
S
C
-
M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
4
9
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
2
.
8
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
1
7
1
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
9
0
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
0
1
7
1
2
5
0

B
l
e
a
c
h
/
B
i
s
l
u
f
i
t
e
 
I
B
D
s
,
 
B
l
e
a
c
h
 
D
r
u
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
3
.
2
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
2
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
L
O
R
I
N
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
3
2
.
5
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E
C
H
L
O
R
I
N
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
5
.
2
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
2
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
L
O
R
I
N
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
9
0
.
9
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
9
9
 
I
N
S
T
I
T
U
T
E
 
F
O
R
 
F
O
R
E
N
S
I
C
 
P
S
Y
C
H
O
L
O
G
Y
 
1
8
1
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
8
1
1
5

W
e
l
l
n
e
s
s
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
5
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
U
T
S
I
D
E
 
L
A
B
/
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
4
1
7
 
R
 
F
 
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
&
 
S
O
N
S
 
C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
I
 
P
E
 
2
 
A
b
u
t
 
R
e
p
l
a
c
e
 
 
 
1
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
7
7
0
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
P
E
 
2
 
A
b
u
t
 
R
e
p
l
a
c
e

W
o
r
k
 
D
o
n
e
 
o
n
 
A
b
u
t
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
1
1
.
1
-
1
1
.
3
0
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
6
0
1
.
0
0
6
3
0
0
0
6
3
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
R
O
S
S
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
,
8
3
0
.
0
5
6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
e
t
a
i
n
a
g
e
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
,
7
7
0
.
9
5

  



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
5
8
1
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
5
.
0
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
P
5
8
1
2
6

H
O
I
S
T
 
&
 
C
H
A
I
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
5
.
0
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
5
.
0
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
0
3
2
2
6
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
1
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
3
1
0
3
2
2
6
0
3

Q
U
I
C
K
 
P
O
I
N
T
 
K
N
I
F
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
1
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
.
1
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
3
0
4
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
I
N
F
O
R
M
A
T
I
O
N
 
N
E
T
W
O
R
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
7
1
6
8
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
6
.
7
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
9
7
1
6
8
6

D
u
p
l
i
c
a
t
e
 
C
C
 
P
m
t
 
0
9
3
0
2
2
 
2
0
2
3
.
3
.
1
3
4
/
3
.
9
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
6
.
7
6
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
l
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
6
.
7
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
1
9
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
L
O
B
S
T
E
R
M
E
N
S
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
L
 
D
e
f
e
n
s
e
 
D
o
n
a
t
i
o
n
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
S
M
L
 
D
e
f
e
n
s
e
 
D
o
n
a
t
i
o
n

S
a
v
e
 
M
a
i
n
e
 
L
o
b
s
t
e
r
m
e
n
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
D
e
f
e
n
s
e
 
F
u
n
d
 
D
o
n
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
0
0
1
 
5
9
3
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
N
T
I
N
G
E
N
C
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
2
3
6
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
O
X
Y
/
 
S
P
E
C
 
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
2
6
5
2
6
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
3
.
0
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
0
2
6
5
2
6
6
5

W
I
R
E
 
S
P
O
O
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
3
.
0
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
3
.
0
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
4
9
 
M
C
K
E
S
S
O
N
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
-
S
U
R
G
I
C
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
8
8
8
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
8
8
8
4
3

G
l
u
c
o
s
e
 
t
e
s
t
 
s
t
r
i
p
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
0
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
0
1
7

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
I
G
H
T
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
1
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
6
0
0
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
 
S
V
C
S
 
-
 
S
U
S
T
A
I
N
I
B
I
L
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
1
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
1
7
1

W
o
r
k
 
o
n
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
P
e
d
e
s
t
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
0
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
6
1
3
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
R
e
y
n
o
l
d
s
 
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
R
e
y
n
o
l
d
s
 
2
0
2
2

R
e
y
n
o
l
d
s
 
s
t
i
p
e
n
d
 
-
 
B
O
S
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
5
.
2
6
.
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
.
0
0
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
v
-
R
e
y
n
o
l
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
2
0
2
2

S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
S
c
h
o
l
a
r
s
h
i
p
 
-
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
a
t
 
5
.
2
6
.
2
2
 
B
O
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
v
-
S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
9
 
M
D
I
 
R
E
G
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
e
b
-
2
3
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
,
9
3
6
.
6
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
F
e
b
-
2
3
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

F
e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
2
0
2
3
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
M
D
I
 
H
S

 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
,
9
3
6
.
6
6
1
9
9
5
1
0
0
 
5
9
2
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
D
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
,
9
3
6
.
6
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
2
1
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
R
E
 
P
A
R
T
 
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
9
0
7
0
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
1
.
7
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
1
9
0
7
0
9
8

C
a
l
l
 
2
2
-
3
7
6
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
r
e
 
o
v
r
p
m
t
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
2
.
1
0
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
1
.
7
9
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
l
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
1
.
7
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
2
5
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
0
4
4
0
3
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
9
2
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
0
4
4
0
3
5
5

M
M
A
 
A
n
n
u
a
l
 
D
u
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
9
2
8
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
U
E
S
 
&
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
H
I
P
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
9
2
8
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
5
6
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
R
E
V
I
E
W
 
C
O
M
M
I
T
T
E
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
3
2
.
8
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
6
5
0

M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 
M
O
N
T
H
L
Y
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
3
2
.
8
9
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
5
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
I
P
P
I
N
G
 
F
E
E
 
C
R
O
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
7
3
2
.
8
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
0
3
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
0
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
0
3
8
1

L
A
M
P
 
K
I
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
0
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
0
1
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
.
1
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
0
1
5
6

F
I
L
T
E
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
.
1
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
9
6
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
4
9
6
7
2

S
T
R
O
B
E
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
 
B
J



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
2
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
1
9
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
.
5
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
1
9
0
3

T
O
R
Q
U
E
 
W
R
E
N
C
H

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
.
5
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
1
7
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
7
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
1
7
1
8

B
R
A
K
E
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
7
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
9
2
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
4
9
2
2
0

T
i
r
e
 
c
h
u
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
g
a
u
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
.
3
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
3
1
1
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
7
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
9
9
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
5
.
3
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
4
9
9
2
5

W
a
r
r
a
n
t
y
 
i
n
v
o
i
c
e
#
 
6
4
8
8
1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
5
.
3
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
2
7
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
.
0
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
2
7
2
3

E
2
 
e
x
h
a
u
s
t
 
r
e
p
a
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
.
0
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
3
0
2
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
-
1
7
 
F
I
 
E
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
3
7
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
7
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
3
7
2
4

C
L
A
M
P
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
7
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
8
8
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
4
8
8
1
9

O
i
l
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
9
8
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
4
1
1
4
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
-
 
2
0
2
2
 
F
-
1
5
0
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
3
8
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
3
8
3
6

R
e
d
u
c
e
r
 
S
l
e
e
v
e
 
f
o
r
 
T
o
w
 
H
i
t
c
h
/
T
r
k
#
1
5
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
3
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
3
8
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
3
8
6
9

P
i
n
 
C
l
i
p
s
 
f
o
r
 
T
o
w
 
H
i
t
c
h
/
T
r
k
#
1
5
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
5
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
4
8
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
4
8
2
8

A
N
T
I
 
F
R
E
E
Z
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
5
2
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
4
0
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
6
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
4
0
8
3

C
L
E
A
N
I
N
G
 
W
A
N
D
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
6
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
1
.
5
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
8
8
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
1
2
.
8
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
0
2
1

S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
1
2
.
8
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
1
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
4
3
.
5
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
1
3
7

2
 
L
O
A
D
S
 
S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
4
3
.
5
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
9
5
6
.
4
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
6
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
T
I
R
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
S
 
 
I
 
1
3
9
1
8
9
-
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
4
5
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
3
9
1
8
9
-
0
8

T
I
R
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
4
5
.
2
8
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
I
R
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
I
R
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
W
 
E
N
G
L
A
N
D
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
T
I
R
E
 
C
E
N
T
E
R
S
 
 
I
 
1
3
9
1
8
1
-
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
3
9
1
8
1
-
0
8

T
I
R
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
7
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
I
R
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
3
7
3
.
2
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
8
8
 
P
O
W
E
R
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
2
1
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
3
0
.
7
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
8
2
1
8
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
s
 
9
8
0
1
8
5
1
/
9
8
0
2
1
8
5
 
O
C
 
P
S
 
G
e
n
 
T
u
r
b
o
 
P
a
r
t
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
3
0
.
7
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
4
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
T
O
R
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
3
0
.
7
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
9
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
9
6
5
1
7
8
3
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
.
8
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
9
6
5
1
7
8
3
0
0
1

C
o
p
y
 
P
a
p
e
r
,
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
,
 
M
a
g
i
c
 
E
r
a
s
e
r
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
3
6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
.
4
4
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
9
6
9
7
5
8
7
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
9
6
9
7
5
8
7
0
0
1

V
a
r
i
d
e
s
k
,
 
A
r
m
,
 
M
o
n
i
t
o
r
,
 
D
U
 
9
9
3
5
7
0
2
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
9
6
9
7
5
8
7
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
9
6
9
7
5
8
7
0
0
2

D
e
s
k
,
 
S
t
a
n
d
,
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
,
 
6
0
x
3
0
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
9
7
0
2
2
6
5
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
6
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
9
7
0
2
2
6
5
0
0
1

U
S
B
 
V
2
 
G
o
l
d
t
o
u
c
h
 
E
r
g
o
,
 
E
r
g
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
M
u
l
t
i
-
A
n
g
l
e
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
4
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
4
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
9
7
0
2
2
6
6
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
6
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
9
7
0
2
2
6
6
0
0
1

E
v
o
l
u
e
n
t
 
V
e
r
t
i
c
a
l
 
M
o
u
s
e
 
4
R
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
5
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
.
4
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
9
7
0
2
2
6
7
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
0
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
9
7
0
2
2
6
7
0
0
1

V
a
r
i
d
e
s
k
,
 
P
r
o
p
l
u
s
,
 
3
6
,
 
B
l
a
c
k
,
 
S
p
e
a
k
e
r
s
,
 
P
C
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
5
.
1
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
5
.
1
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
1
9
6
6
3
0
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
1
1
9
6
6
3
0
0
0
1

O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
W
W
T
P
 
P
W
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
.
9
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
1
9
9
5
4
3
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
1
1
9
9
5
4
3
0
0
1

O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
W
W
T
P
 
P
W
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
1
9
9
5
4
5
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
1
1
9
9
5
4
5
0
0
1

O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
W
W
T
P
 
P
W
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
1
1
9
9
5
4
7
0
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
1
1
9
9
5
4
7
0
0
2

O
f
f
i
c
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
W
W
T
P
 
P
W
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
7
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
Q
U
I
P
-
T
E
C
H
 
H
A
R
D
W
A
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
1
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
9
6
.
0
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
0
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
 
S
E
A
C
O
A
S
T
 
S
E
C
U
R
I
T
Y
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
2
7
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
2
2
7
1
7

R
E
C
U
R
R
I
N
G
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
1
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
7
4
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
1
1
7
1
0
3
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
.
2
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
1
1
7
1
0
3
9
1

C
o
p
y
 
p
a
p
e
r
,
 
p
e
n
s
,
 
f
i
l
e
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
,
 
c
u
p
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
l
a
s
t
i
c
 
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
.
2
4
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
1
1
7
1
0
5
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
7
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
 
3
2
1
1
7
1
0
5
6
1

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
l
a
b
e
l
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
.
7
4
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
1
6
6
4
8
8
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
1
6
6
4
8
8
6
1

p
r
i
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
3
.
7
8
1
2
2
0
6
6
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
1
.
7
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
2
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
1
4
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
C
H
A
P
T
E
R
 
I
A
A
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
6
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
8
6
1
4

M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
g
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
6
6
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
3
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
5
9
 
S
U
P
E
R
 
S
H
O
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
2
9
8
9
6
-
I
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
4
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
2
9
8
9
6
-
I
N

B
O
O
T
S
 
A
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
4
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
4
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
4
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
1
4
 
T
M
D
E
 
C
A
L
I
B
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
L
A
B
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
9
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
6
9
5
4

R
a
d
a
r
 
C
a
l
i
b
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
/
 
t
u
n
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
k
 
c
e
r
t
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
5
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
7
1
 
J
A
S
O
N
 
R
O
B
E
R
T
 
M
C
C
A
B
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
2
6
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
7
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
2
6
7
0

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
2
 
c
l
e
a
n
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
7
1
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
8
4
0
 
4
3
2
 
 

C
U
S
T
O
D
I
A
L
-
S
2
 
S
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
7
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
6
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
9
8
6
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
4
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
9
8
6
9

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
4
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
9
8
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
9
8
7
0

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
1
3
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
1
3
4
7

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
M
a
t
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
1
3
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
4
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
1
3
4
6

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
4
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
2
8
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
2
8
4
6

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
2
8
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
4
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
2
8
4
5

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
0
.
4
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
6
2
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
0
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
6
2
2
8

2
0
2
3
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
 
S
a
l
e
s
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
 
S
w
a
p
 
H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
.
9
4
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
.
9
6
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
4
.
8
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
6
2
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
9
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
6
6
2
2
9

2
0
2
3
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
 
S
a
l
e
s
 
S
w
a
p
 
H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
9
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
4
6
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
7
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
3
9
0
 
C
I
V
E
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
2
2
3
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
4
.
6
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
2
2
3
3
9

R
O
A
D
 
W
A
T
C
H
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
4
.
6
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
I
V
E
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
2
2
3
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
2
2
3
4
7

P
L
O
W
 
B
L
A
D
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
4
.
6
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
8
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
6
0
 
F
 
W
 
W
E
B
B
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
4
9
9
2
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
.
6
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
9
4
9
9
2
6
5

T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
 
S
W
I
T
C
H
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
.
6
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
2
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
.
6
6

  
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
9
7

*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

  
C
O
U
N
T

A
M
O
U
N
T

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S

 
 
 
 
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
9
,
8
8
7
.
2
9

T
O
T
A
L
 
W
I
R
E
 
T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
S

 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
4
.
7
4

T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 

 
 
 
 
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
,
2
8
7
.
4
6

   
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

       



 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R

J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C

T
O
B

D
E
B
I
T

C
R
E
D
I
T

E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E

J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C

R
E
F
 
1

R
E
F
 
2

R
E
F
 
3

L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
,
8
6
1
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 

C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
5
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

  
A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 

D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 

D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 

D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 

D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
5
0
 

D
T
-
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
 
(
C
e
m
)
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
5
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
7
9
7
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
7
9
7
.
6
4

 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
3
/
0
8
/
6
1

T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
6
,
4
5
7
.
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
6
,
4
5
7
.
1
3

       



 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

  
F
U
N
D

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R

J
N
L

E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E

D
E
B
I
T

C
R
E
D
I
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3

1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 

C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
,
8
6
1
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 

D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 

D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 

D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
5
0
 

D
T
-
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
 
(
C
e
m
)
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 

D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
,
6
5
9
.
4
9

 
2
0
0
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3

2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
3
0
0
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3

3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

 
4
0
0
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3

4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

 
5
0
0
 
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
~
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
y
/
S
c
h
l

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3

5
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

 
6
0
0
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
8

 
 
 
 
6
1

0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3

6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

            



 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
0
:
5
1
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

  
F
U
N
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
U
E
 
T
O

D
U
E
 
F
R
O
M

 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
7
9
7
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
0
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

3
0
0
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
1
7
1
.
8
0

4
0
0
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
8
0
.
2
5

5
0
0
 
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
~
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
y
/
S
c
h
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

6
0
0
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
,
1
1
6
.
7
5

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
7
9
7
.
6
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
7
9
7
.
6
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                         



23
52

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 8

, 2
02

3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
84

56
th

ro
ug

h
31

84
60

8,
01

5.
61

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
72

7
an

d
59

72
8

38
,7

57
.4

3
$ 

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
46

,7
73

.0
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2352 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Monday, February 6, 2023 3:10:52 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved!

On Mon, Feb 6, 2023 at 2:59 PM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 

Greetings,

 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2352 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount
of $46,773.04 for your approval.                      

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 

I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the
one required email approval.

Thank you!

Lisa Young,

Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email
is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.

 

 

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


 



23
53

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

5,
 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
84

61
th

ro
ug

h
31

84
61

5,
69

8.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
5,

69
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



23
20

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
17

, 2
02

3

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
14

89
0

th
ro

ug
h

14
94

2

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
65

96
6

th
ro

ug
h

65
97

5

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
14

1,
93

4.
48

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: John Macauley
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2353 & PR#2320 Approval Request
Date: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 12:37:46 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

This looks fine to me!

On Tue, Feb 14, 2023 at 12:23 PM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

Greetings,

 

Attached are the following warrants for approval:

                                    Accounts Payable                #2353     total of          $5,698.00

                                    Payroll                                   #2320     total of          $141,934.48

 

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving or
rejecting.

 

 

I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have
the one required email approval.

Thank you!

 

Lisa Young,

Finance Clerk, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

mailto:jbmacauley3@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email
is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.

 

-- 
John B Macauley, Ph.D.
Otter Creek, Maine







#17



lyoung
Highlight


	SB Meeting Agenda 2023-02-21 
	Regular Meeting
	TUESDAY, February 21, 2023

	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	SB Meeting Minutes 2023-02-06

	Appointments
	APPOINTMENTS ETC Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -3
	Blank Page

	Michael Bailey - Investment Committee 2-21-2023

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Debt Service FY24 Budget Update
	CIP Update - Reduction in PW CIP Contributions
	NHH Letter
	Lobster Industry Article
	Warrant Committee 1-31-23 minutes copy
	January 18, 2022 CSM Minutes
	2-16-23-Islander-Municipal Review Committee Board President Karen Fussell speaks to the board
	Correction


	Old
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	Approval of attorney for MacQuinn appeal
	Amendment to Scholarship Procedure

	new
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	A-L 2-21-23
	Acadia Youth Sports TPR 2023
	American Red Cross
	Bar Harbor Food Pantry TPR
	Bar Harbor Food Pantry TPR.pdf
	Organization Name
	Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
	Attach most recent Financial Report
	Gross operating budget: $    Gross payroll $
	Number of Paid Employees:   Full Time      Part Time


	Downeast Horizons 2023 TPR
	Eagles Nest TPR 2023
	Eastern Agency on Aging 3rd party questionnaire 2023
	Emmaus Center TPR 2023
	Great Harbor Maritime Museum 3rd PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Fillable Form (1)
	Organization Name
	Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
	Attach most recent Financial Report
	Gross operating budget: $    Gross payroll $
	Number of Paid Employees:   Full Time      Part Time

	Health Equity Alliance VIS 2023 TPR
	Financials.pdf
	12.31.22 BAL
	12.31.22 PL


	Hospice Volunteers HC
	Island Connections Funding Request FY24
	Island Housing Trust TPR
	Lifeflight 2023 TPR
	3rd Party Requests 2023.pdf
	2023-2024

	DURLIN of Third Party Requests FY 24.pdf
	99_27623_munistemp2302140915439


	Assessing Technician Memo
	Authorize closing Marina CC account
	Investment policy amended atm 2016-05-03 - redline

	warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	TREASURER WARRANT
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	1- AP WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- GL DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL.pdf
	3- AP2352 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP With PR Cover Sheet

	4- Re_ Warrant AP#2352 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP2353 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP With PR Cover Sheet

	6-  PR2320 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2353 & PR#2320 Approval Request.pdf
	8- MDES PR17 BOS & UPLOAD.pdf
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Great Harbor Maritime Museum 3rd PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Fillable Form (1).pdf
	Organization Name
	Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
	Attach most recent Financial Report
	Gross operating budget: $    Gross payroll $
	Number of Paid Employees:   Full Time      Part Time

	Great Harbor Maritime Museum 3rd PARTY Questionnaire 2023 Fillable Form (1).pdf
	Organization Name
	Status (ex: 501(c)(3))
	Attach most recent Financial Report
	Gross operating budget: $    Gross payroll $
	Number of Paid Employees:   Full Time      Part Time


	Date_af_date: 1/26/23
	Organization Name, Status, and Mailing Address: Bar Harbor Food Pantry501(c)(3)PO Box 434Bar Harbor, ME 04609
	Physical Address, Phone Number, and Contact Person: 36 Mount Desert StBar Harbor, ME 04609207-288-3375Tom Reeve, Executive Director
	Contact Email: bhpantry@bhfp.org
	Gross Payroll: 120,000
	Gross Operating Budget: 314,000
	Financial Report: Yes
	Salary and Other Compensation of Highest Paid Employee: 67,000/yr
	Number of Paid Part Time Employees: 1
	Number of Paid Full Time Employees: 2
	Salary and Other Compensation of Lowest Paid Employee: 20/hr
	Number Of Volunteers: 40
	Explain What Services Your Organization Provides To the Residents of Town: We provide food and other household items at no cost to any resident of Mount Desert that seeks assistance with us. All customers are allowed to use the pantry up to 4 times a month to ensure they are receiving enough food. 
	Total Number of Town Of Mount Desert Residents Your Organization Served Last Year: 38
	Estimated Value of Services: 18,600
	Times Per Month Service Was Used By Town Residents: 17
	What Amount Is Each Town Resident Being Served Charged: 0
	Explain the Services Your Organiztion Provides to Residents Outside Of the Town: We provide food and other household items at no cost to any resident of Hancock County that seeks assistance with us. All customers are allowed to use the pantry up to 4 times a month to ensure they are receiving enough food. 
	Plans For Fundraisers: We raise funds through an annual appeal, grants, events, and appropriations in the other towns we serve. 
	What Services Will Be Provided By Any Funds You May Receive From The Town: We would not deny anyone in need the use of our services for any reason other than insolvency.
	Amount You Are Requesting for FY 2023-2024: 3500
	Amount You Have Received From the Town in 2022: 3500
	Amount You Have Received From the Town in 2021: 3500
	Amount You Have Received From the Town in 2020: 3500
	Explain How Funds Given By The Town Would Be Spent During The Fiscal Year: 100% will be directed towards food purchases. 
	Printed Name and Title of Requestor: Tom Reeve, Executive Director


